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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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OR
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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Commission File Number: 0-51357
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Indicate by check mark whether the registhast submitted electronically and posted on its@@te Web site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation B5¢Section 232.405 of this chapter) during the pdicg 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such filess Me No O
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company. See the definitions of “large acceleréited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportir@mpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange
Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filedI Accelerated file™ Non-accelerated fileO Smaller reporting compar
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PART |

Item 1. Business
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in this report which are not puhédyorical facts or which necessarily depend ufubare events, including statements
regarding our anticipations, beliefs, expectatidrages, intentions or strategies for the futurey bmforward-looking statements within the
meaning of Section 21E of the Securities ExchangteofA1934, as amended. All forward-looking statataen this report are based upon
information available to us on the date of thisorepWe undertake no obligation to publicly updateevise any forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future ¢seor otherwise. Any forward-looking statementdman this report involve risks and
uncertainties that could cause actual events ottset® differ materially from the events or resutiescribed in the forwaldoking statement
Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliamtieese forward-looking statements. In additiom) statements made by our directors,
officers and employees to the investment commumigdlia representatives and others, depending ingimnature, may also constitute
forward-looking statements. As with the forwardio@ statements included in this report, these &dsooking statements are by nature
inherently uncertain, and actual results may diffi@terially as a result of many factors. Furthéosrimation regarding the risk factors that
could affect our financial and other results aduded as Item 1A of this annual report on FornK10-

OVERVIEW

Builders FirstSource, Inc. is a leading sugmpéind manufacturer of structural and related inglghroducts for residential new construction.
We have operations principally in the southern @astern United States with 52 distribution cend@s 47 manufacturing facilities, many of
which are located on the same premises as ouibditm centers. We have successfully acquirediategjrated 27 companies since our
formation and are currently managed as three rafjmperating groups — Atlantic, Southeast and Gér#r with centralized financial and
operational oversight. In this annual report, reffiees to the “company,” “we,” “our,” “ours” or “uséfer to Builders FirstSource, Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries, unless otherwise statélte context otherwise requires.

Builders FirstSource, Inc. is a Delaware costion formed in 1998, as BSL Holdings, Inc. On dber 13, 1999, we changed our name to
Builders FirstSource, Inc. Publicly held since 2008 common stock is listed on the NASDAQ Stockrkéa LLC under the ticker symbol
“BLDR".

OUR INDUSTRY

We compete in the professional segment (“Rgngnt”) of the U.S. residential new constructioiiding products supply market.
Suppliers in the Pro Segment primarily focus owisgrprofessional customers such as homebuildetsemodeling contractors. According
to the National Association of Home Builders (“NAHBthe single family residential construction merkvas an estimated $112.8 billion in
2010, down approximately 73% from the historicgithof $413.2 billion in 2006. The Pro Segment @ tharket consists predominantly of
small, privately owned suppliers including framisugd shell construction contractors, local and negjionaterials distributors, single or multi-
site lumberyards, and truss manufacturing and raikwoperations. Because of the predominance oflenaiivately owned companies and
the overall size and diversity of the target customarket, the Pro Segment remains fragmented eaere only six building product
suppliers in the Pro Segment that generated mare$B00 million in sales accordingRooSalesnagazine’s 2009 ProSales 100 list. On this
list, we were the fifth largest building producpglier in 2009.

Our industry is driven primarily by the residi@l new construction market, which is in turn degent upon a number of factors, including
demographic trends, interest rates, employmentdesepply and demand for housing stock, availghdf credit, foreclosure rates, consumer
confidence and the economy in general. The homdibgiindustry has experienced a significant andasusd downturn over the past few
years due to negative trends in many of the fadistesd above. During this downturn, many homelrrichave significantly decreased tt
starts because of lower demand and a surplus bféxisting and new home inventory. The weaknesisearhomebuilding industry has
resulted in a significant reduction in demand for products and services.

Adding to the pressure on the housing industeythe severe limitations on credit availabildy smaller homebuilders and homebuyers.
Beginning in 2007, the mortgage markets experiescbdtantial disruption due to increased defapiimarily as a
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result of credit quality deterioration. This distigm resulted in a stricter regulatory environmandl reduced availability of mortgages for
potential homebuyers due to an illiquid credit nesrknd more restrictive standards to qualify fortgeges. Mortgage financing and
commercial credit for smaller homebuilders contitmée severely constrained, which is adding tostheerity of the downturn in our
industry. However, we believe there are severalningdul trends that indicate U.S. housing demanitllikely recover in the long term.
These trends include still near record-low interasts, the aging of housing stock, and normal [aion growth due to birthrate exceeding
death rate. In fact, 2010 was the first time inpihst five years that the housing industry expegdran increase in starts as, according to the
U.S. Census Bureau, actual single family housiagsin the U.S. during 2010 increased 5.9% fro®820 he NAHB is also predicting that
U.S. housing starts will increase in 2011 to appnately 555,000 single family housing starts. Tlkigel for 2011 would represent a 17.8%
increase from 2010 actual housing starts.

OUR CUSTOMERS

We serve a broad customer base ranging fragiystion homebuilders to small custom homebuildéfs.believe we have a diverse
geographic footprint as we serve 32 markets irafst According to 2010 U.S. Census data, we hpgestons in 17 of the top 50 U.S.
Metropolitan Statistical Areas, as ranked by sirighaily housing permits in 2010. In addition, apgroately 44% of U.S. housing permits in
2010 were issued in states in which we operate.

Our customer mix is a balance of large natiboaebuilders, regional homebuilders, and locdldieus. Our customer base is highly
diversified. For the year ended December 31, 26a0top 10 customers accounted for approximatel@%3of our sales, and no single
customer accounted for more than 5% of our salest@ 10 customers are comprised primarily ofléiigest production homebuilders,
including publicly traded companies such as Bebizenes USA, D.R. Horton, Inc., Lennar Corp., HoviaanEnterprises, Inc., Pulte Homes,
Inc. (including Centex Corp.), and The Ryland Gradug.

In addition to the largest production hometberis, we also service and supply regional and lacstom homebuilders. Custom
homebuilders require high levels of service; olesteam must work very closely with the desigmera day-to-day basis in order to ensure
the appropriate products are produced and deliveréite building site. To account for these incegbservice costs, pricing in the industry is
tied to the level of service provided and the vadsrpurchased.

While our primary focus has been on singleifiamesidential construction, over the past sevgears we have expanded our multi-family
and light commercial business to further diversify customer base and lessen our dependence simgfte-family market.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

We offer an integrated solution to our custmy@oviding manufacturing, supply, and installataf a full range of structural and related
building products. We distribute a wide varietybeilding products and services directly to hometiilcustomers. In addition, we
manufacture floor trusses, roof trusses, wall mgrsthirs, millwork, windows, and doors. In additio our full range of construction services,
we provide a comprehensive offering of products ieludes approximately 62,000 stock keeping ufil&Us”). We believe our broad
product and service offering combined with our s@aid experienced sales force have driven marke¢ gfains, particularly with production
homebuilders, and will help us to maintain our oostr base during the downturn in the housing inglust

We group our building products and servicés five product categories: prefabricated compasiemnindows & doors, lumber & lumber
sheet goods, millwork, and other building produ&tservices. For the year ended December 31, 2Qirt0Gcambined sales of prefabricated
components, windows & doors and millwork produdegaries represented 53.1% of total sales. Eatiesk categories includes both
manufactured and distributed products. Productiséee categories typically carry a higher margith provide us with opportunities to cross-
sell other products and services, thereby incrgasiistomer penetration. Sales by product categorhé years ended December 31, 2010,
2009 and 2008 can be found under the caption “Mamagt's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Cdodiand Results of Operations”
contained in Item 7 of this annual report on FodrKl

Prefabricated ComponentBrefabricated components are factory-built sulistitéor job site-framing and include floor trussesf
trusses, wall panels, stairs, and engineered wuatdite design and cut for each home. Our manufedttorefabricated components allow
builders to build higher quality homes more effitlg. Roof trusses, floor trusses, wall panels stait units are built in a factory controlled
environment. Engineered floors and beams are dinetoequired size and packaged for the given egipdin at many of our locations. Withi
prefabricated components, builders construct titesgs on site, where weather and variable labolitgjuzan negatively impact construction
cost, quality and installation time. In additiongineered wood beams have greater structural stréingn conventional framing materials,
allowing builders to frame houses with more opescepcreating a wider variety of house designs. itaeged wood floors are stronger and
straighter than conventionally framed floors.
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Prior to the current housing downturn, homketars were increasingly using prefabricated comptsim order to realize increased
efficiency and improved quality. Shortening cydhed from start to completion was a key imperatit¢he homebuilders during periods of
strong consumer demand. With the current housingntlrn, that trend has decelerated as cycle tisddss relevance. Customers who
traditionally used prefabricated components, feriiost part still do. However, the conversion aftomers to this product offering has
slowed. We expect this trend to continue at leastHe duration of this downturn. In response, weehreduced our manufacturing capacity
and delayed plans to open new facilities.

Windows & DoorsThe windows & doors category comprises the manufand, assembly and distribution of windows, anel dissembly
and distribution of interior and exterior door wi¥We manufacture aluminum and vinyl windows in plant in Houston, Texas which allows
us to supply builders, primarily in the Texas méarkéth an adequate supply of cost-competitive prisl. Our pre-hung interior and exterior
doors consist of a door slab with hinges and dambjs attached, reducing on-site installation time @roviding higher quality finished door
units than those constructed on site. These predypically require a high degree of product knagle and training to sell. As we continu
emphasize higher margin product lines, we expdoevadded goods like windows & doors to increagirggintribute to our sales and overall
profitability.

Lumber & Lumber Sheet Goodsimber & lumber sheet goods include dimensionaldamplywood and oriented strand board (“OSB”)
products used in on-site house framing. In 201i8,dloduct line increased as a percentage of dalgales to 28.8% primarily due to the
unprecedented commodity inflation seen during itst fialf of the year. However, lumber and lumidezet goods as a percentage of our total
sales has declined significantly since 2004 wheegtesented 39.6% of sales. This change in pradixchas been due in part to a shift in
builder demand toward prefabricated component#hir framing needs. Despite this shift in prodméx, we believe we have grown our
market share for lumber & lumber sheet goods dviertime period. We expect the lumber & lumber $lyg®ds business to remain a stable
revenue source in the future, but to grow ovelldhg-term at a slower rate than our other busitinss.

Millwork. Millwork includes interior trim, exterior trim, camns and posts that we distribute, as well as oustderior features that we
manufacture under the Synboa¥rdrand name. Synboard is produced from extruded &woffers several advantages over traditional wooc
features, such as greater durability and no ongmiamtenance such as periodic caulking and painting

Other Building Products & Service®ther building products & services consist of vasigproducts, including cabinets, gypsum, roofing
and insulation. This category also includes sesv&ech as turn-key framing, shell constructionjgieassistance and professional installation
of products spanning all our product categories.pdwide professional installation and turn-keygss as a solution for our homebuilder
customers. Through our installation services pnograe help homebuilders realize efficiencies thioigproved scheduling, resulting in
reduced cycle time and better cost controls. Wiebelthese services require scale, capital andstiqation that smaller competitors do not
possess.

MANUFACTURING

Our manufacturing facilities utilize the latéschnology and the highest quality materialsiipriove product quality, increase efficiency,
reduce lead times and minimize production errossakesult, we believe we incur significantly loveeigineering and sefp costs than do ol
competitors, contributing to improved margins andtomer satisfaction. We manufacture products withiee of our product categories:
prefabricated components, millwork, and windows dadrs.

Prefabricated Components — Trusses and Wall Pamalss and wall panel production has two steps —gdeand fabrication. Each
house requires its own set of designed shop drawimlgich vary by builder type: production versustom builders. Production builders use
prototype house plans as they replicate houseselt@use plans may be minimally modified to suhildual customer demand. The num
of changes made to a given prototype house, anadutmber of prototype houses used, varies by bu#dddrtheir construction and sales
philosophy. We maintain an electronic master filérosses and wall panels for each builder’s pyqiethouses. There are three primary
benefits to master filing. First, master filingasst effective as the electronic master file isdusgher than designing the components
individually each time the prototype house is bi8kcond, it improves design quality as a housessgeh is based on the proven prototype
except for any minor builder modifications. Thirdaster filing allows us to change one file and upddl related prototype house designs
automatically as we improve the design over timasothe builder modifies the base prototype hod&edo not maintain a master file for
custom builders who do not replicate houses, iasibt cost effective. For these builders, the congmts are designed individually for each
house.
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After we design shop drawings for a given lepwge download the shop drawings into a propriesaffware system to review the design
for potential errors and to schedule the job fadpiction. The fabrication process begins by cutiimtividual pieces of lumber to required
lengths in accordance with the shop drawings. Wenttmad the shop drawings from our design departieeadmputerized saws. We
assemble the cut lumber to form roof trusses, fingses or wall panels, and store the finishedpmomants by house awaiting shipment to the
job site.

We generate fabrication time standards foheatnponent during the design step. We use thasdatds to measure efficiency by
comparing actual production time with the calcuastandard. Each plant’s performance is benchmarkedmparing efficiency across
plants.

Prefabricated Components — Engineered Wdadwith trusses and wall panels, engineered wootpoments have a design and
fabrication step. We design engineered wood flogisg a master filing system similar to the trusd wall panel system. Engineered wood
beams are designed to ensure the beam will betstallg sound in the given application. After thesthn phase, a printed layout is generated.
We use this layout to cut the engineered woodéeadiquired length and assemble all of the comparietd a house package. We then install
the components on the job site. We design anddateriengineered wood at the majority of our distidn locations.

Prefabricated Components — Staivge manufacture box stairs at several of our looatié\fter a house is framed, our salesman takes
measurements at the job site prior to manufactudragcount for any variation between the blueprand the actual framed house. We
fabricate box stairs based on these measurements.

Custom Millwork. Our manufactured custom millwork consists primaafysynthetic exterior trim, custom windows, feasiand box
columns that we sell throughout our company underSynboard brand name.

We sand, cut, and shape sheets of 4 foot tyyr 28 foot Celuka-blown, extruded PVC (“Synboarti’produce the desired product. We
produce exterior trim boards by cutting the Syntaato the same industry-standard dimensions useddodbased exterior trim boards. \
form exterior features by assembling pieces of $gnth and other PVC-based moldings that have beeheated and bent over forms to
achieve the desired shape. For custom windows uie the frame from Synboard and glaze the glassptace. We fabricate box columns
from sections of PVC that are cut on a 45 degregeaand mitered together.

WindowsWe manufacture a full line of traditional aluminamd vinyl windows at an approximately 200,000 squdaot manufacturing
facility located in Houston, Texas. The processiigedy purchasing aluminum and vinyl lineal extans. We cut these extrusions to size and
join them together to form the window frame anchs&8e then purchase sheet glass and cut it to\Wizecombine two pieces of identica
shaped glass with a sealing compound to creatasa ghit with improved insulating capability. Wenhnsert the sealed glass unit and glaze
it into the window frame and sash. The unit is ctatgal when we install a balance to operate the evindnd add a lock to secure the window
in a closed position.

Pre-hung DoorsWe pre-hang interior and exterior doors at mangwflocations. We insert door slabs and pre-cut ¢ioabs into a door
machine, which bores holes into the doors for ther dhardware and applies the jambs and hingesetddbr slab. We then apply the casing
that frames interior doors at a separate statigtertor doors do not have a casing, and insteadhmsg sidelights applied to the sides of the
door, a transom attached over the top of the doibramd a door sill applied to the threshold.

OUR STRATEGY

Our long-term strategy is to leverage our cetitipe strengths to grow sales, earnings, and ftashand remain a preferred supplier to the
homebuilding industry. We have modified our strgtagresponse to the extended downturn that hastafd our industry. Our strategy dur
the housing downturn is to maximize financial perfance without impairing our ability to compete amdate value in the long term. We
have implemented this strategy through generatavg lousiness, focusing on cost, working capital gmerating improvements, and most
importantly conserving cash.
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Expand Current Customer Bage.recent years, the homebuilding industry has tgwiee significant consolidation, with the larger
homebuilders substantially increasing their masketre. In accordance with this trend, our custdmase has increasingly shifted to
production homebuilders. We intend to leveragebusiness model, geographic breadth and scale tmoerto grow our sales to the
production homebuilders as they continue to gairketashare. We increased sales to our 10 largeduption homebuilders from 21.8% of
our net sales for the year ended December 31, @0P3.8% of our net sales for the year ended Deee®ib, 2010. During 2010, sales to our
top 10 production homebuilders increased 12.7% ewoeatpto our net sales to these same customer®th ¥0e expect that our ability to
maintain strong relationships with the largestderis will be vital to our ability to grow and exmhimto new markets as well as maintain our
current market share through the downturn. Addéityn during the downturn, we will continue withoplan to prudently expand our
presence in the custom homebuilder base whilesstilering to our tight credit standards.

Expand into Multi-Family and Light Commercial Busas.We believe we can diversify our customer base aod gur sales by further
expanding into the multi-family and light commeitdiasiness. While we primarily serve the single fgmew home construction market, we
continue to look for ways to expand our multi-fayréind/or light commercial market in certain regions

Focus on Cost, Working Capital and Operating ImgroentsWe are extremely focused on expenses and workipigat#o remain a low
cost supplier. We maintain a continuous improvenitmst practices” operating philosophy and redulanplement new initiatives to reduce
costs, increase efficiency and reduce working ehgdfor example, we have linked our computer systethose of some customers to
streamline the administrative aspects of the qgotimvoicing and billing processes. We also analygeworkforce productivity to determine
the optimal labor mix that minimizes cost, and ei®mour logistics function to reduce the cost dfdand freight. Our focus on cost controls,
working capital and operating improvements is patéirly important during this downturn. Our largesettrollable cost is our salaries and
wages. Since the beginning of the housing dowrituMarch 2006, we have reduced our average fuk tagquivalent headcount, excluding
discontinued operations, by 60.3%. We have beaugthiful in reducing our headcount as a number efrdductions were the result of
identifying and implementing operating efficienci¥ge were also able to reduce office general amdiridtrative expenses by $5.3 million
for 2010, among other reductions. Industry foremmasare predicting that single family housing staril show improvements in 2011 which
could require us to increase our operating expemsasicount and working capital in order to supfieetadditional demand. We will attempt
to minimize these increases to ensure that we ptlydadjust our variable costs with the changednging starts. We continue to be diliger
focused on the controllable aspects of workingtehncluding days sales outstanding, inventomsuand accounts payable days
outstanding.

Conserve CasltDuring a downturn, we realize the importance ofractuickly to conserve capital. We pulled back capital
expenditures in 2009 and 2008 to maintenance dagitals. In 2010, we increased our capital expemes due primarily to buyouts of
expiring vehicle and equipment leases. We also gwpar credit tightly, especially in these condiioAs industry conditions deteriorate, we
know it is important to extend credit prudently &ohigher probability of collection on our accourgseivable. Our bad debt expense
decreased $1.9 million in 2010 compared to 2009, mesult of our tighter credit policies.

Pursue Strategic Acquisition§he highly fragmented nature of the Pro Segmethet.S. residential new construction building prod
supply market presents substantial acquisition dppdies. Our long-term acquisition strategy, gaibjto our ability to secure long-term
capital, centers on the continued growth of oufgimécated components business and on the potdéotigeographic expansion. First, we will
selectively seek to acquire companies that manufagirefabricated components such as roof and ftaeses, wall panels, stairs, and
engineered wood, as well as other building prodsieth as millwork. We will also seek to acquire pamies that present an opportunity to
add manufacturing capabilities in a relatively shp@riod of time. Second, there are a number odetive homebuilding markets where we do
not currently operate. We believe that our proveerating model can be successfully adapted to tmaskets and that the homebuilders in
these markets, many of whom we currently servendises, would value our broad product and servideriofy, professional expertise, and
superior customer service. When entering a new etaokir strategy is to acquire market-leading ifistors and subsequently expand their
product offerings and/or add manufacturing faetivhile integrating their operations into our calited platform. This strategy allows us to
quickly achieve the scale required to maximize ipabflity and leverage existing customer relatidpstin the local market. Our senior
management team has the experience and abilithettify acquisition candidates and integrate adtjois, having acquired and integratec
companies since 1998. There may be opportunitieimdlustry consolidation in 2011 and we would likebe at the forefront of this trend.
However, liquidity is our primary area of focus4811, and therefore we will review potential acdigas in light of our projected liquidity
needs.
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SALES AND MARKETING

We seek to attract and retain customers thr@xgeptional customer service, leading produclityudroad product and service offerings,
and competitive pricing. This strategy is centesaduilding and maintaining strong customer refaltps rather than traditional marketing
and advertising. We strive to add value for the &ébuilders through shorter lead times, lower maltenats, faster project completion and
higher quality. By executing this strategy, we &eé we will continue to generate new business.

Our experienced locally focused sales fora the core of our sales effort. This sales effarblves deploying salespeople who are ski
in housing construction to meet with a homebuilslednstruction superintendent, local purchasingna@e local executive with the goal of
becoming the primary product supplier. If seledigdhe homebuilder, the salesperson and his otelaen of experts review blueprints for the
contracted homes and advise the homebuilder irsagzh as opportunities for cost reduction andregjiaesthetic preferences. Next, the
team determines the specific package of our predhet are needed to complete the project and sdsed sequence of site deliveries. Our
large delivery fleet and comprehensive inventoryagement system enable us to provide “just-in-tipretuct delivery, ensuring a smoot
and faster production cycle for the homebuilderolighout the construction process, the salespensdwes frequent site visits to ensure
timely delivery and proper installation and to makiggestions for efficiency improvements. We bdalithis level of service is highly valued
by our customers and generates significant custtogatty. At December 31, 2010, we employed apprately 344 sales representatives,
who are typically paid a commission based on gneasgin dollars collected and work with approximaté89 sales coordinators and product
specialists.

BACKLOG

Due to the nature of our business, backlogrin&tion is not meaningful. While our customers mayide an estimate of their future
needs, in most cases we do not receive a firm draer them until just prior to the anticipated deliy dates. Accordingly, in many cases the
time frame from receipt of a firm order and shipinéoes not exceed a few days.

MATERIALS AND SUPPLIER RELATIONSHIPS

We purchase inventory primarily for distritartj some of which is also utilized in our manufaicty plants. The key materials we purch
include dimensional lumber, OSB, engineered woaddaws, doors, and millwork. Our largest suppliars national lumber and wood
products producers and distributors such as BlueHioldings Inc., Boise Cascade Company, U.S. LumBanfor Wood Products and
Weyerhaeuser Company and building products manurfarst such as Masonite International Corporatioh,WIndows and Doors and Ply
Gem Windows. We believe there is sufficient supplthe marketplace to competitively source mostwfrequirements without reliance on
any particular supplier and that our diversity @pgliers affords us purchasing flexibility. Duedor centralized oversight of purchasing and
our large lumber and OSB purchasing volumes, wiewelwe are better able to maximize the advantafjbsth our and our suppliers’ broad
footprints and negotiate purchases in multiple retrko achieve more favorable contracts with resjoegrice, terms of sale, and supply than
our regional competitors. Additionally, for certainstomers, we institute purchasing programs onmaterials such as OSB to align portions
of our procurement costs with our pricing committsefiVe balance our lumber and OSB purchases wittx®f contract and spot market
purchases to ensure consistent quantities of ptoshoessary to fulfill customer contracts, to seysmoducts at the lowest possible cost, ai
minimize our exposure to the volatility of commagdiimber prices.

We currently source products from approxima8B00 suppliers in order to reduce our dependenany single company and to
maximize purchasing leverage. Although no matepalshased from any single supplier representec ih@n 9% of our total materials
purchased in 2010, we believe we are one of tlgesarcustomers for many suppliers, and therefore bignificant purchasing leverage. We
have found that using multiple suppliers ensursshble source of products and the best purchasingstas the suppliers compete to gain and
maintain our business.

We maintain strong relationships with our digsp, and we believe opportunities exist to im@@urchasing terms in the future, including
inventory storage or “just-in-time” delivery to netk our inventory carrying costs. We believe we @atain additional procurement cost
savings and purchasing synergies which would furhéance our margins and cash flow.
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COMPETITION

Due to the decline in housing starts, we renek will continue to experience increased competitor homebuilder business. Many of our
competitors in the Pro Segment market are smallag@ly owned companies, including framing and kbehstruction contractors, local and
regional materials distributors, single or multedumberyards, and truss manufacturing and milkaperations. Most of these companies
have limited access to capital and lack sophigitatformation technology systems and large-scaleysement capabilities. We believe we
have substantial competitive advantages over thresdler competitors due to our long-standing custoralationships, local market
knowledge and competitive pricing. Our largest cetiiprs in our markets are 84 Lumber Co. (a priyateld company), Stock Building
Supply (a privately held company, majority owned@gyres Group) and Pro-Build Holdings, Inc. (a ptéhaheld company, formerly Strober
Organization).

We compete in the Pro Segment of the U.Sdeasial new construction building products supphrket. According to 2010 U.S. Census
data, we have operations in 17 of the top 50 U.&rdpolitan Statistical Areas, as ranked by sirfighaily housing permits, and approximat
44% of U.S. housing permits in 2010 were issuestates in which we operate. We focus on a distirdifferent target market than the home
center retailers such as The Home Depot and Lowsdis,currently primarily serve do-it-yourself ancbfessional remodeling customers. By
contrast, our customers consist of professionaldimritders and those that provide construction sesvio them, with whom we develop
strong relationships. The principal methods of cetitipn in the Pro Segment are the developmenrgterm relationships with professiol
builders and retaining such customers by delivesitfigll range of high-quality products on time aftering trade credit, competitive pricing,
flexibility in transaction processing, and integservice and product packages, such as turnreyrfg and shell construction, as well as
prefabricated components and installation. Ouriteatharket positions in the highly competitive F¥egment create economies of scale that
allow us to cost-effectively supply our customevhjch both enhances profitability and reduces tble of losing customers to competitors.

EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2010, we had approximatelp@ falll-time equivalent employees, none of whomevapresented by a union. We
believe that we have good relations with our emgésy

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS

Our primary enterprise resource planning (“BRfystem, which we use for operations represerdipgroximately 98% of our sales, is a
proprietary system that has been highly customizedur computer programmers. The system has besigreel to operate our businesses in
a highly efficient manner. The materials requiredthousands of standard builder plans are stoyetiéosystem for rapid quoting or order
entry. Hundreds of price lists are maintained aufands of SKUs, facilitating rapid price changeshanging product cost environments. A
customer’s order can be tracked at each stageegfrtitess and billing can be customized to redueswmer’s administrative costs and
speed payment.

We have a single financial reporting systeat ttas been highly customized for our businesss@aated financial, sales and workforce
reporting is integrated using Hyperion Businesslligence system, which aggregates data from ol? &Rtems along with workforce
information from our thirdaarty payroll administrator. This technology platfoprovides management with robust corporate acatilon leve
performance management by leveraging standardistdas and analytics allowing us to plan, track esybrt performance and
compensation measures.

We have developed a proprietary program ferinur component plants. This software revieveglpct designs for errors, schedules the
plants and provides the data used to measure gffigiency. In addition, we have purchased seveoétivare products that have been
integrated with our primary ERP system. These aograssist in analyzing blueprints to generate nahtists, configure kitchen cabinet
orders to submit to manufacturers and purchasedumitoducts at the lowest cost.
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SEASONALITY AND OTHER FACTORS

Our first and fourth quarters have historigéleen, and are expected to continue to be, adyefected by weather patterns in some of
our markets, causing reduced construction actilfitaddition, quarterly results historically hawdlected, and are expected to continue to
reflect, fluctuations from period to period arisiftgm the following:

» The volatility of lumber prices

* The cyclical nature of the homebuilding indus

* General economic conditions in the markets in wihvehcompete
e The pricing policies of our competitol

e The production schedules of our customers;

* The effects of weathe

The composition and level of working capitgditally change during periods of increasing sakesve carry more inventory and
receivables. Working capital levels typically inase in the second and third quarters of the yeatalhigher sales during the peak residential
construction season. These increases have in ghegsalted in negative operating cash flows dutiiig peak season, which historically have
been financed through available cash. Collectioreoéivables and reduction in inventory levelsdwihg the peak building and construction
season have in the past helped to partially offéstnegative cash flow. We have also from timértee utilized our credit facility to cover
working capital needs.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requiretaar the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as aménaind in accordance therewith, we file
reports, proxy and information statements and atiffermation with the Securities and Exchange Cossion (“SEC”).Our annual reports ¢
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, curmeorts on Form 8-K, proxy and information stateteemd other information and
amendments to those reports filed or furnishedyansto Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitiestaxge Act of 1934 are available through
the investor relations section of our website uriderlinks to “SEC Filings.” Our Internet addressvww.bldr.com. Reports are available free
of charge as soon as reasonably practicable aéelectronically file them with, or furnish them the SEC. In addition, our officers and
directors file with the SEC initial statements ehieficial ownership and statements of change iefi@al ownership of our securities, which
are also available on our website at the sameitotatVe are not including this or any other infotima on our website as a part of, nor
incorporating it by reference into, this Form 1®Kany of our other SEC filings.

In addition to our website, you may read aoplycpublic reports we file with or furnish to th&S at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at
100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. You niatgio information on the operation of the Publiddtence Room by calling the SEC at
1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internetlisitecontains our reports, proxy and informatiatesnents, and other information that
we electronically file with, or furnish to, the SEEEwww.sec.gov.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Floyd F. Sherman, Chief Executive Officer, Presidamd Director, age 7IMr. Sherman has been our Chief Executive Officer an
director since 2001, when he joined the companyséteed as President of the company from 2001 Owetibber 2006 and from
February 2008 to the present. Prior to joiningadbmpany, he spent 28 years at Triangle Pacific/fnong Flooring, the last nine of which he
served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. 8rerman is currently a director of PGT, Inc. and.C Overhead Doors, Inc.
Mr. Sherman has over 40 years of experience ibtfilding products industry. A native of Kerhonksdtew York and a veteran of the U.S.
Army, Mr. Sherman is a graduate of the New York&@ollege of Forestry at Syracuse University. e &olds an M.B.A. degree from
Georgia State University.
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M. Chad Crow, Senior Vice President and Chief FomahOfficer, age 42Mr. Crow joined the company in September 1999 asstant
Controller. He served as Vice President — Contrafehe company from May 2000 and was promoteS8enior Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer in November 2009. Prior to joigithe company, Mr. Crow served in a variety of poss at Pier One Imports, most
recently as Director of Accounting. Mr. Crow alsastfive years of public accounting experience WititeWaterhouse. Mr. Crow is a C.P.A.
and received his B.B.A. degree from Texas Tech &hsity.

Donald F. McAleenan, Senior Vice President and @Gari@ounsel, age 56Vir. McAleenan has served as Senior Vice Presidedt a
General Counsel of the company since 1998. Primining the company, Mr. McAleenan served as \Reesident and Deputy General
Counsel of Fibreboard Corporation from 1992 to 1997 McAleenan was also Assistant General CouoBSAIT&E Corporation and spent
nine years as a securities lawyer at two New Ydtk [@w firms. Mr. McAleenan has a B.S. from Geden University and a J.D. from
New York University Law Schoo

Morris E. Tolly, Senior Vice President — Operatipage 67 Mr. Tolly has served as Senior Vice President —r@ipens of the company
since January 25, 2007. Mr. Tolly has been witHd&us FirstSource since 1998 when the company eedjiielican Companies, Inc.
(“Pelican”) and has over 40 years of experiendhénbuilding products industry. He served in a mgrof roles at Pelican, including sales,
Sales Manager and General Manager. Mr. Tolly wa&raa Vice President responsible for 12 locatiartha time of Pelican’s acquisition. In
2000, he was promoted to President of the compa@ytgheast Group, with responsibility for 48 looas.

Frederick B. Schenkel, Vice President — Manufantyrage 61Mr. Schenkel joined the company in 1998 when thagany acquired
Builders Supply and Lumber (“BSL”") from Pulte Hor@erporation. He became Vice President of the compat999 and was promoted to
Vice President — Manufacturing in 2002. Mr. Schdriias more than 30 years of experience managingfaeturing facilities in the
industry and, before joining BSL, held such posii@s manufacturing manager for The Ryland Graup, Vice President of Manufacturing
for Diversified Homes Corporation of Maryland, goidnt manager for Regional Building Systems, Inc. 8thenkel holds a B.A. in
accounting from Saint Bonaventure University.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Risks associated with our business, an investim our securities, and with achieving the fadviboking statements contained in this
report or in our news releases, websites, pubilig8, investor and analyst conferences or elsesyhieclude, but are not limited to, the risk
factors described below. Any of the risk factorsa#ed below could cause our actual results ferdihaterially from expectations and could
have a material adverse effect on our businesandial condition or operating results. We may nmiceed in addressing these challenges anc
risks.

The industry in which we operate is dependent upothe homebuilding industry, the economy, the creditmarkets, and other important
factors.

The building products industry is highly degent on new home construction, which in turn isesefent upon a number of factors,
including interest rates, consumer confidence, egipént rates, foreclosure rates, and the healtheoéconomy and mortgage markets.
Unfavorable changes in demographics, credit marketssumer confidence, housing affordability, areintory levels, or weakening of the
national economy or of any regional or local ecogamwhich we operate, could adversely affect comsuspending, result in decreased
demand for homes, and adversely affect our busifgesluction of new homes may also decline becafisbortages of qualified tradesmen,
reliance on inadequately capitalized homebuildacssub-contractors, and shortages of materialddtitian, the homebuilding industry is
subject to various local, state, and federal statudrdinances, rules, and regulations concerringg, building design and safety,
construction, energy conservation and similar matiacluding regulations that impose restrictieming and density requirements in order to
limit the number of homes that can be built witthie boundaries of a particular area. Increasedagay restrictions could limit demand for
new homes and could negatively affect our saleseandings. Because we have substantial fixed cedtdively modest declines in our
customers’ production levels could have a significadverse effect on our financial condition, ofiataresults and cash flows.

The homebuilding industry has been undergaisgnificant and sustained downturn that begami@2006. Challenging conditions still
persist even as, according to the U.S. Census Buagtual single family housing starts in the W&ing 2010 increased 5.9% from 2009.
believe that the ongoing market downturn is attable to a variety of factors including: a severermmic recession, followed by an
economic recovery that has been modest to datéetimredit availability; excess home inventori@substantial reduction in speculative
home investment; reduced consumer confidence; @fihtigusing demand. The downturn in the homebugdirdustry has resulted in a
substantial reduction in demand for our
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products and services, which in turn had a sigaifi@dverse effect on our business and operatsujtseduring fiscal years 2007 through
2010.

In addition, beginning in 2007, the mortgagerkets experienced substantial disruption duedeased defaults, primarily as a result of
credit quality deterioration. The disruption hastioued to date and has resulted in a stricterlaggny environment and reduced availability
of mortgages for potential homebuyers due to &juilll credit market, substantial declines in hogginices, and tighter standards to qualify
for mortgages. Mortgage financing and commerciatlitrfor smaller homebuilders continue to be sdyarenstrained. As the housing
industry is dependent upon the economy and emploi/taeels as well as potential homebuyers’ acaessdrtgage financing and
homebuilders’ access to commercial credit, itkslli that the housing industry will not recoverilinonditions in the economy and the credit
markets significantly improve and unemploymentsatecline.

We cannot predict the duration and magnituidéecurrent economic and market conditions, ertifming or strength of a future recovery
of housing activity in our markets, if any. We atsmnot provide any assurances that the homebgildd@ustry will not weaken further or tt
the operational strategies we have implementeddoeas the current market conditions will be susitgsContinued weakness in the
homebuilding industry would have a significant adheeeffect on our business, financial condition apérating results.

In view of the current housing downturn, we may beequired to take additional impairment charges relding to our operations or clost
under-performing locations.

During 2008, we recorded goodwill impairmehages of $39.9 million in continuing operationted to our Florida reporting unit and
$4.0 million in discontinued operations, net of,teedated to our Ohio reporting unit. During 200%& also recorded impairment charges
related to long-lived assets, other than goodwfl7.0 million in continuing operations and $0.1lion in discontinued operations, net of
tax. During 2009, we recorded an impairment chafdk).5 million in continuing operations to redube carrying value of a parcel of real
estate being held for sale. During 2010, we reabedeimpairment charge of $0.8 in continuing operat related to londived assets and la
held for sale. If the current weakness in the hamidimg industry continues, we may need to takeitaatthl goodwill and/or asset impairment
charges relating to certain of our reporting urtisy such non-cash charges would have an advefiesgt eh our financial results. In addition,
in response to industry and market conditions, vag trave to close certain facilities in under-perfiorg markets, although we have no
specific plans for additional facility closuresthis time. Any such facility closures could havsignificant adverse effect on our financial
condition, operating results, and cash flows.

Our level of indebtedness could adversely affect oability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to react
to changes in the economy or our industry, and preant us from meeting our obligations under our debtnstruments.

As of December 31, 2010, our funded debt vpgsaximately $165.0 million, which consisted of $2nillion of outstanding borrowings
under our senior secured revolving credit facil#$39.7 million of our Second Priority Senior SextliFloating Rate Notes due in 2016
(“2016 notes”), and $5.3 million of our remaininfp&ting Rate Notes due in 2012 (“2012 notes”). €emior secured revolving credit facility
is scheduled to mature in December 2012, but waliure in November 2011 if we have not repaid oeraéed the maturity of all of the
outstanding 2012 notes by that time. In additioa,have significant obligations under ongoing opegaleases that are not reflected in our
balance sheet.

As of December 31, 2010, all of our fundedtde#s at a variable interest rate. If interestgaise, our interest expense would increase.
However, interest expense on our 2016 notes, wdretsubject to a 3% floor, would not change unl¢BOR increased to greater than 3%.
Based on debt outstanding and LIBOR rates at DeeeBih 2010, a 1.0% increase in interest ratesdwadult in approximately $0.2 million
of additional interest expense annually.
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Our substantial debt could have important eqasnces to us, including:
* increasing our vulnerability to general economid ardustry conditions

e requiring a substantial portion of our cash flesed in operations to be dedicated to the paynfgrirzipal and interest on our
indebtedness, therefore reducing our ability toausecash flow to fund our operations, capital exprires, and future business
opportunities

e exposing us to the risk of increased interestsiadnd corresponding increased interest expeasaube a significant portion of our
borrowings are at variable rates of inter

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financinfgr working capital, capital expenditures, delbwia requirements, acquisitions, ¢
general corporate or other purposes;

« limiting our ability to adjust to changing marlainditions and placing us at a competitive disath@e compared to our competitors
who have less dek

In addition, some of our debt instrumentsjuding those governing our senior secured revolirgglit facility and our notes, contain
cross-default provisions that could result in oebibeing declared immediately due and payablerumdember of debt instruments, even if
we default on only one debt instrument. In suchévieis unlikely that we would be able to satisfyr obligations under all of such
accelerated indebtedness simultaneously.

Our financial condition and operating performo@ and that of our subsidiaries is also subjeptdéoailing economic and competitive
conditions and to certain financial, business, atiér factors beyond our control. There are norasses that we will maintain a level of
liquidity sufficient to permit us to pay the pripail, premium, and interest on our indebtednessnzk2611.

If our cash flows and capital resources asefiicient to fund our debt service obligations, may be forced to reduce or delay capital
expenditures, sell assets, seek additional capitagstructure or refinance our indebtedness. & hftsrnative measures may not be successfu
and may not permit us to meet our scheduled debicseobligations. In the absence of such operatisglts and resources, we could face
substantial liquidity problems and might be reqdite dispose of material assets or operations t&t mg& debt service and other obligations.
The credit agreement governing our senior secweealving credit facility and the indenture govemiour 2016 notes restrict our ability to
dispose of assets and to use the proceeds frondsmbsitions. We may not be able to consummatsetiispositions or be able to obtain the
proceeds that we could realize from them, and thesgeeds may not be adequate to meet any deliteseiligations then due.

We may have future capital needs and may not be abto obtain additional financing on acceptable terrs.

Given the ongoing housing downturn, we aresgartially reliant on cash on hand and our $150anikenior secured revolving credit
facility to provide working capital and fund oureyations. Our inability to renew or replace thisility when required or when business
conditions warrant, could have a material adveffeeton our business, financial condition, andilssof operations. As of December 31,
2010, our outstanding borrowings under this facivere $20 million, and our net available borrowgapacity in excess of our minimum
liquidity covenant was $22.6 million. Our inability borrow additional funds under this facilityftsd our working capital requirements and
our operations could have a significant adversecefin our financial condition, operating resutigl @ash flows.

Economic and credit market conditions, thégarance of the homebuilding industry, and our fiicial performance, as well as other
factors, may constrain our financing abilities. @bility to secure additional financing, if availaband to satisfy our financial obligations
under indebtedness outstanding from time to timed&pend upon our future operating performance abailability of credit, economic
conditions, and financial, business, and othewofactmany of which are beyond our control. The gmgkd continuation or worsening of the
current market and macroeconomic conditions tHattabur industry could require us to seek addalarapital and have a material adverse
effect on our ability to secure such capital orofable terms, if at all.

We may be unable to secure additional finaoinfinancing on favorable terms or our operatiagh flow may be insufficient to satisfy
our financial obligations under indebtedness ountiitag from time to time, including our 2012 notesr 2016 notes, and our senior secured
revolving credit facility. The credit agreement goring our senior secured revolving credit faciéityd the indenture governing the 2016
notes, moreover, restrict the amount of permittetbtedness allowed. In addition, if financing @ available when needed, or is availabl
unfavorable terms, we may be unable to take adgerdfibusiness opportunities or respond to comypetiressures, any of which could have
a material adverse effect on our business, finooiadition, and results of
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operations. If additional funds are raised throtighissuance of additional equity or convertiblbtdeecurities, our stockholders may
experience significant dilution.

We may incur additional indebtedness.

We may incur additional indebtedness underseaior secured revolving credit facility, whiclopides for up to $150.0 million of
revolving credit borrowings. Given the severe hngsiownturn, we are currently substantially reliantour cash on hand and our credit
facility to fund our operations. In addition, we yriae able to incur substantial additional indebt&sdnin the future, including collateralized
debt, subject to the restrictions contained indteslit agreement governing our senior secured vengkredit facility and the indenture
governing our 2016 notes. If new debt is addedutocarrent debt levels, the related risks that we face could intensify.

Our debt instruments contain various covenants thatimit our ability to operate our business.

Our financing arrangements, including our sesecured revolving credit facility and the indeetgoverning our 2016 notes, contain
various provisions that limit our ability to, amoaother things:

» transfer or sell assets, including the equity idés of our restricted subsidiaries, or use asdetpsoceeds
* incur additional debt

» pay dividends or distributions on our capital stockepurchase our capital sto

* make certain restricted payments or investme

+ create liens to secure de

» enter into transactions with affiliate

* merge or consolidate with another company orinastto receive the benefits of these financingragements under a “change in
contro” scenario (as defined in those agreements)

* engage in unrelated business activit

At December 31, 2010, our net available boimgweapacity under our senior secured revolvinglitrfecility in excess of the required
$10 million liquidity covenant was $22.6 millionhis covenant calculates as eligible borrowing Besg outstanding borrowings. The
resulting amount must equal or exceed a minimumidity requirement, ranging from $10.A-&75 million, or we are required to meet a fi
charge coverage ratio of 1:1, which we currentlpldaot meet. The fixed charge coverage ratio findd as the ratio of earnings before
interest expenses, income taxes, depreciationaamudtization expenses minus capital expendituigsh) taxes paid, dividends, distributions
and share repurchases or redemptions to the ssohetluled principal payments and interest expemsetiling 12 month basis from the
trigger date. Based on our 2011 forecast, we willmeet the fixed charge coverage ratio, but wicipate that we will not fall below the
required minimum liquidity covenant in 2011 andr#éfere, will not trigger the fixed charge coverag#o requirement. The calculation allc
cash on deposit with the agent to be includedigibkd borrowing base. Further declines in our baiing base, if any, could compel us to
either repay outstanding borrowings under the ses@oured revolving credit facility or increasetcas deposit with the agent.

These covenants may restrict our ability tpagd or fully pursue our business strategies. ®ilityato comply with these and other
provisions of the credit agreement governing onigesecured revolving credit facility and the intlere governing our 2016 notes may be
affected by changes in our operating and finarpeiormance, changes in general business and ed@oonditions, adverse regulatory
developments, a change in control or other evesysid our control. The breach of any of these canem) including those contained in our
senior secured revolving credit facility and thdenture governing our 2016 notes, could resultdefault under our indebtedness, which
could cause those and other obligations to becareeadd payable. If any of our indebtedness is acaid, we may not be able to repay it.
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We occupy most of our facilities under long-term no-cancelable leases. We may be unable to renew lesst the end of their terms. If
we close a facility, we are still obligated undette applicable lease.

Most of our facilities are located in leasedrpises. Many of our current leases are non-callestand typically have initial terms ranging
from 5 to 15 years and most provide options towefue specified periods of time. We believe thatdes we enter into in the future will like
be long-term and non-cancelable and have simifewal options. If we close or idle a facility, méikely we remain committed to perform
our obligations under the applicable lease, whichilel include, among other things, payment of theeb@nt, insurance, taxes, and other
expenses on the leased property for the balantteedéase term. During the period from 2007 throR@h0, we closed or idled a number of
facilities for which we remain liable on the leasgigations. Our obligation to continue making edngayments in respect of leases for closed
or idled facilities could have a material adverfecat on our business and results of operationterAhtively, at the end of the lease term and
any renewal period for a facility, we may be unableenew the lease without substantial additi@oal, if at all. If we are unable to renew
facility leases, we may close or relocate a fagilithich could subject us to construction and otfeets and risks, which in turn could have a
material adverse effect on our business and restuitiperations. For example, closing a facilityeeduring the time of relocation, will redu
the sales that the facility would have contribui@dur revenues. Additionally, the revenue andigribfany, generated at a relocated facility
may not equal the revenue and profit generatelgeagxisting one.

We are a holding company and conduct all of our opations through our subsidiaries.

We are a holding company that derives allwfaperating income from our subsidiaries. All of assets are held by our direct and
indirect subsidiaries. We rely on the earnings eaxh flows of our subsidiaries, which are paidgdoy our subsidiaries in the form of
dividends and other payments or distributions, &zthour debt service obligations. The ability of subsidiaries to pay dividends or make
other payments or distributions to us will dependteeir respective operating results and may beicted by, among other things, the laws of
their jurisdiction of organization (which may linthe amount of funds available for the paymentividénds and other distributions to us),
terms of existing and future indebtedness and @berements of our subsidiaries, the senior secekadving credit facility, the terms of the
indenture governing our 2016 notes, and the cousradrany future outstanding indebtedness we osabsidiaries incur.

The building supply industry is cyclical and seasoal.

The building products supply industry is sabj® cyclical market pressures. Prices of buildingducts are subject to fluctuations arising
from changes in supply and demand, national ardriational economic conditions, labor costs, coitipet market speculation, government
regulation, and trade policies, as well as froniqaéc delays in the delivery of lumber and othesgarcts. For example, prices of wood
products, including lumber and panel products salgect to significant volatility and directly affieour sales and earnings. In particular, low
market prices for wood products over a sustainem@ean adversely affect our financial conditiopgerating results and cash flows, as can
excessive spikes in market prices. For the yeagagiecember 31, 2010, average market prices fardnmnd lumber sheet goods were
28.1% higher than the prior year primarily due &harp increase in market prices for lumber dutiiregfirst six months of 2010. Our lumber
and lumber sheet goods product category repres@8t8&bo of total sales for the year ended Decembg2@10. We have no ability to control
the timing and amount of pricing changes for buiddproducts. In addition, the supply of buildinggucts fluctuates based on available
manufacturing capacity. A shortage of capacityxmess capacity in the industry can result in sigaift increases or declines in market prices
for those products, often within a short periodimie. Such price fluctuations can adversely afeatfinancial condition, operating results .
cash flows.

In addition, although weather patterns affagtoperating results throughout the year, adweessther historically has reduced construc
activity in the first and fourth quarters in our rikets. To the extent that hurricanes, severe sidiotls, other natural disasters or similar
events occur in the markets in which we operatepoginess may be adversely affected. We anticipatefluctuations from period to period
will continue in the future.

The loss of any of our significant customers couldffect our financial health.

Our 10 largest customers generated approxiynaie8% and 23.8% of our sales for the years efdEzember 31, 2009 and 2010,
respectively. We cannot guarantee that we will t@@&nor improve our relationships with these custosror that we will continue to supply
these customers at historical levels. Due to tmeeatihousing downturn, many of our homebuildetauners have substantially reduced
construction activity. Some homebuilder customergehexited or severely curtailed building activitycertain of our markets. This trend is
likely to continue until there is a housing recovier our markets. Continuation of the current hagsiownturn could have a significant
adverse effect on our financial condition, opeigtiesults and cash flows.
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In addition to these factors, production homilelers and other customers may: (1) seek to pgecbame of the products that we currently
sell directly from manufacturers, (2) elect to efith their own building products manufacturing alstribution facilities, or (3) give
advantages to manufacturing or distribution intedi@ees in which they have an economic stake. Hitawh, continued consolidation among
production homebuilders could also result in a lmfssome of our present customers to our compestiftne loss of one or more of our
significant customers or deterioration in our rielas with any of them could significantly affectrdinancial condition, operating results and
cash flows. Furthermore, our customers are notiredjtio purchase any minimum amount of productsfts. The contracts into which we
have entered with most of our professional custermgically provide that we supply particular prothior services for a certain period of
time when and if ordered by the customer. Shoutdcastomers purchase our products in significaotlyer quantities than they have in the
past, such decreased purchases could have a ratkrisse effect on our financial condition, opmigtesults, and cash flows.

Our industry is highly fragmented and competitive,and increased competitive pressure may adverselyfatt our results.

The building products supply industry is higitagmented and competitive. We face significamhpetition from local and regional
building materials chains, as well as from privatelvned single site enterprises. Any of these cditgee may (1) foresee the course of
market development more accurately than we dojé€2¢lop products that are superior to our prodi8jshave the ability to produce or
supply similar products at a lower cost, (4) depedtronger relationships with local homebuilde®,adapt more quickly to new technologies
or evolving customer requirements than we do, phée access to financing on more favorable téhas we can obtain in the market. As a
result, we may not be able to compete successkullythem. In addition, home center retailers, vahti@ve historically concentrated their
sales efforts on retail consumers and small cotaracmay in the future intensify their marketirfpets to professional homebuilders.
Furthermore, certain product manufacturers selldisiibute their products directly to productioonfebuilders. The volume of such direct
sales could increase in the future. Additionallgmafacturers of products distributed by us maytetesell and distribute directly to
homebuilders in the future or enter into exclusiugplier arrangements with other distributors. @tidation of production homebuilders m
result in increased competition for their businégsally, we may not be able to maintain our ogagatosts or product prices at a level
sufficiently low enough for us to compete effeclivdf we are unable to compete effectively, ounafincial condition, operating results, and
cash flows may be adversely affected.

We are subject to competitive pricing pressure fromour customers.

Production homebuilders historically have é@isignificant pressure on their outside supplieliseep prices low because of their market
share and their ability to leverage such marketestmathe highly fragmented building products sypgpbustry. The current housing industry
downturn has resulted in significantly increasedipg pressures from production homebuilders ah@motustomers. These pricing pressures
significantly adversely affected our operating fesand cash flows during 2009 and 2010. In addjtamntinued consolidation among
production homebuilders, and changes in produdt@mebuilders’ purchasing policies or payment pcasti could result in additional pricing
pressure. In addition, as a result of the housowrdurn, several of our homebuilder customers ltefaulted on amounts owed to us or their
payable days have become extended as a resu#iofittancial condition, however, our accounts reakle days decreased in 2010 comp:
to 2009. Such payment failures or delays may dicanitly adversely affect our financial conditiompenating results, and cash flows.

The ownership position of affiliates of JLL Partners Inc. and Warburg Pincus LLC limits other stockholders’ ability to influence
corporate matters.

JLL Partners Inc. (*JLL") and Warburg Pinculs@ (“Warburg Pincus”) together own in excess of 5686ur outstanding common stock.
Five of our ten directors hold positions with aéftes of either JLL or Warburg Pincus. Accordinglil. and Warburg Pincus have significant
influence over our management and affairs and alvenatters requiring stockholder approval, inchgdthe election of directors and
significant corporate transactions, such as a mengether sale of our company or its assets. ¢higentrated ownership position limits ot
stockholders’ ability to influence corporate madtand, as a result, we may take actions that sdmer stockholders do not view as
beneficial. Additionally, JLL and Warburg Pincugan the business of making investments in comsasniel may, from time to time, acquire
and hold interests in businesses that competetlgil@cindirectly with us. These entities may afmarsue, for their own accounts, acquisition
opportunities that may be complementary to ourrmss, and, as a result, those acquisition opptigamay not be available to us. Further,
certain provisions of our amended and restatedficateé of incorporation and amended and restaggavis may limit your ability to influenc
corporate matters, and, as a result, we may tal@nadhat some of our stockholders do not viewerseficial.
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Our continued success will depend on our ability toetain our key employees and to attract and retaimew qualified employees.

Our success depends in part on our abiligttr@ct, hire, train, and retain qualified managleoperational, sales, and marketing personnel.
We face significant competition for these typegwiployees in our industry and from other indusiVe may be unsuccessful in attracting
and retaining the personnel we require to condudtexxpand our operations successfully. In addikesy, personnel may leave us and com
against us. Our success also depends to a signifigéent on the continued service of our senionagament team. We may be unsuccessful
in replacing key managers who either quit or refifee loss of any member of our senior manageneamt tor other experienced, senior
employees could impair our ability to execute ousibess plan, cause us to lose customers and reducet sales, or lead to employee
morale problems and/or the loss of other key emg#syIn any such event, our financial conditiorgrapng results, and cash flows could be
adversely affected.

The nature of our business exposes us to producability and warranty claims and other legal proceeéhgs.

We are involved in product liability and pratiwvarranty claims relating to the products we nfaciure and distribute that, if adversely
determined, could adversely affect our financiaidition, operating results, and cash flows. We mglymanufacturers and other suppliers to
provide us with many of the products we sell arsdriiute. Because we do not have direct controt the quality of such products
manufactured or supplied by such third-party sugpliwe are exposed to risks relating to the quafisuch products. In addition, we are
exposed to potential claims arising from the condfi®domebuilders and their subcontractors, foralhive may be contractually liable.
Although we currently maintain what we believe toduitable and adequate insurance in excess aletftinsured amounts, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to maintain suchrarsce on acceptable terms or that such insuraitigerevide adequate protection against
potential liabilities. Product liability claims cdre expensive to defend and can divert the attefietnanagement and other personnel for
significant periods, regardless of the ultimatecouate. Claims of this nature could also have a megahpact on customer confidence in our
products and our company. In addition, we are wetlon an ongoing basis in other types of legat@edings. We cannot assure you that
current or future claims will not adversely affectr financial condition, operating results, andncigws.

Product shortages, loss of key suppliers, and ouregendence on third-party suppliers and manufactures could affect our financial
health.

Our ability to offer a wide variety of prodsdb our customers is dependent upon our abiligbtain adequate product supply from
manufacturers and other suppliers. Generally, conlycts are obtainable from various sources asdfficient quantities. However, the loss
of, or a substantial decrease in the availabilitypooducts from our suppliers or the loss of kapier arrangements could adversely impact
our financial condition, operating results, andhctisws.

Although in many instances we have agreemaeitibisour suppliers, these agreements are gendealtyinable by either party on limited
notice. Failure by our suppliers to continue tomyps with products on commercially reasonablenteror at all, could put pressure on our
operating margins or have a material adverse effiectur financial condition, operating results, @adh flows. Shorterm changes in the cc
of these materials, some of which are subjectgnificant fluctuations, are sometimes, but not gisvpassed on to our customers. Our del
ability to pass on material price increases toaustomers could adversely impact our financial domd operating results, and cash flows.

A range of factors may make our quarterly revenuesind earnings variable.

We have historically experienced, and in thterfe will continue to experience, variability ieMenues and earnings on a quarterly basis.
The factors expected to contribute to this varigbihclude, among others: (1) the volatility ofiges of lumber, wood products and other
building products, (2) the cyclical nature of th@mebuilding industry, (3) general economic condisién the various local markets in which
we compete, (4) the pricing policies of our comioesi, (5) the production schedules of our custoyeerd (6) the effects of the weather. Tk
factors, among others, make it difficult to projeat operating results on a consistent basis, wimiai affect the price of our stock.
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We may be adversely affected by any disruption inwr information technology systems.

Our operations are dependent upon our infaomaéchnology systems, which encompass all ofneajor business functions. Our primary
ERP system, which we use for operations repregeagproximately 98% of our sales, is a propriesstem that has been highly customi
by our computer programmers. Our centralized firelmeporting system currently draws data from BRP systems. We rely upon such
information technology systems to manage and régiieénventory, to fill and ship customer ordersaotimely basis, and to coordinate our
sales activities across all of our products andises. A substantial disruption in our informati@ehnology systems for any prolonged time
period (arising from, for example, system capalaityts from unexpected increases in our volumeusibess, outages, or delays in our
service) could result in delays in receiving in@gtand supplies or filling customer orders andeadely affect our customer service and
relationships. Our systems might be damaged orrimgted by natural or man-made events or by compirtgses, physical or electronic
break-ins, or similar disruptions affecting thetgibInternet. There can be no assurance that slalgs] problems, or costs will not have a
material adverse effect on our financial conditioperating results and cash flows.

We may be adversely affected by any natural or mamade disruptions to our distribution and manufacturing facilities.

We currently maintain a broad network of disttion and manufacturing facilities throughout waithern and eastern U.S. Any serious
disruption to our facilities resulting from fireaghquake, weather-related events, an act of temgor any other cause could damage a
significant portion of our inventory and could nréély impair our ability to distribute our produscto customers. Moreover, we could incur
significantly higher costs and longer lead timesoagted with distributing our products to our omsérs during the time that it takes for us to
reopen or replace a damaged facility. In additay shortages of fuel or significant fuel cost @ases could seriously disrupt our ability to
distribute products to our customers. If any okthevents were to occur, our financial conditigrerating results, and cash flows could be
materially adversely affected.

We may be unable to successfully implement our grdtv strategy, which includes increasing sales of oyrefabricated components
and other value-added products, pursuing strategiacquisitions and opening new facilities.

Our long-term strategy depends in part on grgwur sales of prefabricated components and oflee-added products and increasing
market share. If any of these initiatives are mmicessful, or require extensive investment, ouwgranay be limited, and we may be unable
to achieve or maintain expected levels of growtth profitability.

Our long-term business plan also provides@mtinued growth through strategic acquisitions arghnic growth through the construction
of new facilities or the expansion of existing figs. Failure to identify and acquire suitableaisition candidates on appropriate terms c
have a material adverse effect on our growth giyateloreover, a significant change in our busin#ss,economy, or the housing market, an
unexpected decrease in our cash flow for any reasahe requirements of our senior secured rexgleredit facility or the indenture
governing our 2016 notes, could result in an irighiib obtain the capital required to effect newgaisitions or expansions of existing
facilities. Our failure to make successful acqinsis or to build or expand facilities, including méacturing facilities, produce saleable
product, or meet customer demand in a timely maooeid result in damage to or loss of custometticeiahips, which could adversely affect
our financial condition, operating results, andhcisws. In addition, although we have been sudoégsthe past in integrating 27
acquisitions, we may not be able to integrate therations of future acquired businesses with our mwan efficient and cost-effective
manner or without significant disruption to ourstkig operations. Acquisitions, moreover, involigngficant risks and uncertainties,
including uncertainties as to the future finangi@iformance of the acquired business, difficulti@sgrating acquired personnel and corporate
cultures into our business, the potential losseyf &mployees, customers or suppliers, difficulitieimtegrating different computer and
accounting systems, exposure to unforeseen ligilitf acquired companies, and the diversion ofagament attention and resources from
existing operations. We may be unable to succdgsfamplete potential acquisitions due to multifdetors, such as issues related to
regulatory review of the proposed transactions.riég also be required to incur additional debt isheotto consummate acquisitions in the
future, which debt may be substantial and may louit flexibility in using our cash flow from operans. Our failure to integrate future
acquired businesses effectively or to manage athiesequences of our acquisitions, including in@éasdebtedness, could prevent us from
remaining competitive and, ultimately, could adedysaffect our financial condition, operating resubnd cash flows.

Federal, state, local and other regulations couldripose substantial costs and/or restrictions on owperations that would reduce our
net income.

We are subject to various federal, state,|J@ral other regulations, including, among othérgdh, regulations promulgated by the
Department of Transportation and applicable toflaat of delivery trucks, work safety regulationr®mulgated by the Department of Labor’s
Occupational Safety and Health Administration, emgpient regulations promulgated by the United St&tpsal Employment Opportunity
Commission, accounting standards issued by thenEiabAccounting Standards Board or similar enditie
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and state and local zoning restrictions and bujldiodes. More burdensome regulatory requiremertteeise or other areas may increase our
general and administrative costs and adverselgtadigr financial condition, operating results, aagh flows. Moreover, failure to comply
with the regulatory requirements applicable to lousiness could expose us to substantial penat@sould adversely affect our financial
condition, operating results and cash flows.

We are subject to potential exposure to environmeat liabilities and are subject to environmental reglation.

We are subject to various federal, state,lacal environmental laws, ordinances, and regutatié\ithough we believe that our facilities
are in material compliance with such laws, ordirem@nd regulations, as owners and lessees ginmadrty, we can be held liable for the
investigation or remediation of contamination ontsproperties, in some circumstances, without kgmwhether we knew of or were
responsible for such contamination. No assurancéegrovided that remediation may not be requiimdtie future as a result of spills or
releases of petroleum products or hazardous sudestatihe discovery of unknown environmental coad&j more stringent standards
regarding existing residual contamination, or cleig legislation, laws, rules or regulations. Mbuedensome environmental regulatory
requirements may increase our general and adnatiisgrcosts and adversely affect our financial doma operating results, and cash flows.

We may be adversely affected by uncertainty in theconomy and financial markets, including as a restibf terrorism and the war in
the Middle East.

Instability in the economy and financial magkéncluding as a result of terrorism and the inghe Middle East and Afghanistan, may
result in a decrease in housing starts, which wadigersely affect our business. In addition, the welated setbacks or adverse
developments, including a retaliatory military legrior terrorist attack, may cause unpredictablendavorable economic conditions and could
have a material adverse effect on our financiatlt@mn, operating results, and cash flows. In d@dditany shortages of fuel or significant fuel
cost increases related to geopolitical conditiamdat seriously disrupt our ability to distributeopiucts to our customers. Terrorist attacks
similar to the ones committed on September 11, 206G affect our ability to keep our operations aadvices functioning properly and co
have a material adverse effect on our financiabldt@n, operating results, and cash flows.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

We have a broad network of distribution andhafacturing facilities in 9 states throughout tbethern and eastern U.S. We have 52
distribution facilities and 47 manufacturing fatiés, many of which are co-located in the followmgrkets:

Alabama Maryland/Virginia South Carolina

Auburn Baltimore/Washingtol Senec:

Central Alabami Northeast Marylan Charlestor
Columbia

Florida North Carolina Florence

Bunnell Charlotte Grand Stran

Emerald Coas Fayetteville Greenville

Jacksonville High Point Southeast South Carolil

Orlando Raleigh

South Floride Washingtor Tennessee

Tampa Western North Carolin Eastern Tenness:

Wilmington Knoxville

Georgia Nashville

Atlanta

Central Georgii Texas

Northern Georgii Dallas/Fort Wortt
San Antonic

Distribution centers typically include 15 t6 &cres of outside storage, a 60,000 square fothwase, 10,000 square feet of office space,
and 30,000 square feet of covered storage. Thédewdsea provides space for lumber storage anaigingt area for delivery while the
warehouse stores millwork, windows and doors. Tikxidution centers are usually located in indadtaireas with low cost
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real estate and easy access to freeways to maxdisizution efficiency and convenience. A majpuf the distribution centers are situated
on rail lines for efficient receipt of goods.

Our manufacturing facilities produce trusseal] panels, engineered wood, stairs, windows,pneg doors and custom millwork. In many
cases, they are located on the same premises dsstribyution facilities. Truss and panel manufaictg facilities vary in size from 30,000
square feet to 60,000 square feet with 8 to 10samfreutside storage for lumber and for finisheddg Our window manufacturing facility in
Houston, Texas has approximately 200,000 squate fee

We lease 51 facilities and own 20 faciliti€hese leases typically have an initial operatimgéeterm of 5 to 15 years and most provide
options to renew for specified periods of time. Ajarity of our leases provide for fixed annual edst Certain of our leases include
provisions for escalating rent, as an example,dasechanges in the consumer price index. Most®fdases require us to pay taxes,
insurance and common area maintenance expensesadasgavith the properties.

We operate a fleet of approximately 950 truckdeliver products from our distribution and miautiuring centers to job sites. Through
emphasis on local market flexibility and stratetiicplaced locations, we minimize shipping and diti costs while maintaining a high degree
of local market expertise. Through knowledge ofildwomebuilder needs, customer coordination anid ra@stocking ability, we reduce
working capital requirements and guard againstodigtock products. We believe that this reliabilgyhighly valued by our customers and
reinforces customer relationships.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are involved in various claims and lawsiritsdental to the conduct of our business in tiddrary course. We carry insurance
coverage in such amounts in excess of our self@ustetention as we believe to be reasonable uhdarircumstances and that may or may
not cover any or all of our liabilities in resp@dtclaims and lawsuits. We do not believe thatuhienate resolution of these matters will have
a material adverse effect on our consolidated Girmosition, cash flows or operating results.

Although our business and facilities are scije federal, state and local environmental retipia environmental regulation does not have
a material effect on our operations. We believe ¢ha facilities are in material compliance wittchdaws and regulations. As owners and
lessees of real property, we can be held liabl¢hfeiinvestigation or remediation of contaminationsuch properties, in some circumstances
without regard to whether we knew of or were resjfde for such contamination. Our current expendiwith respect to environmental
investigation and remediation at our facilities ari@imal, although no assurance can be providetdhtioae significant remediation may not
required in the future as a result of spills oeasles of petroleum products or hazardous substant®s discovery of unknown environmer
conditions, or changes in legislation, laws, rdesegulations.

Item 4. Reserved
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PART Il
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Skimlder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Our common stock is traded on the NASDAQ Stileikket LLC under the symbol “BLDR”. On February, 2811, the closing price of
our common stock as reported on the NASDAQ Stockketa LC was $2.39. The approximate number of dtottters of record of our
common stock on that date was 112, although wethat the number of beneficial owners of our mmm stock is substantially greater.

The table below sets forth the high and lolesarices of our common stock for the periodsdatid:

High Low

2010

First quartel $ 4.07 $ 281
Second quarte $ 4.3C $ 2.3¢
Third quartel $ 2.7: $ 1.9C
Fourth quarte $ 2.3¢ $ 1.4:
2009

First quartel $ 2.7z $ 0.8¢
Second quarte $ b5.1¢€ $ 1.8¢
Third quartel $ 8.6C $ 3.7¢
Fourth quarte $ 5.3C $ 3.5C

We have not paid regular dividends in the.pasy future determination relating to dividend igglwill be made at the discretion of our
board of directors and will depend on a numbemofdrs, including restrictions in our debt instrumse as well as our future earnings, capital
requirements, financial condition, prospects ariofactors that our board of directors may dedevamt. The terms of our $150 million
senior secured revolving credit facility and thdenture governing our 2016 notes currently restrictability to pay dividends. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€iahdition and Results of Operations — Liquidity aapital Resources” contained in
Item 7 of this annual report on Form 10-K.
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The following graph and table demonstratepisdormance of the cumulative total return to tteelkholders of our common stock during
the 5 year- period in comparison to the cumulatital returns of the Russell 2000 index and the 8&kding Products index. The graph and
table track the performance of a $100 investmenuimcommon stock and in each of the indexes (thighreinvestment of all dividends) from
December 31, 2005 to December 31, 2010.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Builders FirstSource, Inc., the Russell 20@:x
and the S&P Building Products Index

140

5120 -

5100

m 4

60

540

s20

m i
12/05 1206 1207 12/08 1209 1210
—— Bullders RrstSource, Inc. = = — Aussell 2000 == @ - - S5&P Building Products
Year Ended December 31
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

Builders FirstSource, In $100.0( $ 83.4: $ 33.7¢ $ 7.1¢ $ 17.97 $ 9.27
Russell 200( $100.0( $ 118.37 $116.5: $ 77.1¢F $ 98.11 $ 124.4¢
S&P Building Product $100.0( $ 107.3( $108.3: $ 64.1¢ $ 83.3¢ $ 78.17

22




Table of Contents

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected consolidated finandiata for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2002@08 and as of December 31, 2010
2009 were derived from our consolidated finandiatesnents that have been audited by PricewaterGaageers LLP, independent
accountants, and are included as Item 8 of this@meport on Form 10-K. Selected consolidatedrfoial data as of December 31, 2008 and
as of and for the years ended December 31, 2002@0®Iwere derived from our consolidated finansiatements that have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, but are not includeélite

The following data should be read in conjumttivith “Management’s Discussion and Analysis afdficial Condition and Results of
Operations” contained in Item 7 of this annual repa Form 10-K and with our consolidated finanatdtements and related notes included

as Item 8 of this annual report on Form 10-K.

Statement of operations data

Sales

Gross margir

Selling, general and administrative exper

Asset impairment

Facility closure cost

(Loss) income from continuing operations

(Loss) income from continuing operations per share
basic (2)

(Loss) income from continuing operations per share
diluted (2)

Balance sheet data (end of period

Cash and cash equivalel

Total asset

Total debt (including current portio

Stockholder' equity

Other financial data:

Depreciation and amortization (excluding discongithu
operations

Year Ended December 31

2010

$700,34:
131,75¢
194,09;
83¢

55¢
(94,297

$ (1.09
$ (1.09
$103,23

412,80

169,10:
159,50!

$ 15,43¢

2009 2008 2007 2006
(In thousands, except per share amount:

$677,88t $ 992,01 $1,468,42 $2,063,46
142,40¢ 215,54: 363,16 544,81-
201,40: 280,01( 341,94: 401,53¢
47C 46,94¢ 35C —
1,20( 1,192 101 —
(56,889 (120,58)) (2,607 71,23
$ (1.49 $ (3.10 $ (0.0 $ 1.92
$ (1.4 $ (3.10 $ (0.07) $ 1.81
$ 84,09¢ $ 106,89: $ 97,57« $ 93,25¢
434,95:; 521,14( 647,42: 748,51!
299,18: 319,22t 279,26¢ 319,20(
46,941 102,47 241,54° 256,86«
$ 17,91¢ $ 20,83 $ 22,44 $ 20,4

(1) (Loss) income from continuing operations imed a valuation allowance of $35.4 million, $3.@ion and $31.6 million against
primarily all of our deferred tax assets for thangeended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, assdéxtin Note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements included in I&of this annual report on Form-K.

(2) For the years ended December 31, 2009, 2%, and 2006, (loss) income from continuing openatper share — basic and diluted
— reflects an increase to the number of weightedsmeecommon shares by an adjustment factor ofrel@gd to the bonus element
created in connection with our common stock rigfifsring in January 2010. Also, the year ended Dexer 31, 2006 reflects the
impact of the adoption of the FASB guidance reqgithat unvested share-based payment awards th@ircmon-forfeitable rights to
dividends be considered participating securitiaslzanincluded in the computation of basic earnpgysshare using the two-class
method. See Note 2 to the consolidated financééstents included in Item 8 of this annual reparEForm 1(-K.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financiab@dition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of our financial cati@h and results of operations should be reacdmunction with the selected financial data
and the consolidated financial statements andegladtes contained in Iltem 6. Selected Financith Bad Item 8. Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data of this annual report on ForaKLeespectively. See “Risk Factors” containedtem 1A. Risk Factors of this annual
report on Form 10-K and “Cautionary Statement” agred in Iltem 1. Business of this annual reporForm 10-K for a discussion of the
uncertainties, risks and assumptions associatdtthdise statements.

OVERVIEW

We are a leading supplier and manufacturstrottural and related building products for restéd new construction in the U.S. We offer
an integrated solution to our customers providiranofacturing, supply and installation of a full gerof structural and related building
products. Our manufactured products include ounfgebuilt roof and floor trusses, wall panels astdirs, aluminum and vinyl windows,
custom millwork and trim, as well as engineered avtitat we design and cut for each home. We alssnase interior and exterior doors into
pre-hung units. Additionally, we supply our customeith a broad offering of professional grade dinig products not manufactured by us,
such as dimensional lumber and lumber sheet goadsus window, door and millwork lines, as wellabinets, roofing and gypsum
wallboard. Our full range of construction-relatesivdces includes professional installation, turg-keming and shell construction, and spans
all our product categories.

We group our building products into five pratiuategories:

» Prefabricated ComponentOur prefabricated components consist of wood feoat roof trusses, steel roof trusses, wall pas&s’s,
and engineered woo

*  Windows & DoorsOur windows & doors category is comprised of thenafacturing, assembly, and distribution of windcavsl the
assembly and distribution of interior and extedoor units.

* Lumber & Lumber Sheet GooLumber & lumber sheet goods include dimensionaldeamplywood, and OSB products used in on-
site house framing

»  Millwork. Millwork includes interior trim, exterior trim, camns and posts that we distribute, as well as oustderior features that
we manufacture under the Synboard brand ni

«  Other building products & service®ther building products & services are comprisegdrofiucts such as cabinets, gypsum, roofing
and insulation and services such as tey-framing, shell construction, design assistaand, professional installation spanning al
our product categorie

Our operating results are dependent on thewWalg trends, events and uncertainties, some a€hvaare beyond our control:

e Homebuilding IndustryOur business is driven primarily by the residentialv construction market, which is in turn depenadgron ¢
number of factors, including interest rates, consuconfidence, employment rates, foreclosure rates the health of the economy
and mortgage markets. Over the past few years, inamgbuilders significantly decreased their stgisause of lower demand and
an excess of home inventory. Due to the declif®imsing starts and increased competition for horfddgnbusiness, we have and
will continue to experience increased pressurewsmtargins. Housing starts remain at historically levels but industry forecasters
expect to see some improvement in 2011. We alddslieve there are several meaningful trends ithditate U.S. housing demand
will likely recover in the long term and that thereent downturn in the housing industry is likelyraugh in the cyclical nature of the
residential construction industry. These trendtuiahe relatively low interest rates, the aging ofi$iog stock, and normal population
growth due to birthrate exceeding death r

» Targeting Large Production Homebuildets.recent years, the homebuilding industry has tgwiee significant consolidation, with
the larger homebuilders substantially increasimgy tharket share. We expect that trend to accelehating this housing correction
due to the better liquidity positions of the largp@mebuilders relative to the smaller, less capid homebuilders. Our focus is on
maintaining relationships and market share witls¢hgustomers while balancing the competitive presswe are facing in our
markets with certain profitability expectations.rGales to the “Builder 100,” the country’s larg&e0 homebuilders, increased
13.4% during 2010, which is more than the overaltéase in housir
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starts in the United States for the year.a¥fgect that our ability to maintain strong relatibips with the largest builders will be vital
to our ability to grow and expand into new markaegsvell as maintain our current market share thnahg downturn. Additionally,
during the downturn, we plan to prudently expandaustom homebuilder base while maintaining ounttigredit standard:

* Expand into Mul-Family and Light Commercial Busine&§e continue to look for ways to expand our multifly and light
commercial business to further diversify our custotmase and lessen our dependence on -family new home constructio

e Use of Prefabricated Componenisior to the current housing downturn, homebuildeese increasingly using prefabricated
components in order to realize increased efficiearay improved quality. Shortening cycle time fra@rsto completion was a key
imperative of the homebuilders during periods afrsf) consumer demand. With the current housing dlawnthat trend has
decelerated as cycle time has less relevance. @astovho traditionally used prefabricated compasigior the most part, still do.
However, the conversion of customers to this prodtfering has slowed. We expect this trend to icard at least for the duration of
this downturn. In response, we have reduced ouufaaturing capacity and delayed plans to open raailities.

» Economic ConditionsEconomic changes both nationally and locally inmarkets impact our financial performance. Theding
products supply industry is highly dependent upew home construction and subject to cyclical mackeinges. Our operations are
subject to fluctuations arising from changes inpyand demand, national and local economic comukiti labor costs, competition,
government regulation, trade policies and othetofacthat affect the homebuilding industry sucll@sographic trends, interest
rates, single-family housing starts, employmenelgvconsumer confidence, and the availabilityretlit to homebuilders,
contractors, and homeowners. During 2007, the ragegnarkets experienced substantial disruptiortairereased defaults,
primarily as a result of credit quality deteriodati The disruption has continued and resultedstmieter regulatory environment and
reduced availability of mortgages for potential letmyers due to an illiquid credit market and tiglstandards to qualify for
mortgages. Mortgage financing and commercial cfedismaller homebuilders continue to be severelystrained. As the housing
industry is dependent upon the economy and emploi/teeels as well as potential homebuyers’ acagssdrtgage financing and
homebuilders’ access to commercial credit, itkslif that the housing industry will not recoverilinbnditions in the economy and
the credit markets substantially improve and unegmpknt rates declin

» Cost of MaterialsPrices of wood products, which are subject to catlmarket fluctuations, may adversely impact ofegancome
when prices rapidly rise or fall within a relatiyedhort period of time. We purchase certain malgriacluding lumber products,
which are then sold to customers as well as uselitest production inputs for our manufactured anefabricated products. Short-
term changes in the cost of these materials, séiwdioh are subject to significant fluctuationse aometimes passed on to our
customers, but our pricing quotation periods maytlour ability to pass on such price changes. Vg aiso be limited in our ability
to pass on increases on in-bound freight costaiopmducts due to the price of fuel. Our inabititypass on material price increases
to our customers could adversely impact our opsgatsults

« Controlling ExpensedAnother important aspect of our strategy is colitrglcosts and enhancing our status as a low-agktibg
materials supplier in the markets we serve. Weghase attention to managing our working capital apdrating expenses. We ha\
“best practices” operating philosophy, which enems increasing efficiency, lowering costs, impngwvorking capital, and
maximizing profitability and cash flow. We constigrdinalyze our workforce productivity to achieve thptimum, cosefficient labor
mix for our facilities. Further, we pay carefulettion to our logistics function and its effectaur shipping and handling cos
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CURRENT OPERATING CONDITIONS AND OUTLOOK

Challenging conditions in the homebuildingustty persisted throughout 2010, but it was thet fime in the past five years that the
housing industry experienced an increase in st@stactual single-family housing starts in the h8reased 5.9%, from 445,000 in 2009 to
471,100 in 2010. Despite this increase, the housitigstry continued to struggle due to the limigeghilability of credit to smaller
homebuilders and potential homebuyers, a slow enanecovery, and high unemployment rates, amohgrdactors. These difficult
conditions and the extreme volatility in the comiitypdharkets negatively impacted our 2010 resultst Srategy to mitigate these difficult
conditions principally consisted of generating rtawginess, implementing cost containment programshwihcluded reducing physical
capacity and adjusting staffing levels, managireglitrtightly and, most importantly, conserving cashring 2010, we closed or idled eight
locations and lowered our average full time eq@mtheadcount, excluding discontinued operatiopsirbadditional 2.4%, after decreasing it
by approximately 33.0% from 2008 to 2009. The réidns in payroll costs coupled with other cost rethns allowed us to reduce our
selling, general and administrative expenses b%3rém 2009. Our bad debt expense in 2010 decregkédnmillion from 2009 despite the
difficult economic conditions our customers facBdcause of these measures and others, we endgelatheith $103.2 million in cash. We
believe these efforts will not only benefit us e tshort-term but will allow us to be a more effitti organization in the long-term.

Housing conditions are expected to stabila@ewhat and potentially show a slight improvemar2d11. In fact, the NAHB is forecasting
555,000 single-family housing starts for 2011, 88% increase from 2010 actual starts. We believestrategy remains relevant in these
conditions and allows us to focus on conservingitldy while maintaining a viable operating platforWe have aggressively but prudently
cut costs during this downturn. In addition, weida we can continue to partially offset the lowdkof housing starts by expanding our
presence in the light commercial and médtnily segments, as well as increasing penetratitim our top customers. Finally, we will contin
to focus on working capital, diligently control dieto our customers and also work with our vendorgnprove our payment terms and
pricing on our products.

We still believe that the long-term outlook the housing industry is positive due to growttihia underlying demographics. At this point,
it is unclear if housing activity has hit bottomithwe believe our market leadership, financialrgite and operating efficiencies afford us the
ability to manage through the downturn. We will ioae to work diligently to achieve the appropribtdance of short-term cost reductions
while maintaining the expertise to grow the busin@hen market conditions improve. We want to cré&atg-term shareholder value and
avoid taking steps that will limit our ability t@mpete.

SEASONALITY AND OTHER FACTORS

Ouir first and fourth quarters have historigdleen, and are expected to continue to be, adyexected by weather patterns in some of
our markets, causing reduced construction actilfitaddition, quarterly results historically hawdlected, and are expected to continue to
reflect, fluctuations from period to period arisifigm the following:

» The volatility of lumber prices

* The cyclical nature of the homebuilding indus

* General economic conditions in the markets in whiehcompete
» The pricing policies of our competitol

» The production schedules of our customers;

* The effects of weathe

The composition and level of working capitgditally change during periods of increasing salesve carry more inventory and
receivables. Working capital levels typically inase in the second and third quarters of the yeataigher sales during the peak residential
construction season. These increases have in shegzalted in negative operating cash flows dutig peak season, which historically have
been financed through available cash. Collectioreoéivables and reduction in inventory levelsdeiing the peak building and construction
season have in the past helped to partially offéstnegative cash flow. We have also from timért utilized our credit facility to cover
working capital needs.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
Valuation Allowance

We evaluate our deferred tax assets on aeqliattasis to determine whether a valuation allovesis required. We assess whether a
valuation allowance should be established basesliodetermination of whether it is more likely thaot that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. In lighthe continued downturn in the housing market #ieduncertainty as to its length and
magnitude and the additional asset impairmentsdecoduring 2008, we were in a three-year cumuddtigs position. Cumulative losses in
recent years represent significant negative evielémconsidering whether deferred tax assets atzable, and also usually preclude relying
on projections of future taxable income to suppleetrecovery of deferred tax assets. Thereforeng@008, we recorded a valuation
allowance totaling $41.2 million against primardly of our net deferred tax assets, of which $3dilion related to our continuing operatio
$3.0 million related to other comprehensive (losspme and $6.6 million related to our discontinopérations. We excluded the deferred
tax liabilities related to certain indefinite livéatangibles when calculating the amount of valratllowance needed as these liabilities
cannot be considered as a source of income whemdeing the realizability of the net deferred tssets. The valuation allowance was
recorded as a reduction to our 2008 income taxftieviée recorded an additional valuation allowané@pproximately $35.4 million and
$3.9 million related to our continuing operation2010 and 2009, respectively.

The deferred tax assets for which there igaloation allowance relate to amounts that carebézed through future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences or through the geaimeraf sufficient taxable income. To the extent generate sufficient taxable income in
future to fully utilize the tax benefits of the rigferred tax assets on which a valuation allowavae recorded, our effective tax rate may
decrease as the valuation allowance is reversed.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table sets forth the percentegjationship to sales of certain costs, expensdsramome items for the years ended
December 31:

2010 2009 2008

Sales 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Cost of sale: 81.2% 79.(% 78.2%

Gross margir 18.8% 21.(% 21.71%
Selling, general and administrative exper 27.1% 29.7% 28.2%
Asset impairment 0.1% 0.1% 4.8%
Facility closure cost 0.1% 0.1% 0.1%

Loss from operation (9.2)% (8.9% (11.9%
Interest expense, n 4.5% 4.C% 2.€%
Income tax benef (0.2)% (4.5)% (1.8%
Loss from continuing operatiol (13.9% (8.9% (12.29%
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (0.2% (0.9% (1.9%
Net loss (13.0% (9.1)% (14.9%

2010 Compared with 2009

In 2010 we experienced extreme volatilityie tommodity markets, especially during the firdf bf 2010, resulting in a 28.1% increase
in average market prices on our lumber and lumbeetsgoods when compared to 2009. Single-familysimgustarts in our markets increased
approximately 6.5%, while single-family units una@enstruction in our markets decreased approxim#&te% from 2009.

Sales Sales for the year ended December 31, 2010 we@ 37dllion, a 3.3% increase from sales of $677iion for 2009. The
increase in our sales was primarily due to thecésfef commodity inflation partially resulting frodemand created by the federal tax credit
for first-time homebuyers, which expired in thesfihalf of 2010. As the housing industry continbedtruggle during 2010, we maintained
our tightened credit policies in order to avoiditakany unnecessary credit risks. While these ¢igbtedit standards may reduce our growth
potential, they are designed to limit our expogarkarge write-offs of uncollectible receivable &ates in the future. We do, however, believe
that we were able to slightly increase share withBuilder 100 customers.
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The following table shows sales classifiechimjor product category (dollars in millions):

2010 2009
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales % Change
Prefabricated componer $ 135k 19.2% $ 129.¢ 19.1% 4.4%
Windows & doors 161.1 23.(% 164.( 24.2% 1.9%
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 201.¢ 28.8% 164.¢ 24.2% 22.2%
Millwork 75.¢ 10.8% 72.¢ 10.7% 4.2%
Other building products & servici 126.5 18.1% 146.7 21.7% (13.9%
Total sales $ 700.: 100.(% $ 677.¢ 100.(% 3.2%

Our sales increase was due primarily to aregee in price, partially offset by a slight deseea volume. For the lumber and lumber sheet
goods category, price accounted for approximat&¥ @f our sales increase in this product categdmyewnit volume accounted for 5% of
the increase. This equates to $35.1 million and@ #iillion in sales increases due to price and veuraspectively, within this product
category.

Our sales mix shifted away from other buildprgducts and services during the year. This cayegdich includes labor revenue on
installed services, declined as a percentage e$ satgely due to 28% commaodity inflation during frear and a decrease in multi-family
construction, which was down approximately 53%.

Gross Margin.Gross margin decreased $10.7 million to $131.8nillOur gross margin percentage decreased fro8%2ih 2009 to
18.8% in 2010, a 2.2 percentage point decline.gdass margin percentage decreased by 2.6 percemags due to price, due to the
negative impact of the commaodity price volatiliges during the first half of 2010, along with vegmpetitive pricing conditions. Our gross
margin percentage increased 0.3 percentage paiettodsolume (as a result of fixed costs withintefgoods sold) and 0.1 percentage pc¢
due to a shift in sales mix. If difficult econonm@onditions persist, we could continue to see aulkti pressure on our gross margin.

Selling, General and Administrative Expensaslling, general and administrative expenses dsete®7.3 million, or 3.6%. Our office
general and administrative expense decreased $igpprimarily due to a $1.0 million decreasedapreciation expense, a $1.2 million
litigation settlement we received in 2010, as wasl$3.2 million of recapitalization costs we inearin 2009. Additionally, bad debt expense
decreased $1.9 million due to tightened creditddads,

As a percent of sales, selling, general amdimidtrative expenses decreased from 29.7% in 20@9.7% in 2010. Our office general and
administrative expense as a percentage of salesadex] 0.9%, delivery costs decreased by 0.3%paocy decreased by 0.3% due to the
fixed nature of the category and bad debt expeaseedsed by 0.3%. We will continue to monitor gperating cost structure closely and
make adjustments as necessary.

Interest Expense, ndhterest expense was $31.7 million in 2010, angase of $4.6 million. The increase was primarilg tluhigher
interest rates on our 2016 notes issued in JarRed§, combined with the write-off of $1.6 millioi ehamortized debt issuance costs related
to long-term debt repaid, $2.5 million of costsuned related to our recapitalization transactamd the write-off of $0.6 million in debt
issuance costs related to the reduction of ourlvexgcredit facility from $250 million to $150 niiibn in 2010. These increases were partially
offset by lower average debt balances and a wfitef&1.2 million in debt issue costs and $1.6lioil of expense related to the settlement of
one of our swaps in 2009.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expen&®e recorded an income tax benefit of $1.1 millieming 2010 compared to a benefit of $30.8 million
during 2009. Our benefit was reduced by an afterrtan-cash valuation allowance of $35.4 milliord &3.9 million related to our net
deferred tax assets for 2010 and 2009, respectieB009, we recognized a $2.1 million income liaxefit in continuing operations related
to losses generated by our discontinued operatinago recently enacted tax legislation that alldfer an extended carry-back of net
operating losses generated in 2009. Excluding #ihgation allowance, our effective tax rate wouldénheen 38.3 percent for 2010. Excluc
the valuation allowance and the impact of the ckangax law for 2009, our effective tax rate wohbive been 37.2 percent for 2009.

Discontinued Operations, ndtoss from discontinued operations was $1.2 millio@010 compared to $5.0 million in 2009. In 20de,
recognized $1.1 million in expense related to feitoninimum lease obligations on closed facilitied egvisions to sub-rental income
estimates. In 2009, we recognized $2.4 million¥pense related to future minimum lease obligatmmslosed facilities and employee
severance. We also reduced our expense in 2002.Byndllion due to a negotiated lease terminatidme

28




Table of Contents
remaining loss from discontinued operations wamarily related to operating losses incurred in ©@aio market which we exited in 2009.

2009 Compared with 2008

Macroeconomic factors continued to declingslyan 2009 as both housing starts and commodityder and lumber sheet goods prices
were down year-over-year. Single-family housingtstan our markets decreased approximately 28.3%ewarket prices for lumber and
lumber sheet goods were on average approximated®d dwer than 2008. Single-family units under d¢amndion in our markets decreased
approximately 37.7% from 2008.

Sales Sales for the year ended December 31, 2009 were $@Tillion, a 31.7% decrease from sales of $983Ion for 2008. The
decline in our sales was primarily due to the declh single family housing starts in our mark&aring 2009, we further tightened our cre
policies. As the housing industry continued to bieglit became even more important for us to extedit prudently in order to avoid taking
any unnecessary credit risks. This also contribtdezlir sales decline. Although these tighter ¢retdindards reduce our growth potential,
they also limit our exposure to large write-offsumicollectible receivable balances in the futurer Dstalled product sales were down less
than the overall decline in single-family units endonstruction in our markets as we continuedkfard into the multi-family and light
commercial market. Additionally, we believe that were able to slightly increase share with our @il100 customers.

The following table shows sales classifiechimjor product category (dollars in millions):

2009 2008
Sales % of Sales Sales % of Sales % Change
Prefabricated componer $ 129.¢ 19.1% $ 194.2 19.6% (33.2%
Windows & doors 164.( 24.2% 248.t 25.1% (34.0%
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 164.€ 24.2% 238.7 24.1% (31.0%
Millwork 72.8 10.7% 102.¢ 10.4% (29.2)%
Other building products & servici 146.% 21.1% 207.¢ 20.8% (29.9%
Total sales $ 677.€ 100.(% $ 992.( 100.(% (3L.9%

We have felt the negative effect of decredmmgsing starts across all our product categoriesgoily due to volume declines. For the
lumber & lumber sheet goods category, our unit r@waccounted for 84% of our sales decline in thoslpct category while our prices
accounted for 16% of the decline. This equate$®Gmillion and $12.1 million in sales declinegda volume and price, respectively.

Our sales mix continued to shift toward otheilding products and services during the yearsThitegory grew as a percentage of sales
due to expansion of our installation services snfulti-family and light commercial market. We le#i¢ our installation business and our
value-added products and services give us a cotiveedidvantage helping us to attract new businagsglthe down cycle.

Gross MarginGross margin decreased $73.1 million to $142.4ionillThe gross margin percentage decreased fron¥2ih 2008 to
21.0% in 2009, a 0.7 percentage point decline.gbess margin percentage decreased 0.6 percentage goe to volume (as a result of fixed
costs within cost of goods sold) and 0.3 percenpagets due to a shift in sales mix toward instaleoduct sales, which carry a lower gross
margin percentage. Our gross margin percentageéased by 0.2 percentage points due to price. Weriexgged margin compression across
most product categories due to competition and i@ates volumes against fixed costs in our manufang facilities. If economic conditions
continue to deteriorate, we could see further nmacgmpression.

Selling, General and Administrative Expensaslling, general and administrative expenses desete®78.6 million, or 28.1%. Average
full-time equivalent employee headcount, excludifggontinued operations, decreased 33.0% compar2@08, while our salaries and
benefits, excluding stock compensation, decreagbdldmillion, or 28.8%, compared to a 28.9% deciinsales volume. We will continue to
consider in-market consolidations and facility clieess based on specific market conditions. Additigndelivery expenses decreased
$13.9 million, stock compensation expense decre®Seéiimillion, our office general and administratixpense decreased $9.0 million, and
occupancy expenses decreased $3.7 million from.2008

As a percent of sales, selling, general amdigidtrative expenses increased from 28.2% in 200.7% in 2009. Salaries and benefit
expense as a percentage of sales increased 0.Z&pamcy by 0.5% due to the fixed nature of thegate and delivery costs
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by 0.4%. Stock compensation expense as a percestagées decreased 0.5%. We continue to monitooperating cost structure closely
make adjustments as necessary.

Asset Impairment#isset impairments was $0.5 million in 2009 compane#i46.9 million in 2008. In 2009, we recordedasset
impairment charge of $0.5 million related to land lave held for sale. During 2008, the continuedinie in the macroeconomic factors that
drive our business and the unfavorable economiofsithat existed caused us to revise our expentatind assess the recoverability of our
long-ived assets. Based upon the results of our assegsnwe determined the carrying amounts of ceasgets exceeded their estimated
values. We recorded goodwill impairment charge$3%.9 million related to our Florida reporting uaitd recorded other asset impairment
charges of $7.0 million, which consisted of $4.4liom of other intangible assets, $2.2 million of€fd assets and $0.4 million related to land
held for sale.

Interest Expense, ndhterest expense was $27.0 million in 2009, angase of $1.4 million. The increase was primarilg tluthe write-
off in 2009 of $1.2 million in debt issue costsated to the reduction of our revolving credit fagifrom $350 million to $250 million in 2009
and $1.6 million in expense recorded related tes#tdement of one of our swaps. These increases pegtially offset by lower average
interest rates in 2009.

Income Tax (Benefit) Expen&®e recorded an income tax benefit of $30.8 millilmming 2009 compared to a tax benefit of $17.7ianill
during 2008. Our benefit was reduced by an afterrtan-cash valuation allowance of $3.9 million &31.6 million related to our net
deferred tax assets for 2009 and 2008, respectileB009, we recognized a $2.1 million income liaxefit in continuing operations related
to losses generated by our discontinued operatinago recently enacted tax legislation that alldfer an extended carry-back of net
operating losses generated in 2009. Excluding #ihgation allowance and the impact of this changaxrlaw for 2009, as well as the non-
deductible portion of the goodwill impairment fdd@B, our effective tax rate would have been 37r2qre and 38.0 percent for 2009 and
2008, respectively.

Discontinued Operations, ndtoss from discontinued operations was $5.0 millio2009 compared to $18.9 million in 2008. In 2008,
exited the New Jersey market and closed two faslin Ohio. We recognized $2.4 million and $7.4lioni in expense related to future
minimum lease obligations on closed facilities antployee severance in 2009 and 2008, respectiédyalso reduced our expense in 2009
by $1.8 million due to a negotiated lease termaratin 2008, we also recorded a $4.0 million godidwipairment charge related to our Ohio
operations. The remaining loss from discontinueerations in 2009 and 2008 was primarily relatedgerating losses.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our primary capital requirements are to furatking capital needs and operating expenses, ragatred interest and principal payments,
and fund capital expenditures. In the past, ouiteamsources have primarily consisted of castv$lérom operations and borrowings under
our credit facility. Additionally in January 201@¢e completed a rights offering and debt exchangetwieduced our indebtedness by
$130.0 million, extended the maturity of $139.7lioil of indebtedness until 2016, and provided uthwet proceeds of approximately
$65 million, after paying for expenses relatedh® transaction (See Note 8 to the consolidatediahstatements included in Item 8 of this
annual report on Form 10-K). The homebuilding indysand therefore our industry, has been in argeaad significant downturn which
began almost five years ago. We expect the housthgstry to stabilize and potentially show a slighprovement in 2011. Beyond 2011, i
difficult for us to predict what will happen as dadustry is dependent on a number of factorsuitiolg national economic conditions,
employment levels, the availability of credit fasrhebuilders and potential home buyers, the levématlosures, existing home inventory,
and interest rates. With the sustained downtutherhousing industry, our operations are no lopgeviding positive cash flows, and we are
not expecting our cash flows from operations t@bsitive in the near term.
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Availability under our $150 million senior sged revolving credit facility is determined by arltbwing base. The following table shows
our borrowing base, excess availability, borrowérngilability and fixed charge ratio as of DecemBgy (in millions):

2010 2009

Accounts Receivable Availabilit $ 42.¢ $ 42:
Inventory Availability 26.4 18.7
Equipment Availability 2.8 4.1
Gross Availability 72.1 65.1

Less:
Agent Reserve (3.9 (8.5
Borrowing Base 68.5 56.€

Plus:
Qualified Cast — 15.7

Less:
Outstanding Borrowing (20.0 (20.0
Letters of Credi (15.9 (17.9
Excess Availability $ 32.¢€ $ 35.C

Less:
Minimum Liquidity Requiremen (10.0 (35.0
Borrowing Availability $ 22.¢ $ —
Actual Fixed Charge Coverage Ra -2.06 > -1.68)>
Required Fixed Charge Coverage Ra 1.00)» 1.00)»

* Required to be met only if excess availabilitygdlelow our minimum liquidity requiremel

Our borrowing base consists of trade accogusivable, inventory and fixed assets, which mspetific criteria contained within the cre
agreement, minus agent specified reserves. Ouoworg base availability, net of the minimum liquidrequirement, at December 31, 2010
was $22.6 million. Excess availability is the sufiborrowing base plus qualified cash, defined ahan deposit with the agent subject to a
control agreement, minus outstanding borrowingslattdrs of credit. This amount must equal or eBca@specified minimum liquidity
requirement (See Note 8 to the consolidated firrstatements included in Item 8 of this annuabrepn Form 10-K), at the monthly
reporting dates or we are required to meet a fotetge coverage ratio of 1 to 1, which we currewibyild not meet.

Further declines in our borrowing base, if,aaguld compel us to either repay outstanding wirrgs under the senior secured revolving
credit facility or increase our cash on deposihwite agent in order to meet the excess avaikabdguirement. At December 31, 2010, we
had $103.2 million of unencumbered cash that camskd to either repay the $35.9 million currentigded under the facility, which consists
of $20.0 million of outstanding borrowings and $L&illion of letters of credit, or support any stfall in the net borrowing base availability.
At December 31, 2010, we were not in violation 0§y @ovenants or restrictions imposed by any ofdabt agreements.

At December 31, 2010, we had total liquidify$@25.8 million which consisted of $103.2 millioficash on hand and $22.6 million of net
borrowing base availability. We believe our liqujdis sufficient to meet our needs in 2011. We experr cash usage for 2011 will be in the
range of $55-$65 million and to end the year wittaltliquidity of approximately $65-$70 million. Thforecast is based on 520,000 single-
family housing starts for 2011, market prices fomenodity products remaining relatively stable foe year, anticipated gross margin
improvement in the range of 150 basis points 0@4102an operating expense structure that is camistith current levels, consistent
advance rates under our credit facility year-oveary and capital expenditures of $3-$5 million. ¥dasidered various scenarios when
evaluating our liquidity needs for 2011, includimgusing starts consistent with 2010. Even at thepeessed levels, we believe our liquidity
is sufficient to meet our 2011 needs. We do noeekmworking capital or our credit facility to besggnificant source of funds for the next
twelve months.

We have set an action plan designed to pravédeith sufficient liquidity for 2011. In the evietihat housing starts for 2011 are higher or
lower than expected, or other assumptions prowe timaccurate, our forecasted cash usage anditiglgsels may change.
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Alternatives to help supplement our liquidity pasitcould include, but are not limited to, idlingmermanently closing additional facilities,
adjusting our headcount in response to currenniegsiconditions, attempts to renegotiate leasedsjigasting of non-core businesses. There
are no assurances that these steps will prove ssfot& housing activity does not improve. Shotlid current industry conditions continue or
further deteriorate beyond 2011, we may be requoedise additional funds through the sale of camrstock or debt in the public capital
markets or in privately negotiated transactionsrétcan be no assurance that any of these finanptigns would be available on favorable
terms, if at all. Should the credit markets imprawel favorable financing options become availablest prior to that time, we may take
advantage of such options in order to enhanceiquidity.

Since the beginning of the housing downturpriaary focus has been on protecting our liquiddyr action plan, which consists of
generating new business, reducing physical capadfjysting staffing levels, implementing cost @mment programs, managing credit
tightly, and most importantly, conserving cash dé@wed us to mitigate the effects of the difficmtustry conditions. We will continue to
execute this strategy as long as these conditierssp.

Consolidated Cash Flows

Cash used in operating activities increasé&dGhillion in 2010 compared to 2009. We receivedifral income tax refunds related to the
carry-back of losses of approximately $33.8 millaoxd $31.8 million in 2010 and 2009, respectivElcluding the federal income tax refund
received in 2010, our cash used in operations@@02vas approximately $75.5 million. Of this caslediin 2010, approximately $5.5 million
related to an increase in working capital, primyardlated to increased inventory purchases towdwelend of the year in an attempt to protect
our first quarter 2011 pricing commitments. The aéming cash used was to fund our operating lossésash interest payments. Our asset
utilization improved as our accounts receivablesddgcreased in 2010 compared to 2009 as we codtiedecing our overall delinquency
rate and increased the rate of our overall recévedilections. Our inventory turns remained flat-over-year and our accounts payable
days increased slightly from 2009. We continuefoaus on diligently managing working capital.

Cash used in operating activities decreasédl$@illion in 2009 compared to 2008. In 2009, wesaived a federal income tax refund of
approximately $31.8 million related to the carrnchaf losses generated in 2008. In 2008, we reddwderal income tax refunds of
$14.0 million. Excluding these federal income tafunds, our cash used in operations for 2009 dgtdatreased $8.2 million. This decrease
in cash used for operations was primarily due tnges in working capital. We continued to aggresdgimanage working capital. We saw a
decrease in the number of days outstanding forotmunts receivable as we were successful in ¢ioigeolder accounts and reducing our
overall delinquency rate. We also experienced arease in our inventory turns. Our average accquapable days decreased slightly, as we
continued to work with our vendors on extending payment terms.

Cash used for investing activities increasg@®2 million in 2010 compared to 2009. The insewas primarily due to a $6.9 million
increase in capital expenditures related to buyofiexpiring vehicle and equipment leases. In daldjtproceeds from the sale of assets
decreased $1.4 million as we actively sold off esaequipment in the prior year.

Cash used for investing activities decreased fhillion in 2009 compared to 2008. The decreras primarily due to a $6.1 million
decrease in capital expenditures, as we attemptedrnserve capital in the current operating envirent. Partially offsetting our decreased
capital expenditures was a decrease of $3.2 mitifggroceeds from sale of property, plant and emeipt primarily due to the sale of real
estate from closed facilities in 2008.

Net cash provided by financing activities §&8.2 million in 2010 compared to net cash usefthemcing activities of $19.9 million in
2009. The net proceeds received upon completiauofights offering and debt exchange in the fipsarter of 2010 was the primary source
of the cash provided in 2010. The primary use shda 2009 was $20.0 million of payments underreunlving credit facility.

Net cash used in financing activities was $1fillion in 2009 compared to net cash providedibgncing activities of $40.5 million in
2008. The primary use of cash in 2009 was $20.0amibf payments under our revolving credit fagiliThe primary source of funds in 2008
was $40.0 million in net borrowings under our revd credit facility.

Capital Resources

In December 2007, we entered into a $350anilievolving credit facility (the “Facility”) witta consortium of banks. The Facility is
scheduled to mature in December 204w, will mature in November 2011 if we have ngiail or extended the maturity of all the outstag
2012 notes by that time. The Facility provideddd350 million revolving credit line which is availe for
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working capital and general corporate purposes.aMadlable borrowing capacity, or borrowing basejérived primarily from a percentage
our eligible accounts receivable and inventorydefined by the agreement. During the first quasfe2009, we reduced our borrowing
capacity under the Facility from $350 million to3kPmillion as allowed by the revolving credit faisilagreement. During the fourth quarter
of 2010, we amended the Facility to further redoigeborrowing capacity from $250 million to $150lin. Our available borrowing
capacity at December 31, 2010 was not affectedhbget reductions as eligible accounts receivableramahtory balances, which are used to
calculate the available borrowing capacity, dosugiport borrowings in excess of $150 million. Wena anticipate that our borrowing base
will support borrowings in excess of $150 millionaay point during the remaining life of the crefitility. These reductions allowed us to
reduce our interest expense related to commitneast We expensed $0.6 million and $1.2 milliontesldo unamortized debt issuance costs
as part of these reductions in the Facility in 28h€ 2009, respectively. The amendment also redogechinimum liquidity requirement,
which was previously $35.0 million and which is ndetermined on a sliding scale based on our nidayyaverage gross availability, as
follows:

Ninety Day Average Minimum Liquidity
Gross Availability Requirement

Greater than $130.0 millic $18.75 million
Less than or equal to $130.0 million and greaten t880.0 millior $16.25 million
Less than or equal to $80.0 millit $10.00 million

Interest rates under the Facility are based base rate plus an applicable margin. The basésrthe larger of the rate determined by the
administrative agent (typically their prime rate)tioe Federal Funds Rate plus one-half percergaels term is defined by the agreement. A
variable commitment fee, currently 0.425%, is cledrgn the unused amount of the revolver and iscbas@®ur most recent previous
quarterly average excess availability. We had $&tilllon in outstanding borrowings under the Fagitit December 31, 2010. The weighted
average interest rate on the borrowings outstanaiiigr the Facility was 3.75% at December 31, 2010.

Loans are collateralized by substantiallyoflbur assets, primarily accounts receivable amdniory, and are guaranteed by us and certain
of our subsidiaries. Our net borrowing availabilityexcess of the required minimum liquidity covenat December 31, 2010 was $22.6
million. The Facility has certain restrictive cors, which, among other things, relate to the payrof dividends, incurrence of
indebtedness, and asset sales. The Facility atsa figed charge coverage ratio of 1:1 that igyergd if our available borrowing capacity, as
determined under the borrowing base formula, is flean a minimum liquidity requirement. At DecemBér 2010, the minimum liquidity
requirement was $10.0 million. The calculation a#iows cash on deposit with the agent to be ireduas eligible borrowing base. Based on
our 2011 forecast, while we will not meet the fixathrge coverage ratio, we anticipate that wenwitlfall below the minimum liquidity
covenant in 2011 including the use of cash on depdth the agent; therefore, we will not triggéetfixed charge coverage ratio requirem
The fixed charge coverage ratio is defined asdlkie of earnings before interest expenses, inca@xest depreciation and amortization
expenses minus capital expenditures, cash taxdsdgiaidends, distributions and share repurchasesdemptions to the sum of scheduled
principal payments and interest expense on arggilvelve month basis from the trigger date.

As of December 31, 2009, we had $275.0 milbatstanding in aggregate principal amount of 20ds. Interest accrues on the 2012
notes at a rate of LIBOR plus 4.25% and is paygbbkaterly in arrears. The weighted-average inteagstat December 31, 2010 for the 2012
notes was 4.5%. The LIBOR rate is reset at therlmégg of each quarterly period. At any time, we ceeieem some or all of the notes at par.
In the event of a change in control (as definethinindenture), we may be required to offer to pase the notes at a purchase price equal to
101% of the principal, plus accrued and unpaidrésie

On January 21, 2010, we completed a commark sights offering and debt exchange for our 20&&s. As part of these transactions, we
raised $180.1 million of new equity capital throubk issuance of 51,459,184 shares of common stdtle rights offering at a subscription
price of $3.50 per share. We used $105.1 milliothefproceeds from the rights offering to repurehaportion of the 2012 notes in the debt
exchange. We used a portion of the remaining $7#lln of proceeds to pay expenses of the rigfftsrmg and the debt exchange and the
remainder is being used for general corporate &R0
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In the debt exchange, holders of the 2012snetehanged $269.8 million aggregate principal amhoti2012 notes for (i) $139.7 million
aggregate principal amount of new 2016 notes${i)5.1 million in cash, and (iii) 7,112,244 shasésur common stock. We also amended
the indenture under which the 2012 notes were dstueliminate substantially all of the restrictis@venants, certain conditions to
defeasance, and certain events of default andaas®e the liens on the collateral securing the 2@t@s. At December 31, 2010, our funded
debt was $165.0 million, which consisted of $20iliam of outstanding borrowings under our seniecsred revolving credit facility,
$139.7 million of 2016 notes, and $5.3 million efr@emaining 2012 notes. We intend to repay th8 $illion of outstanding 2012 notes
during 2011, and therefore have classified thisamas a current liability as of December 31, 2bilthe accompanying consolidated bala
sheet.

The $139.7 million in aggregate principal amioof new 2016 notes mature on February 15, 2G1t6érdst accrues on the 2016 notes at a
rate of 3-month LIBOR (subject to a 3.0% floor) plL0.0%. LIBOR is reset at the beginning of eadiriguly period. The weighted-average
interest rate at December 31, 2010 for the 2016swhs 13.0%. Interest on the floating rate nat@syable quarterly in arrears. At any time
we can redeem some or all of the notes at a redemptice equal to par plus a specified premiunt tleglines ratably to par. In the event
change in control, we may be required to offerducchase the 2016 notes at a purchase price eqli@llé of the principal, plus accrued and
unpaid interest.

The notes are jointly and severally guarantgedll of our subsidiaries and collateralized hyledge of common stock of certain of our
subsidiaries and by a second priority lien on sarfilly all tangible and intangible property antkerests in property and proceeds thereof
now owned or hereafter acquired by us and subathndill of our subsidiaries. All of the subsidiasiare wholly-owned and domiciled in the
United States. The parent company has no indepéadsets or operations, and the guarantees arnfiillinconditional. The indenture
covering the notes contains certain restrictiveeoants, which, among other things, relate to tlyeneat of dividends, incurrence of
indebtedness, repurchase of common stock or otbigibditions, asset sales and investments.

In the first quarter of 2008, we entered itiiee interest rate swap agreements with notianaluats of $100.0 million, $50.0 million and
$50.0 million. We entered into these interest sataps in order to mitigate a portion of the interate risk that we were exposed to in the
normal course of business on our floating rate s10tbe swap agreements, effective May 15, 2008 fzgra term of three years. The interest
rate swaps qualified as fully effective, cash-floedging instruments. Therefore, all changes invaline of the qualifying cash flow hedges
were reported in accumulated other comprehensiasedad reclassified into earnings in the same gémiavhich the hedge transactions
affected earnings.

In December 2009, certain conditions of theppised recapitalization plan were met which indiddbat the transaction was considered
probable of occurring. The recapitalization pladueed our outstanding floating rate notes to $14%lllon causing a portion of the future
cash flows being hedged by our $200 million swaplset deemed probable of not occurring. As a resuldecember 2009 we cancelled and
settled our $50 million swap with a fixed rate d2% for $1.7 million. Primarily all of this paymewas expensed and was included as a
component of interest expense, net in the condelidstatement of operations for the year ended keee31, 2009. Under the remaining
$100 million and $50 million swap agreements, weying fixed rates of 3.25% and 3.17%, respdgtiamnd receiving a variable rate at
90 day LIBOR. In December 2009, we also de-deseghtite remaining $150 million of our swaps. Amountduded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss for $5.0 million of the remaingwaps were reclassed to expense in 2009 asshdloas being hedged were considered
probable of not occurring. Amounts included in analated other comprehensive loss at December 3B &fated to the remaining $145.0
million of swaps were frozen and are being amodtiaeer the remaining terms of the swaps. Any subseichanges in the fair value of th
swaps are recognized in interest expense, ndieindnsolidated statement of operations. At Dece®be2010, the fair value of the interest
rate swaps was a liability of $2.2 million.
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Long-term debt consisted of the following &©ecember 31:

2010 2009
(In thousands)

Revolving credit facility $ 20,00( $ 20,00(
Floating rate notes

2012 note: 5,24¢ 275,00(

2016 note: 139,71t —

Other lon¢-term debt* 4,13¢ 4,18:

169,10: 299,18:

Less: current portion of lo-term debt 5,301 48

Total lon¢-term debt, net of current maturitie $163,80: $299,13!

* We completed construction on a new multi-purpteility during 2006. Other long-term debt reprets an unfunded lease obligation
for this facility. For accounting purposes, we deemed the owner. As a result, the building anaffetting longterm lease obligatio
are included on the consolidated balance sheetasmponent of fixed assets and other debt, resdgtiThe building is being
depreciated over its useful life, and the leaseabibn is being amortized such that there willhoegain or loss recorded if the lease is
not extended at the end of the te

Capital Expenditures

Capital expenditures vary depending on prex@ibusiness factors, including current and anditdd market conditions. Historically,
capital expenditures have for the most part renthirieelatively low levels in comparison to the @img cash flows generated during the
corresponding periods. In order to buyout expigagipment and vehicle leases, we increased outatagpenditures to $9.0 million in 201
We expect our 2011 capital expenditures to be aqipiately $3 to $5 million primarily related to buyts of additional expiring equipment
and vehicle leases and facility improvements thltbg needed to support our operations.

DISCLOSURES OF CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCI AL COMMITMENTS

The following summarizes our contractual osligns as of December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Period

Contractual obligations Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 4 years 5 years After 5 years
Long-term debt $169,10: $ 5,301 $ 20,18¢ $ 76 $ 76 $ 143,46(
Interest on lon-term debt(1 101,98 21,96: 57,24¢ 18,57: 2,671 1,52¢
Operating lease 91,10¢ 22,09: 41,96: 9,26t 6,48( 11,31(
Uncertain tax positions(: — — — — — —
Total contractual cash obligatio $362,19( $ 49,35¢ $119,39 $27,91¢ $9,22i $ 156,29¢

(1) Interest based on LIBOR rate of 0.31% anthPriate of 3.25% at February 11, 2011. Interedvog-term debt reflects interest rate
swap agreements effective through May 2011. Adiuatest may differ from the amounts presented alimased on LIBOR
fluctuations.

(2) We have $2.1 million of uncertain tax posisaecorded in long-term liabilities or as a reéhrcto operating loss carryforwards. We
also have $0.4 million in interest and penaltiesaed related to these uncertain tax positioris.nbt reasonably possible to predict at
this time when (or if) any of these amounts willdsdtled.

The amounts reflected in the table above farating leases represent future minimum lease patgnunder non-cancelable operating
leases with an initial or remaining term in exceene year at December 31, 2010. Purchase ordaeed into in the ordinary course of
business are excluded from the above table bethegare payable within one year. Amounts for whighare liable under purchase orders
are reflected on our consolidated balance shest@sunts payable and accrued liabilities.
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OTHER CASH OBLIGATIONS NOT REFLECTED IN THE BALANCE SHEET

In accordance with accounting principles gaftgraccepted in the United States, commonly refeto as GAAP, our operating leases are
not recorded in our balance sheet. In additioméoléase obligations included in the above tabéehave residual value guarantees on certain
equipment leases. Under these leases we havetiba op(1) purchasing the equipment at the entheflease term, (2) arranging for the sale
of the equipment to a third party, or (3) returnihg equipment to the lessor to sell the equipmiétite sales proceeds in either case are less
than the residual value, then we are requireditolrgrse the lessor for the deficiency up to a djgetievel as stated in each lease agreement.
The guarantees under these leases for the resigluals of equipment at the end of the respectiegaijing lease periods approximated $1.9
million as of December 31, 2010.

Based upon the expectation that none of tleased assets will have a residual value at theoktitk lease term that is materially less than
the value specified in the related operating legeement or that we will purchase the equipmetiteaénd of the lease term, we do not
believe it is probable that we will be requiredidad any amounts under the terms of these guaranteegements. Accordingly, no accruals
have been recognized for these guarantees.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting policies are those thahkeare important to the accurate portrayal of afamy’s financial condition and results, and
require subjective or complex judgments, often essalt of the need to make estimates about tleetedf matters that are inherently
uncertain.

In order to prepare financial statements tioaform to GAAP, we make estimates and assumptlatsaffect the amounts reported in our
financial statements and accompanying notes. Qegtimates are particularly sensitive due to thiginificance to the financial statements
and the possibility that future events may be $igatly different from our expectations.

We have identified the following accountindipies that require us to make the most subjeaiiveomplex judgments in order to fairly
present our consolidated financial position andltse®f operations.

Vendor Rebateddany of our arrangements with our vendors provimteus to receive a rebate of a specified amourdigayto us when
we achieve any of a number of measures, generd#ijed to the volume of purchases from our vendbliesaccount for these rebates as a
reduction of the prices of the vendor’s productsiolw reduces inventory until we sell the produttyhich time these rebates reduce cost of
sales. Throughout the year, we estimate the anmadusbates based upon our historical level of pasels. We continually revise these
estimates to reflect actual purchase levels.

If market conditions were to change, vendoay ithange the terms of some or all of these progrétthough these changes would not
affect the amounts which we have recorded relatgutdduct already purchased, it may impact ourgnoargins on products we sell or sales
earned in future periods.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts and Related Reselfe maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses due to the
failure of our customers to make required paymadfts perform periodic credit evaluations of our omsérs and typically do not require
collateral. However, as industry conditions havetitmed to decline, we have, in some cases, regjainstomers to collateralize their debt to
us. Consistent with industry practices, we typicadiquire payment from most customers within 30sd@s our business is seasonal in cel
regions, our customers’ businesses are also sdaSaihes are lowest in the winter months, and @st due accounts receivable balance as a
percentage of total receivables generally incredseag this time. Throughout the year, we recatineated reserves based upon our
historical write-offs of uncollectible accountskitag into consideration certain factors, such daa@gtatistics and trends, customer payment
history, independent credit reports, and discusswith customers.

Periodically, we perform a specific analydialb accounts past due and write off account bedarwhen we have exhausted reasonable
collection efforts and determined that the likedoof collection is remote. We charge these wrffs-against our allowance for doubtful
accounts. In previous years, we experienced hitfagr normal past due account balances and aslg msuallowance for doubtful accounts
increased as a percentage of trade accounts rbteila response to these conditions, we tightengdtredit standards, lowered credit limits
to some of our customers, and in some cases disaedtallowing credit or required collateral to pog outstanding receivable balances. As
a result, our bad debt expense decreased appreyn$at 9 million from 2009, which also resultedamlecrease in allowance for doubtful
accounts. Any future decline in the macroeconomitdrs that affect the overall housing industrpr specific customers’ business could
cause us to revise our estimate of expected l@sgkmcrease our allowance for doubtful accounts.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assetong-lived assets, including property and equipmard reviewed for possible impairment whenever
events or circumstances indicate that the carrgingunt of an asset may not be recoverable. Thgiegramount of a long-lived asset group
is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of thaseudinted cash flows expected to result from tlreearsl eventual disposition of the asset
group. Our long-lived assets and liabilities areugred at the lowest level for which identifiableslecdlows are largely independent of the cash
flows of other groups of assets and liabilitiesr @sset groups consist of geographical markets;iwdnie one level below our reporting units.
Our judgment regarding the existence of impairniedicators is based on market and operational pedace. Determining whether
impairment has occurred typically requires variegmates and assumptions, including determininiglwbash flows are directly related to
the potentially impaired asset, the useful liferowbich cash flows will occur, their amount, ane tsset’s residual value, if any. In turn,
measurement of an impairment loss requires a detation of fair value, which is based on the baghimation available.

We use internal cash flow estimates, quotexketgrices when available and independent appsaiasa appropriate, to determine fair
value. We derive the required cash flow estimata four historical experience and our internal besss plans and apply an appropriate
discount rate. These cash flow estimates are beeretmaining useful lives of the assets within eaelnket. Forecasted housing starts for ¢
market are used to help estimate future revenwsotitial trends are then used to project gross im=aemnd operating expenses based upon
various revenue levels. If these projected cashisflare less than the carrying amount, an impairtesstis recognized based on the fair value
of the asset group. Due to the uncertainties aataativith these projections, actual results coiffdrdrom projected results, and further
impairment of long-lived assets could be recordedure non-cash impairment of long-lived assetsld/bave the effect of decreasing our
earnings or increasing our losses in such periotwbuld not impact our current outstanding debigaitions or compliance with covenants
contained in the related debt agreements.

We recorded asset impairment charges of $0l&my $0.5 million, and $7.0 million in 2010, 26Gnd 2008, respectively.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the amount we teaacquire businesses over the estimated failevafl tangible assets and
identifiable intangible assets acquired, less litds assumed. At December 31, 2010, our goodailance was $111.2 million, representing
26.9% of our total assets.

We test goodwill for impairment in the foudbarter of each year or at any other time when impent indicators exist by comparing the
estimated implied value of a reporting units’ godtlte its book value. Examples of such indicattirat could cause us to test goodwill for
impairment between annual tests include a sigmifichange in the business climate, unexpected ciitiope significant deterioration in
market share or a loss of key personnel. Our imgdingts been in a significant and severe downtushlibgan in mid-2006. In this
environment, we have closely monitored the trendsconomic factors and their effects on operatasglts to determine if an impairment
trigger was present that would warrant a reassessofi¢he recoverability of the carrying amountgoodwill prior to the required annual
impairment test and performed interim impairmestgavhen warranted. The macroeconomic factorsafifiett our industry, primarily the
continued decline in housing starts, have caused resevaluate our expectations for a number ofreporting units. Housing starts are a
significant sales driver for us. If there is a $figant decline or an expected decline in housitagts, this could adversely affect our
expectations for a reporting unit and the valuthaf reporting unit. In 2008, the overriding factaas the continued decline in the
macroeconomic conditions that affect our indusgpgcifically housing starts in our markets were d@&.7% from 2007 and down 45.7% in
the fourth quarter of 2008 compared to the fourtarter of 2007. We recognized goodwill impairmesft$39.9 million which were included
in asset impairments in our consolidated statem#rperations. We did not have any goodwill imp®nts in continuing operations in 2010
or 2009.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impaémhinvolves the determination of fair value of ogporting units. Our reporting units:
Atlantic, Raleigh, Southeast, Florida, Dallas aodtf Texas represent financially discrete, selfssngig components of our three regional
operating segments. We evaluate goodwill for impaint using a two-step process. The first step iddotify potential impairment by
comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to Hmok value, including goodwill. If the fair valwé a reporting unit exceeds the book value,
goodwill is not impaired. If the book value excedls fair value, the second step of the procepsiirmed to measure the amount of
impairment. In step two, the estimated fair valtithe reporting unit is allocated to all other dssend liabilities of that reporting unit based
on their respective fair values. The excess ofdfrevalue of the reporting unit over the amoutbedted to its assets and liabilities is the
implied fair value of goodwill. Goodwill impairmeiig measured as the excess of the carrying valeeitsvimplied fair value. The fair value
of a reporting unit is estimated based upon thgepted discounted cash flow expected to be gertefeden the reporting unit using a
discounted cash flow methodology. Where availahkk@ppropriate, comparative market multiples asglus corroborate the results of the
discounted cash flow.
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We developed a range of fair values for oporéng units using a five-year discounted castvfloethodology. Inherent in such fair value
determinations are estimates relating to futuré ¢asvs, including revenue growth, gross margirgerating expenses and long-term growth
rates, and our interpretation of current economilicators and market conditions and their impacbwnstrategic plans and operations. Dt
the uncertainties associated with such estimatemrpretations and assumptions, actual resultglatitfer from projected results, and further
impairment of goodwill could be recorded.

Significant information and assumptions uéitizin estimating future cash flows for our repaytimits includes publicly available industry
information on projected single-family housing s&taand lumber commodity prices which are used ¢gept revenue. Projected gross margins
and operating expenses reflect the impact of revesticount reductions and other cost reductiomiivies and are flexed in future years
based upon historical trends at various revenusdelzong-term growth was based upon terminal vehraings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) multiples5x for all reporting units to reflect the relew@xpected acquisition price. A discount
rate of 15.1% was used for all reporting units snidtended to reflect the weighted average cosagital for a potential market participant
and includes all risks of ownership and the assedidsks of realizing the stream of projected fatoash flows. Decreasing the long-term
growth to an EBITDA multiple of 4.5x, or increasitite discount rate by 1.0% to 16.1%, would not hehanged the results of our
impairment testing.

At December 31, 2010, the excess (or “cushiohthe implied fair value of goodwill over thercging value of goodwill for each of our
five reporting units which have remaining goodwilances ranged from $8.5 million to $91.5 millidie cushion for two of our reporting
units at December 31, 2010, was $8.5 million arel&2nillion. Moderate deviations from projectedftéisws for these reporting units could
result in future goodwill impairment. These repogtunits had goodwill balances of $11.0 million &&d1 million at December 31, 2010.
Factors that could negatively impact the estim&@dvalue of our reporting units and potentialigger additional impairment include, but
are not limited to, unexpected competition, lowenrt expected housing starts, an increase in oghtezl average cost of capital, increases in
material or labor cost, and significant declinesum market capitalization. Future non-cash impaintrof goodwill would have the effect of
decreasing our earnings or increasing our lossssdh period, but would not impact our current tautding debt obligations or compliance
with covenants contained in the related debt agesesn At December 31, 2010, we reconciled to withireasonable range our estimated fair
value as determined by the sum of the discountsd flaws of our reporting units to our market cafitation, using an estimated control
premium of 29.3%.

Deferred Income Taxe¥/e assess whether it is more likely than not thatesor all of our deferred tax assets will not &églived. We
consider the reversal of existing deferred taxilitéds, future taxable income, and tax planninggies in our assessment. We have certain
state income tax carryforwards where we beliei@uhlikely that we will realize the benefits assded with these tax carryforwards and h
established a valuation allowance against our tedeax assets. Changes in our estimates of ftaedle income and tax planning strategies
will affect our estimate of the realization of ttax benefits of these tax carryforwards. Additibpah light of the continued downturn in the
housing market and the uncertainty as to its leagthmagnitude, and due to the additional assetimmgnts recorded during 2008, we were
in a three-year cumulative loss position. Cumukatosses in recent years represent significanttivegavidence in considering whether
deferred tax assets are realizable, and also yquaktlude relying on projections of future taxainleome to support the recovery of deferred
tax assets. Therefore, during 2008, we recordeduation allowance totaling $41.2 million againgbparily all of our net deferred tax assets,
of which $31.6 million related to our continuingesptions, $3.0 million related to other compreheagioss) income and $6.6 million related
to our discontinued operations. We recorded antiaddi valuation allowance of approximately $35.dlion and $3.9 million related to our
continuing operations in 2010 and 2009, respegtiv@lirther declines in housing activity could causdo establish additional valuation
allowances. To the extent we generate sufficietalile income in the future to fully utilize the thgnefits of the related net deferred tax
assets, we may reverse some or all of the valuatlowances.

Insurance Deductible ReserW&e have large deductibles for general liabilitytcaliability and workers’ compensation insuranceeT
expected liability for unpaid claims falling withur deductible, including incurred but not repdrtesses, is determined using the assistance
of a third-party actuary. This amount is reflectedour balance sheet as an accrued liability. ©co@nting policy includes an internal
evaluation and adjustment of our reserve for allilmnce-related liabilities on a quarterly basisleAst on an annual basis, we engage an
external actuarial professional to independentbesas and estimate the total liability outstandivigich is compared to the actual reserve
balance at that time and adjusted accordingly.

Stock-Based Compensati@alculating stock-based compensation expense egtlie input of subjective assumptions. We detezritia
fair value of each option grant using the Black-@eh option-pricing model with assumptions basecharily on historical data. Specific
inputs to the model include: the expected lifehaf $tock-based awards, stock price volatility,diwid yield and risk-free rate.
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The expected life represents the period o tine options are expected to be outstanding. Wsider the contractual term, the vesting
period and the expected lives used by a peer gkithpsimilar option terms in determining the expettife assumption. The expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility otir common stock over the most recent period etpule expected life of the option. The
expected dividend yield is based on our historgaifpaying regular dividends in the past and ourezu intention to not pay regular
dividends in the foreseeable future. The risk-fizge is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvdfeceat the time of grant and has a term
equal to the expected life of the options. We rd@xpense for the unvested portion of grants dweréquisite service (i.e., vesting) periods.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance nuh@d-air Value Measurements and Disclosutepic of the Codification which requires,
in both interim as well as annual financial statetagfor assets and liabilities that are measuréairavalue on a recurring basis, disclosures
regarding the valuation techniques and inputs tselgvelop those measurements. It also requiresatpdisclosures of significant amounts
transferred in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 f@ilue measurements and a description of the redsotise transfers. We have adopted these
provisions and included all required disclosures.

In October 2009, the FASB issued guidance utideMultiple Element Revenue Arrangemeaisic of the Codification which requires
separation of the consideration received in sudmgements by establishing a selling price hiegafohdetermining the selling price of a
deliverable, which will be based on available infation in the following order: vendor-specific ottige evidence, third-party evidence, or
estimated selling price. It also eliminates thédwsl method of allocation, requires that the cdesation be allocated at the inception of the
arrangement to all deliverables using the rela®éng price method, which allocates any disconrhe arrangement to each deliverable on
the basis of each deliverable’s selling price, magiires that a vendor determine its best estiwfagelling price in a manner that is consistent
with that used to determine the price to sell thivérable on a standalone basis. These changasieeeffective for us on January 1, 2011.
We are currently reviewing the impact of these gesnon our financial statements, but we do notebpese changes to have a material
impact on our financial position or results of ca@ns.

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidanceutmtBusiness Combinatioriepic of the Codification which addresses divergityhe
interpretation of the pro forma revenue and eamshfigclosure requirements for business combinatibims guidance states if a public entity
presents comparative financial statements, théyesitbuld disclose revenue and earnings of the awedlentity as though the business
combination(s) that occurred during the current yeal occurred as of the beginning of the comparphibr annual reporting period only.
This guidance became effective on January 1, 20hhd no impact on our financial position or réswf operations.

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidancetimtintangibles-Goodwill and Otheppic of the Codification which modifies Stepl of
the goodwill impairment test for reporting unitstkvzero or negative carrying amounts and requinesndity to perform Step 2 of the goody
impairment test if it is more likely than not tlegoodwill impairment exists. This guidance becaffiective on January 1, 2011. It had no
impact on our financial position or results of c@mns.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about MakRisk

We experience changes in interest expense wiaeket interest rates change. However, intergstrese on our 2016 notes, which are
subject to a 3% floor, would not change unless LRBiicreased to greater than 3%. Changes in ouradeitd also increase these risks. Based
on debt outstanding and LIBOR rates at Decembe2@10, a 1.0% increase in interest rates wouldtresapproximately $0.2 million of
additional interest expense annually.

We purchase certain materials, including lungveducts, which are then sold to customers abasgalised as direct production inputs for
our manufactured products that we deliver. Shartrtehanges in the cost of these materials andelaged in-bound freight costs, some of
which are subject to significant fluctuations, aoenetimes, but not always, passed on to our custor®er delayed ability to pass on mate
price increases to our customers can adverselgtafte operating income.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of BerigFirstSource, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consoliddiathnce sheets and the related consolidated statewfeoperations, changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows present fairlyall material respects, the financial positidrBailders FirstSource, Inc. and its
subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and 2009, anck#udts of their operations and their cash flowrsglach of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with accawngirinciples generally accepted in the UnitedeStatf America. Also in our opinion,
the Company maintained, in all material respedfsctve internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2010, based on criteria
established imnternal Control — Integrated Framewoissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway Commission
(COSO0). The Company’s management is responsiblignése financial statements, for maintaining eféecinternal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectissmd internal control over financial reportingclided in Management’s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting appearing undeml©A. Our responsibility is to express opiniongtugse financial statements and on the
Company’s internal control over financial reportiogsed on our integrated audits. We conducteduitsain accordance with the standards
of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Boaraifeld States). Those standards require that wegpldrperform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the finanatehsénts are free of material misstatement andhgheffective internal control over
financial reporting was maintained in all materggpects. Our audits of the financial statememtsiited examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the fiahstatements, assessing the accounting prirsciled and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financé&éstent presentation. Our audit of internal cordka@r financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control dgaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectivenéggernal control based on the assessed risk.aDdits also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the dtanoes. We believe that our audits provide a redse basis for our opinions.

A company’s internal control over financiapogting is a process designed to provide reasoraslerance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company'’s internal control over fircgal reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (ii) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdegtessary to permit preparation of financakstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; anda(ibiyide reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsats that could have a material effect on thenfiizd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, interoahtrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periagssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 2, 2011
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Sales $700,34: $677,88t $ 992,01«
Cost of sale: 568,58 535,48 776,47

Gross margir 131,75¢ 142,40¢ 215,54
Selling, general and administrative exper 194,09:. 201,40: 280,01(
Asset impairment 83¢ 47C 46,94¢
Facility closure cost 55€ 1,20( 1,197

Loss from operation (63,737 (60,667 (112,609
Interest expense, n 31,67 27,04¢ 25,64

Loss from continuing operations before income t: (95,40%) (87,717 (138,25
Income tax benef (1,119 (30,827) (17,670
Loss from continuing operatiol (94,297 (56,889 (120,58
Loss from discontinued operations (net of inconxebinefit of $0, $0, and $1,200 in

2010, 2009 and 2008, respective (1,219 (4,965 (18,91)
Net loss $(95,509) $(61,859) $(139,49¢)
Basic and diluted net loss per sha
Loss from continuing operatiol $ (1.09 $ (1.4 $ (3.10
Loss from discontinued operatio (0.00) (0.13) (0.49)
Net loss $ (1.0Y $ (159 $ (3.59
Weighted average common shares outstanc
Basic and dilutes 91,67¢ 39,16¢ 38,84:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Trade accounts receivable, less allowances of $234d $4,883 for 2010 and 2009, respecti
Other receivable
Inventories
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Intangible assets, n
Other assets, n
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term debt
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current maturiti
Deferred income taxe
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value, 10,000 sharémeréd; zero shares issued and outstanding at
December 31, 2010 and 20
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 200,000 shares apgiolp 96,769 and 36,347 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2010 and 2009, respéc
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated defici
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Total stockholder equity

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31,

2010

2009

(In thousands, except per share amount

$ 103,23
55,63
4,06(
63,81
8,61
235,34
57,06¢
111,19
2,20
6,99/

$ 412,80

$ 44,86¢
26,28¢
5,301
76,45
163,80:
5,052
7,99%
253,29¢

94¢
355,19
(194,48:)
(2,157)
159,50!

$ 412,80

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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$  84,09¢
60,72:
39,75¢
48,02:
7,741
240,34
64,02
111,19
2,74¢
16,64

$ 434,95

$ 39,57(
28,92:
__ 48
68,54
299,13
5,05¢
15,27¢
388,00

362
150,24(
(98,979

(4,689)
46,94
$ 434,95
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Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

S

Years Ended December 31,

2010

$

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash usegerating activities

Depreciation and amortizatic
Asset impairment

Amortization of deferred loan cos

Deferred income taxe
Bad debt expens

Net nor-cash (income) expense from discontinued opera

Stock compensation exper

Net gain on sales of assi
Changes in assets and liabiliti

Receivable!

Inventories

Other current asse

Other assets and liabilitit

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Net cash used in operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie

(95,50%)

15,43:
83¢
5,95¢
(1,23%)
792
©)
4,30¢
(25¢)

40,00
(15,789
(879
(280)

5,29¢

(399

Purchases of property, plant and equipn
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipi

Acquisitions, net of cash acquir

Net cash used in investing activit|

Cash flows from financing activitie

Net (payments) borrowings under revolving crediilfty
Payments of lor-term debt and other loal

Deferred loan cosi

Proceeds from rights offerir
Payment of recapitalization cot
Exercise of stock optior
Repurchase of common sta

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

(41,720

(8,959
602

(8,35))

(105,18

(50)

180,10°

(5,63])

(31)

Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash equiv.
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

69,20’

19,13¢
84,09¢

$ 103,23¢

2009 2008
(In thousands)

$(61,85¢) $(139,49,)
17,91t 20,83:
47C 46,94¢
3,76 2,83t
411 18,99¢
2,711 4,43¢
724 4,65:
2,861 8,47¢
(601) (1,449
23,03( 16,83(
20,84¢ 26,17(
617 91t
(3,55¢) 2,61¢
4,15¢ (30,39)
(14,240 (11,257
(2,746) (28,877
(2,109 (8,199
1,98¢ 5,20¢
— 701
(117) (2,287
(20,000 40,00(
(49 (40)
— (380)
(620) —
85¢ 1,31z
(126) (416)
(19,930 40,47
(22,799 9,317
106,89 97,57
$ 84,00¢ $ 106,89

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures
Vesting of restricted stoc
Stock compensation exper
Exercise of stock options, including
tax benefit associated with the
exercise of stock optior
Repurchase of common sta
Comprehensive los
Net loss
Change in fair value of interest ra
swaps, net of related tax effe
Total comprehensive ot
Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures
Vesting of restricted stoc
Stock compensation exper
Exercise of stock optior
Repurchase of common sta
Comprehensive los
Net loss
Change in fair value of interest ra
swaps
Total comprehensive lo:
Balance at December 31, 2C
Issuance of restricted stock, net of
forfeitures
Stock compensation exper
Repurchase of common sta
Issuance of common stock from rigt
offering
Issuance of common stock in debt
exchange
Comprehensive los
Net loss
Change in fair value of interest ra
swaps
Total comprehensive lo:
Balance at December 31, 2C

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common Stock

Shares Amount
35,70! $ 351
44 —

— 2
447 5
(64) @
36,12¢ 357
9 —_

— 4
273 3
(63) @
36,34 363
1,861 —
(10) —
51,45¢ 51t
7,112 71
96,76¢ $ 94¢

Accumulated

Accumulated

Additional Paid (Deficit) Other
in Retained Comprehensive
Capital Earnings (Loss) Income Total
(In thousands)

$ 138,47¢ $ 102,37! $ 34t $ 241,54°
e — — —
8,47¢ — — 8,47¢
112 — — 117
(41%) — (41€)
— (139,49)) — (139,49))
— — (7,759 (7,759
— — — (147,25Y)
146,65( (37,119 (7,419 102,47:
@) — — —
2,865 — — 2,86:
85¢€ — — 85¢
(125) — (126)
— (61,854 — (61,854
— — 2,731 2,731
— — — (59,129
150,24( (98,979 (4,687 46,94
4,30¢ — — 4,30¢
(31) — (31)
175,85! — — 176,37(
24,82; — 24,89:
— (95,509 — (95,509
— — 2,52¢ 2,52¢
— — — (92,982
$ 355,19 $ (194,48)) $ (2,157) $ 159,50!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktheasolidated financial statements.

45




Table of Contents

BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Business

Builders FirstSource, Inc., a Delaware corporaformed in 1998, is a leading supplier and nfacturer of structural and related building
products for residential new construction in thetebh States. In this annual report, referencebéd'company,” “we,” “our,” “ours” or “us”

refer to Builders FirstSource, Inc. and its cordatied subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated azahext otherwise requires.

We manage our business as three regional tiggeggroups — Atlantic, Southeast and Central. \WWwe 32 markets in 9 states, principally
in the southern and eastern United States. We Bvdéstribution centers and 47 manufacturing faesi many of which are located on the
same premises as our distribution centers. We sebread customer base ranging from production baifders to small custom
homebuilders.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidatior

The consolidated financial statements presentesults of operations, financial position, aadh flows of Builders FirstSource, Inc. and
its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant im@mpany transactions have been eliminated in diofadion.

Accounting Estimate:

The preparation of financial statements infeomity with generally accepted accounting prinep(“GAAP”) in the United States of
America requires management to make estimatessmuaigtions that affect the reported amounts oftsssal liabilities and disclosures of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements, and the reported amounesvehues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could materially differ frafmose estimates.

Estimates are used when accounting for iterok as revenue, vendor rebates, allowance fom®tdiscounts and doubtful accounts,
employee compensation programs, depreciation armdteetion periods, income taxes, inventory valuesyrance programs, goodwill, other
intangible assets and long-lived assets.

Sales Recognitiol

We recognize sales of building products upelivdry to the customer. For contracts with senégtmments, sales are generally recognized
on the completed contract method as these conteetssually completed within 30 days. Contractcoxlude all direct material and labor,
equipment costs and those indirect costs relatedritract performance. Provisions for estimateddeson uncompleted contracts are
recognized in the period in which such losses aterthined. Prepayments for materials or servicesieferred until such materials have been
delivered or services have been provided. All sedesgnized are net of allowances for discountsestithated returns, based on historical
experience. We present all sales tax on a net agisr consolidated financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of castand and all highly liquid investments with an onigi maturity date of three months or less.

Financial Instruments

We use financial instruments in the normalrsewof business as a tool to manage our assel@hiiities. We do not hold or issue
financial instruments for trading purposes.

We utilize interest rate swaps in order toigaite a portion of the interest rate risk that weeexposed to in the normal course of business
on our floating rate notes. We measure our intesgetswaps at fair value on a recurring basisstugsed in Note 8.
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Accounts Receivabl

We extend credit to qualified professional letnnlders and contractors, in many cases on a ableteralized basis. The allowance for
doubtful accounts is based on management’s assessirtee amount which may become uncollectibléhmfuture and is estimated using
specific review of problem accounts, overall pditf@uality, current economic conditions that méfeet the borrower’s ability to pay, and
historical experience. Accounts receivable aretemibff when deemed uncollectible.

Accounts receivable consisted of the followatdecember 31:

2010 2009
(In thousands)
Trade receivable $58,07¢ $ 65,60¢
Less: allowance for returns and doubtful accol 2,44¢ 4,887
Trade accounts receivable, | 55,63’ 60,72¢
Income tax receivable 88 33,81¢
Other 3,972 5,93¢
Other receivable 4,06( 39,75¢
Accounts receivable, n $59,69: $100,48:
The following table shows the changes in diemaance for doubtful accounts:
2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Balance at January $ 4,221 $ 5,28¢ $ 5,80¢
Additions charged to expens
Continuing operation 792 2,711 4,43¢
Discontinued operatior — 27¢ 30:3
Deductions (writ-offs, net of recoveries (3,140 (4,059 (5,259
Balance at December 2 $ 1,87¢ $ 4,221 $ 5,28¢

We also establish reserves for credit memdscastomer returns. The reserve balance was $0i6rm#$0.7 million, and $0.9 million at
December 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively.attivity in this reserve was not significant éarch year presented.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of materialsrghased for resale, including lumber, sheet gomdwjows, doors and millwork, as well as
certain manufactured products and are stated &bwer of cost or market. Cost is determined ushrgweighted average method, the use of
which approximates the first-in, first-out methdde accrue for shrinkage based on the actual histioshrinkage results of our most recent
physical inventories adjusted, if necessary, ferant economic conditions. These estimates are aoedpwith actual results as physical
inventory counts are taken and reconciled to thmeg# ledger.

During the year, we monitor our inventory lisviey market and record provisions for excess itwées based on slower moving inventory.
We define potential excess inventory as the amotimventory on hand in excess of the historicalges excluding special order items
purchased in the last three months. We then applyjudgment as to forecasted demand and otherrfadteluding liquidation value, to
determine the required adjustments to net reakizehlue. Our inventories are generally not susbkpto technological obsolescence.

Our arrangements with vendors provide for tebaf a specified amount of consideration, payaliien certain measures, generally rel:
to a stipulated level of purchases, have been aeetiiéVe account for estimated rebates as a reduatithe prices of the vendor’s inventory
until the product is sold, at which time such relsaieduce cost of sales in the accompanying calatetl statements of operations.
Throughout the year we estimate the amount ofébates based upon the expected level of purchAgesontinually revise these estimates
based on actual purchase levels.
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Shipping and Handling Cost

Handling costs incurred in manufacturing &ti¢ are included in cost of sales. All other glimg and handling costs are included in
selling, general and administrative expenses irattempanying consolidated statements of operaindsaggregated $49.0 million,
$47.5 million and $66.6 million in 2010, 2009 ar@D8, respectively.

Income Taxes

We account for income taxes utilizing the iligomethod described in thecome Taxetopic of the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification (“Codification”). Deferred income taxare recorded to reflect consequences on futunes yé differences between the tax basis
of assets and liabilities and their financial rémgy amounts at each yeand based on enacted tax laws and statutory tes agfplicable to tt
periods in which differences are expected to aff@cible earnings. We record a valuation allowdaaceduce deferred tax assets if it is more
likely than not that some portion or all of the eleéd tax assets will not be realized.

Warranty Expense

We have warranty obligations with respect tistrmanufactured products; however, the liabilitythe warranty obligations is not
significant as a result of third-party inspectiondacceptance processes.
Deferred Loan Cost

Loan costs are capitalized upon the issuahtmng-term debt and amortized over the life of thlated debt using the straight-line method
for our revolving credit facility and non-amortigjriloating rate notes. Amortization of deferredraasts is included in interest expense.
Upon changes to our debt structure, we evaluateis&lmnce costs in accordance withEredttopic of the Codification. We adjust debt
issuance costs as necessary based on the resihiis efaluation.

Property, Plant and Equipmer

Property, plant and equipment are recordewsttand depreciated using the straight-line metved the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The estimated lives of the various classassets are as follows:

Buildings and improvemen 20 to 40 year

Machinery and equipme 3 to 10 year:

Furniture and fixture 3to 5 year:

Leasehold improvemen The shorter of the estimated useful life or thearrimg lease terr

Major additions and improvements are capi¢aljavhile maintenance and repairs that do not extes useful life of the property are
charged to expense as incurred. Gains or lossesdigpositions of property, plant and equipmentraoorded in the period incurred. We also
capitalize certain costs of computer software dgwadl or obtained for internal use, including ing¢rerovided that those costs are not
research and development, and certain other erited met.

We periodically evaluate the commercial amdtsgic operation of the land, related buildingd amprovements of our facilities. In
connection with these evaluations, some facilitiesy be consolidated, and others may be sold oededdet gains or losses related to the sale
of real estate and equipment are recorded asgeajjeneral and administrative expenses.

Long-Lived Assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets, other timodwill, for impairment when events or changesiioumstances indicate, in our judgment,
that the carrying value of such assets may noebeverable. The determination of whether impairniastoccurred is based on our estimate
of undiscounted future cash flows before interéisibaitable to the assets as compared to the msjicg value of the assets. If impairment
occurred, the amount of the impairment recognisadktermined by estimating the fair value of theetssbased on estimated discounted fi
cash flows and recording a provision for loss & tarrying value is greater than estimated faweal'he net carrying value of assets
identified to be disposed of in the future is congpiato their estimated fair value, usually the @danarket price obtained from an
independent third-party less the cost to sell giednine if impairment exists. Until the assetsdisposed of, an estimate of the fair value is
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reassessed when related events or circumstancegechzor the years ended December 31, 2010, 2@D2G08, we recorded asset
impairment charges of $0.8 million, $0.5 millionda$2.6 million, respectively. These charges weckted in asset impairments in the
consolidated statements of operations in theiraethge years.

Insurance

We have established insurance programs tor @@r&in insurable risks consisting primarily diygical loss to property, business
interruptions resulting from such loss, workersnmensation, employee healthcare, and comprehegsiral and auto liability. Third party
insurance coverage is obtained for exposures g@determined deductibles as well as for thoses risguired to be insured by law or
contract. Provisions for losses are developed fralations that rely upon our past claims expegemdich considers both the frequency
settlement of claims. We discount our workers’ cemgation liability based upon estimated future payynstreams at our risk-free rate.

Net Loss per Common Sha

Net loss per common share, or earnings peeghaPS”), is calculated in accordance with Bernings per Sharpic of the Codificatiol
which requires the presentation of basic and dil#PS. Basic EPS is computed using the weighteageenumber of common shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is cotagusing the weighted average number of commorestmautstanding during the period,
plus the dilutive effect of potential common shares

The table below presents a reconciliation eiglited average common shares used in the catiulattibasic and diluted EPS for the years
ended December 31:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Weighted average shares for basic | 91,67¢ 39,16+ 38,84:
Dilutive effect of options — — —
Weighted average shares for diluted E 91,67¢ 39,16+ 38,84:

In connection with our common stock rightseoiffig that closed in January 2010, as discussbidie 8, we offered all shareholders the
right to purchase additional shares at an offepirice of $3.50 per share. At the inception of aghts offering the offering price was lower
than the fair value of our common stock, thus @nga bonus element which requires us to retroalgtindjust the weighted average share
basic EPS for all periods presented. Thereforenareased the number of weighted average commaeshaed in computing basic and
diluted EPS for 2009 and 2008 using an adjustnaetof of 1.09.

Our restricted stock shares include righteteive dividends that are not subject to theofslorfeiture even if the underlying restricted
stock shares on which the dividends were paid do@st. In accordance with tl&rnings Per Sharopic of the Codification, unvested
share-based payment awards that containfoidaitable rights to dividends are deemed partitipg securities and should be considered i
calculation of basic EPS. Since the restrictedkssbares do not include an obligation to sharessés, they will be included in our basic EPS
calculation in periods of net income and excludednfour basic EPS calculation in periods of nes.léscordingly, there were 1,865,000,
61,000 and 389,000 restricted stock shares exclirdedthe computation of basic EPS in 2010, 2009 2008, respectively, because we
generated a net loss. Options to purchase 5,96520884,000, and 2,853,000 shares of common steck not included in the computations
of diluted EPS in 2010, 2009, and 2008, respedtjyecause their effect was anti-dilutive.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Intangibles subject to amortizatic

We recognize an acquired intangible asset &émen goodwill whenever the intangible asset &isem contractual or other legal rights, or
whenever it can be separated or divided from tlggiaed entity and sold, transferred, licensed,aénbr exchanged, either individually or in
combination with a related contract, asset or lighimpairment losses are recognized if the cagyalue of an intangible asset subject to
amortization is not recoverable from expected fizash flows and its carrying amount exceeds iiated fair value.
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Goodwill

We recognize goodwill as the excess cost afamuired entity over the net amount assignedgetasicquired and liabilities assumed.
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual sasid between annual tests whenever impairmendisated. This annual test takes place
as of December 31 each year. Impairment losse®eognized whenever the implied fair value of goitlde/less than its carrying value.

Stoclk-based Compensation

We have three stock-based employee compengatas, which are described more fully in Not&\& issue new common stock shares
upon exercises of stock options and grants oficéstr stock.

The fair value of each option award is estedain the date of grant using the Black-Scholemgiricing model with the following
weighted average assumptions for the years endeeniizer 31:

2010 2008
Expected life 6.0 year: 5.0 years
Expected volatility 99.2% 42.2%
Expected dividend yiel 0.0(% 0.0(%
Risk-free rate 2.9%% 2.8%

The expected life represents the period o tine options are expected to be outstanding. Wsider the contractual term, the vesting
period and the expected lives used by a peer gkithpsimilar option terms in determining the expettife assumption. The expected
volatility is based on the historical volatility otir common stock over the most recent period etpuile expected life of the option. The
expected dividend yield is based on our historgaifpaying regular dividends in the past and ourezu intention to not pay regular
dividends in the foreseeable future. The risk-fiage is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curvdfeteat the time of grant and has a term
equal to the expected life of the options. We ditigrant any stock option awards in 2009.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncemel

In January 2010, the FASB issued guidance nuh@d-air Value Measurements and Disclosutepic of the Codification which requires,
in both interim as well as annual financial statetagfor assets and liabilities that are measuréairavalue on a recurring basis, disclosures
regarding the valuation techniques and inputs tsegvelop those measurements. It also requiresatpdisclosures of significant amounts
transferred in and out of Level 1 and Level 2 f@ilue measurements and a description of the redsotise transfers. We have adopted these
provisions and included all required disclosures.

In October 2009, the FASB issued guidance utideMultiple Element Revenue Arrangemeaisic of the Codification which requires
separation of the consideration received in sudmgements by establishing a selling price hiegafohdetermining the selling price of a
deliverable, which will be based on available infation in the following order: vendor-specific ottige evidence, third-party evidence, or
estimated selling price. It also eliminates thédwsl method of allocation, requires that the cdesation be allocated at the inception of the
arrangement to all deliverables using the rela®éng price method, which allocates any disconrhe arrangement to each deliverable on
the basis of each deliverable’s selling price, magiires that a vendor determine its best estiwfagelling price in a manner that is consistent
with that used to determine the price to sell thivérable on a standalone basis. These changasieeeffective for us on January 1, 2011.
We are currently reviewing the impact of these gesnon our financial statements, but we do notebpese changes to have a material
impact on our financial position or results of c@ns.

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidanceutmtBusiness Combinatioriepic of the Codification which addresses divergityhe
interpretation of the pro forma revenue and eamshfigclosure requirements for business combinatibims guidance states if a public entity
presents comparative financial statements, théyesitbuld disclose revenue and earnings of the awedtentity as though the business
combination(s) that occurred during the current yeal occurred as of the beginning of the comparphibr annual reporting period only.
This guidance became effective on January 1, 20hhd no impact on our financial position or réswf operations.

In December 2010, the FASB issued guidancetimtintangibles-Goodwill and Otheppic of the Codification which modifies Stepl of
the goodwill impairment test for reporting unitstvzero or negative carrying amounts and requinesndity to perform
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Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test if it is redikely than not that a goodwill impairment existhis guidance became effective on
January 1, 2011. It had no impact on our finanp@aition or results of operations.
Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Comprehensive (loss) income is defined ashiamge in equity (net assets) of a business ergerguring a period from transactions and
other events and circumstances from non-owner ssuttconsists of net (loss) income and othergyaird losses affecting stockholders’
equity that, under GAAP, are excluded from net meoThe change in fair value of interest rate swsise only item impacting our
accumulated other comprehensive loss of $2.2 mikind $4.7 million (net of income taxes of zerophBecember 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been recladsidb conform to the current year presentation.

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consisted ofdliewing at December 31:

2010 2009
(In thousands)
Land $ 13,99! $ 14,00'
Buildings and improvemen 61,88: 63,60¢
Machinery and equipme 90,95: 86,68
Furniture and fixture 17,92¢ 19,60¢
Construction in progres 28t 432
Property, plant and equipme 185,04 184,34(
Less: accumulated depreciati 127,97. 120,31!
Property, plant and equipment, | $ 57,06¢ $ 64,02¢

Depreciation expense was $14.9 million, $16ilion and $18.8 million, of which $5.5 million,6$8 million and $7.9 million was includt
in cost of sales, in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respalgtiv

4. Discontinued Operations

In October 2008, we announced our intent tbthe New Jersey market based upon several fadtaisiding the unfavorable conditions
that affect our industry and a poor competitiveitpms which prevented us from generating profitatdsults. We completed our exit plan p
to December 31, 2008 and have no further signifjaamtinuing involvement in these operations. Tassation of operations in this market
was treated as a discontinued operation as it Istidguishable cash flow and operations that haenteliminated from our ongoing
operations. As a result, the operating resulthefMNew Jersey market for the current and prioropisrhave been aggregated and reclassifi
discontinued operations in the consolidated statesn& operations for the years ended Decembe2(@l0, 2009 and 2008.

In 2008, we recorded a $4.0 million goodwitipairment charge and a $0.1 million long-lived ags@airment charge relating to our Ohio
operations. As of December 31, 2008, we had nogilagtmaining in our Ohio reporting unit. In Septber 2008, we also closed two
facilities in Ohio as part of our continued effaidsreduce operating costs and return the marketdfitability.

In the second quarter of 2009, we announcedhtent to exit the entire Ohio market based ugpewveral factors, including the unfavorable
conditions that affect our industry and a poor cetitiye position which prevented us from generapnofitable results. We completed our
exit plan in the second quarter of 2009 and haviirtber significant, continuing involvement in Seeoperations. The cessation of operations
in this market was treated as a discontinued ojoeras it had distinguishable cash flow and openratithat have been eliminated from our
ongoing operations. As a result, the operatingltesf the Ohio market for the current and prioripés have been aggregated and reclass
as discontinued operations in the consolidate@mstamts of operations for the years ended Decenih@(30, 2009 and 2008.

We recognized $1.1 million and $2.4 millionexipense in 2010 and 2009, respectively, whichpuiasarily related to future minimum
lease obligations on closed facilities, and revisito sub-rental income estimates. These amouniscuded in loss from
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discontinued operations in the accompanying codatdd statement of operations for the years endeéiber 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.

In 2009, we sold inventory, machinery and pment with a net book value of approximately $1iiom for cash proceeds of
$0.6 million, resulting in a loss on the sale @<l assets of $0.4 million. We also negotiatecklézrsninations on certain Ohio and New
Jersey locations. We paid approximately $2.1 nmllimder the terms of the agreements to releas®mmsthe remaining obligations under
these leases. As a result, we recorded adjustrteats facility closure reserve in 2009 of approately $1.8 million. These amounts are
included in loss from discontinued operations i dlkcompanying consolidated statement of operatmrbke year ended December 31, 2!

An analysis of our facility closure reservekted to our discontinued operations for the plrieflected is as follows:

2008 Additions Payment: Adjustments 2009 Additions Payment: 2010
(In thousands)

Facility and other exit costs,
net of estimated sub-lease

rental income $ 6,581 $ 1,632 $(3,75) $ (1,779 % 2,69( $ 1,054 $ (919 $ 2,831
Employee severance and
termination benefit 41¢ 79¢ (1,21%) — — — —

Total facility closure reser  $ 7,00¢ $ 2,431 $(4,979 $ (1,779 $ 2,69( $ 1,054 $ (919 $ 2,831

The facility and other exit cost reservesteao our discontinued operations of $2.8 mill@rDecember 31, 2010, of which $2.2 million
is recorded as other long-term liabilities, arenaiily related to future minimum lease paymentvacated facilities.

Sales and loss before income taxes attribeitabbur discontinued operations were as followgte years ended December 31.:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands)
Sales $ — $ 6,57 $ 80,27:
Loss before income taxi $ (1,215 $ (4,965) $(20,11))
5. Goodwill
The changes in the carrying amount of goodmte as follows:
2010 2009

(In thousands)
Balance as of January

Goodwill $151,13¢ $172,08:
Accumulated impairment loss (39,949 (60,89)

111,19¢ 111,19¢
Goodwill related to exited mark — (20,949
Accumulated impairment losses related to exitedket: — 20,94¢

Balance as of December :

Goodwill $151,13¢ $151,13¢
Accumulated impairment loss (39,949 (39,949

Since the beginning of 2008, we closely mamititrends in economic factors and their effectsperating results to determine if an
impairment trigger was present that would warrargessessment of the recoverability of the carrgimgunt of goodwill prior to the required
annual impairment test in accordance withltitangibles — Goodwill and Othéopic of the Codification. During the second quadg2008,
the macroeconomic factors that drive our businestired further prompting us to revise our expéatetand perform an interim impairment
test related to our Florida reporting unit whichsvegnificantly underperforming original expectasoand which also had a smaller valuation
surplus compared to our other reporting units. Basethe results of this interim testing, we deieed that the carrying value of goodwill 1
our Florida reporting unit exceeded its estimatedyfalue and recorded a $3.5 million pre-tax immaint charge. We performed our annual
impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2008 aséaesult of a further decline in the macroecordiadtors that drive our business and in the
valuation surplus for this reporting unit, we reded an additional $36.4 million pre-tax impairmeh&rge for our Florida reporting unit.
These charges were included in asset impairmerkeinonsolidated statement of operations for 288&f December 31, 2008, we had no
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further goodwill value on the balance sheet forBiarida reporting unit. We recorded no goodwilpairment charges in continuing
operations in 2010 and 2009.

The process of evaluating goodwill for impagmhinvolves the determination of fair value of ogporting units. Inherent in such fair va
determinations are certain judgments and estintatatng to future cash flows, including our intergation of current economic indicators
and market valuations and assumptions about categic plans with regard to our operations. Duthéouncertainties associated with such
estimates, actual results could differ from sudimegtes resulting in further impairment of goodwill

In performing our impairment analysis, we deped a range of fair values for our reporting sinising a discounted cash flow
methodology. The discounted cash flow methodolaigtdishes fair value by estimating the presenievaff the projected future cash flow:
be generated from the reporting unit. The discoata applied to the projected future cash flowartive at the present value is intended to
reflect all risks of ownership and the associatskirof realizing the stream of projected futursiciows. The discounted cash flow
methodology uses our projections of financial perfance for a fiverear period. The most significant assumptions uselde discounted ca
flow methodology are the discount rate, the teriiaéue and the expected future revenues, grosginwand operating expenses, which \
among reporting units. Significant assumptions usemlr financial projections include housing ssattmber commaodity prices, and market
share gains.

In 2008, we recorded $4.0 million in goodviifipairment for our Ohio operations which are noaluded in loss from discontinued
operations, net of tax as discussed in Note 4.

6. Intangible Assets

The following table presents intangible assstsf December 31:

2010 2009
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Carrying Amount Amortization Carrying Amount Amortization
(In thousands)
Customer relationshif $ 345¢ $ (1439 $ 345¢ $ (1,039
Non-compete agreemer 712 (532) 712 (389)
Total intangible asse $ 417 $ (1970 $ 4,17C  $ (1,429

During 2008, we recorded a $4.4 million chaiéully impair certain customer relationship inggbles as their carrying values were not
expected to be recovered from future cash flowss Tharge was included in asset impairments irctimsolidated statement of operations for
2008. During the years ended December 31, 201® 208 2008, we recorded amortization expense dtioel to the above-listed intangible
assets of $0.5 million, $1.3 million, and $2.1 ioifl, respectively. The following table presents ¢sémated amortization expense for these
intangible assets for the years ending Decembé¢in3housands):

2011 $ 54z
2012 44¢
2013 381
2014 373
2015 287
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7. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities consisted of the followilaj December 31:

2010 2009
(In thousands)

Accrued payroll and other employee related expe $ 3,49¢ $ 2,23i

Accrued taxe! 4,93¢ 4,79¢

Insurance se-retention reserve 6,872 7,031

Accrued interes 2,50¢ 1,72¢

Advances from custome 1,191 1,02:

Facility closure reserve 1,20¢ 1,33t

Accrued professional fe¢ 701 7,731

Interest rate sway 2,20¢ —

Other 3,16¢ 3,047

Total accrued liabilitie: $26,28¢ $28,92!
8. Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt consisted of the following adember 31:
2010 2009
(In thousands)

Revolving credit facility $ 20,00( $ 20,00(
Floating rate notes

2012 note: 5,24¢ 275,00(

2016 note: 139,71t —

Other lon¢-term debt 4,13¢ 4,18:

169,10: 299,18:

Less: current portion of lo-term debt 5,301 48

Total lon¢-term debt, net of current maturiti $163,80: $299,13!

2007 Senior Secured Credit Agreement

In 2007, we entered into a $350 million rewwodycredit facility (the “2007 Agreement”) with aesortium of banks. The 2007 Agreement
is scheduled to mature in December 2012, but wallure in November 2011 if we have not repaid oemded the maturity of all the
outstanding 2012 notes by that time. The availhbleowing capacity, or borrowing base, under thedillion revolving credit line is
derived primarily from a percentage of our eligibtounts receivable and inventory, as definedbyagreement. During 2009, we reduced
the maximum borrowing capacity under the 2007 Agrexat from $350 million to $250 million as allowed the 2007 Agreement. In
November 2010, we amended the 2007 Agreementgiurdiilucing the maximum borrowing capacity from G2illion to $150 million. We
do not anticipate that our borrowing base will sapfporrowings in excess of these amounts at amt daring the remaining life of the cre
facility. These reductions allowed us to reduceinterest expense related to commitment fees. Asgpahese reductions, we expensed
$0.6 million and $1.2 million related to unamortizéebt issuance costs in 2010 and 2009, respectiieé amendment also reduced our
minimum liquidity requirement, which was previou§i$5.0 million and which is now determined on dislj scale based on our ninety-day
average gross availability, as follows:

Ninety Day Average Minimum Liquidity
Gross Availability Requirement

Greater than $130.0 millic $18.75 million
Less than or equal to $130.0 million and greaten t880.0 millior $16.25 million
Less than or equal to $80.0 millit $10.00 million
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Interest rates under the 2007 Agreement asecban a base rate plus an applicable margin. abe tate is the larger of the rate determ
by the administrative agent (typically their primage) or the Federal Funds Rate plus one-half pgras each term is defined by the
agreement. A variable commitment fee, currently28%, is charged on the unused amount of the rervalve is based on our quarterly
average excess availability. The weighted-averatpeast rate at December 31, 2010 for borrowingstanding under the 2007 Agreement
was 3.75%. At December 31, 2010, we had outstardtteys of credit of approximately $15.9 million.

Loans are collateralized by substantiallyolbur assets, primarily accounts receivable amdnitory, and are guaranteed by us and certain
of our subsidiaries. Our net borrowing availabilityexcess of the required minimum liquidity covenat December 31, 2010 was
$22.6 million. The 2007 Agreement has certain reste covenants, which, among other things, refatihe payment of dividends, incurrel
of indebtedness, and asset sales. We were natlation of any of these covenants as of DecembeP@10. The 2007 Agreement also has a
fixed charge coverage ratio of 1:1 that is triggeifeour available borrowing capacity, as deterrdin@der the borrowing base formula, is less
than a minimum liquidity requirement. At Decembér 3010, the minimum liquidity requirement was $ll@illion. The calculation allows
cash on deposit with the agent to be includedigibkd borrowing base. At December 31, 2010, weenwst required to have any cash on
deposit with the agent since there was no shoitfale calculation of the $10.0 million minimungiidity requirement. If the $10.0 million
minimum liquidity requirement was triggered in 209 would not have met the fixed charge coveratje.rBased on our 2011 forecast,
while we will not meet the fixed charge coveragiorave anticipate that we will not fall below th@nimum liquidity covenant in 2011
including the use of cash on deposit with the agéetefore, we will not trigger the fixed chargmserage ratio requirement. The fixed charge
coverage ratio is defined as the ratio of earnbefsre interest expenses, income taxes, depretiatid amortization expenses minus capital
expenditures, cash taxes paid, dividends, disiohatand share repurchases or redemptions to thesacheduled principal payments and
interest expense on a trailing twelve month basisifthe trigger date.

Floating Rate Notes due 2012

As of December 31, 2009, we had $275.0 miliioaggregate principal amount of Floating Rateddatue February 15, 2012 (“2012
notes”). Interest accrues at a rate of LIBOR pl25%. LIBOR is reset at the beginning of each aqubriperiod. The weighted-average
interest rate at December 31, 2010 for the rem@iR012 notes was 4.5%. Interest on the 2012 nsteayiable quarterly in arrears. At any
time, we can redeem some or all of the 2012 ndtparaln the event of a change in control, we m@yequired to offer to purchase the 2012
notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of theipah plus accrued and unpaid interest. At Decarlie2010, we had $5.3 million in
outstanding 2012 notes, as we repaid or exchangesdantially all of the notes as part of the defshange discussed below. We intend to
repay the $5.3 million of outstanding 2012 notesrdp2011, and therefore have classified this amhasra current liability as of December
31, 2010 in the accompanying consolidated balaheets

Rights Offering and Debt Exchang

On January 21, 2010, we completed a commark sights offering and debt exchange for our 20&&s. As part of these transactions, we
raised $180.1 million of new equity capital throubk issuance of 51,459,184 shares of common stdtle rights offering at a subscription
price of $3.50 per share. We used $105.1 milliothefproceeds from the rights offering to repuret@portion of the 2012 notes in the debt
exchange. We used a portion of the remaining $T8I®n of proceeds to pay expenses of the rigfftsrmg and the debt exchange and the
remainder is being used for general corporate &R0

In the debt exchange, holders of the 2012snetehanged, at par, $269.8 million aggregate pdhamount of 2012 notes for (i)
$139.7 million aggregate principal amount of SecBndrity Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes dus202016 notes”), (ii) $105.1 million
in cash from the proceeds of the rights offering] &ii) 7,112,244 shares of our common stock. \lge amended the indenture under which
the 2012 notes were issued to eliminate substhnsitilof the restrictive covenants, certain coimtis to defeasance, and certain events of
default and to release the liens on the collagralring the 2012 notes. As a result of the detita@xge, we reduced our indebtedness by
$130.0 million and extended the maturity of $138ilfion of indebtedness until 2016. There was nm @ loss recognized on the
extinguishment of the 2012 notes since the notes exchanged at par value for cash and common stbiath had a closing price on the
transaction date that was equal to the exchange pfi$3.50 per share. At December 31, 2010, cuwtdd debt was $165.0 million, which
consisted of $20.0 million of outstanding borrowsngnder our senior secured revolving credit faGi#139.7 million of 2016 notes, and
$5.3 million of our remaining 2012 notes.

In connection with our rights offering and tlekchange, we incurred approximately $9.4 milldvarious third-party fees and expenses.
Of the total costs incurred, $0.5 million, net m§iurance recoveries, related to the settlememieofdnsolidated class and derivative action
lawsuit involving our initial recapitalization plarand $2.6 million primarily related to the speciainmittee formed
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to review and respond to the recapitalization psafhdSubstantially all of these costs were incuened expensed in 2009 as a component of
selling, general and administrative expenses. €heming $6.3 million of costs incurred were coesatl to be directly related to the issue

of the common stock and the 2016 notes in thesigffering and debt exchange. These costs wereaddd to the debt and equity based on
their relative fair value to the total consideratissued in the transaction. Accordingly, $3.7 imillwas allocated to the rights offering and
recorded as a reduction to additional paid-in edyitthe first quarter of 2010. The remaining $2lion of costs were allocated to the 2016
notes and expensed primarily in the first quarfe201.0 as a component of interest expense, netd&éhtexchange was considered to be a
modification, and therefore, any thighrty costs were expensed as incurred. In addi#ibmg million of unamortized debt issue costs esldt
the 2012 notes that were extinguished as parteofrémsaction were expensed in the first quart@0ab and also included in interest expense,
net. The remaining $1.9 million of unamortized disBtie costs are being amortized over the terrheobtitstanding floating rate notes.

Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rate Nothse 201€

As of December 31, 2010, we have $139.7 millioaggregate principal amount of new 2016 ndiasrature on February 15, 2016.
Interest accrues on the 2016 notes at a 3-mont@RIBsubject to a 3.0% floor) plus 10.0%. LIBORéset at the beginning of each quarterly
period. The weighted-average interest rate at Dbee®l, 2010 for the 2016 notes was 13.0%. Inteneshe 2016 notes is payable quarterly
in arrears. At any time we can redeem some orfdle@2016 notes at a redemption price equal tphera specified premium that declines
ratably to par. In the event of a change in conts@ may be required to offer to purchase the 2uités at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the principal, plus accrued and unpaid interest.

The 2016 notes are jointly and severally got@ed by all of our subsidiaries and collateralibgd pledge of common stock of certain of
our subsidiaries and by a second priority lien wimsgantially all tangible and intangible propertydanterests in property and proceeds thereof
now owned or hereafter acquired by us and subathndill of our subsidiaries. All of the subsidiasiare wholly-owned and domiciled in the
United States. The parent company has no indepéadeets or operations, and the guarantees amnfililinconditional. The indenture
covering the 2016 notes contains certain restaatvenants, which, among other things, relatbégpaiyment of dividends, incurrence of
indebtedness, repurchase of common stock or otbiibditions, asset sales and investments.

Interest Rate Swap

In the first quarter of 2008, we entered itiee interest rate swap agreements with notianauats of $100.0 million, $50.0 million and
$50.0 million. We entered into these interest sataps in order to mitigate a portion of the interate risk that we were exposed to in the
normal course of business on our floating rate si1dtbe swap agreements, effective May 15, 2008 fggra term of three years. The interest
rate swaps qualified as fully effective, cash-floedging instruments. Therefore, all changes invaline of the qualifying cash flow hedges
were reported in accumulated other comprehensiasdad reclassified into earnings in the same gémniavhich the hedge transactions
affected earnings.

In December 2009, certain conditions of theppsed recapitalization plan were met which indiddhat the transaction was considered
probable of occurring. The recapitalization pladueed our outstanding floating rate notes to $14%lllon causing a portion of the future
cash flows being hedged by our $200 million swapset deemed probable of not occurring. As a resubecember 2009 we cancelled and
settled our $50 million swap with a fixed rate 2% for $1.7 million. Primarily all of this paymewas expensed and was included as a
component of interest expense, net in the condelidstatement of operations for the year ended beee31, 2009. Under the remaining
$100 million and $50 million swap agreements, weegaying fixed rates of 3.25% and 3.17%, respegtieand receiving a variable rate at
90 day LIBOR. In December 2009, we also de-desahtte remaining $150 million of our swaps. Amountduded in accumulated other
comprehensive loss for $5.0 million of the remagngwaps were reclassed to expense in 2009 asshdloas being hedged were considered
probable of not occurring. Amounts included in analated other comprehensive loss at December 3B Rfated to the remaining $145.0
million of swaps were frozen and will be amortizeer the remaining terms of the swaps. Any subsdqlenges in the fair value of these
swaps are recognized in interest expense, néieindnsolidated statement of operations.
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The tables below present the effect of owerist rate swap derivatives on the consolidateédratnts of operations for the years ended
December 31 (in thousands):

Amount of Loss Amount of Loss Reclassifiec

Derivatives Designhatec Recognized in OCI* Location of Loss Reclassifie from OCI Into Income*

as Hedging Instruments 2010 2009 from OCI into Income 2010 2009 2008
Interest rate swag $ — $ (3,35)) Interest expense, n $ — $(6,08¢) $ (83¢)

Amount of Loss

Derivatives Not Designatec Location of Loss Recognize Recognized in Income*

as Hedging Instruments in Income 2010 2009 2008
Interest rate swag Interest expense, n $(3,809) $ — $ —

* Net of tax

When our interest rate swap agreements aaeet asset position, we are exposed to crediésassthe event of non-performance by
counterparties. The amount of such credit exposuimited to the unrealized gains on our swaps.N&fee not experienced any credit loss as
a result of counterparty nonperformance in the.pastmanage credit risks, we generally select apatrties who are part of our banking
syndicate and settle on a net basis. We perforomadeyly assessment of our counterparty credit imsituding a review of credit ratings,
credit default swap rates, and potential nonperéme of the counterparty. Since the counterpanpaitof the bank syndicate, we also wc
have the ability to net amounts owed to us againgtoutstanding borrowings under the 2007 Agreentketeby reducing the credit risk.

When interest rate swap agreements are imlgbdity position, we are required to establsheserve against our borrowing base equal to
110% of the fair value of the interest rate swapshe last day of the month. This reserve effettiveduces our available borrowing capacity
under the 2007 Agreement. At December 31, 2010rgberve for the swaps was $2.4 million. The svaapsalso collateralized in a manner
similar to the loans under the 2007 Agreementhéndvent of default, or if we or the counterpadty to be part of the 2007 Agreement, an
early termination event would be triggered whichldaequire us to settle the swaps on the terminalate at the then fair market value.

Fair Value

TheFair Value Measurements and Disclosutegic of the Codification provides a framework foeasuring the fair value of assets and
liabilities and establishes a fair value hierartigt requires an entity to maximize the use of nlzd#e inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.f@lievalue hierarchy can be summarized as follows:

Level 1 — unadjusted quoted prices for idaitassets or liabilities in active markets accdsdily us
Level 2 — inputs that are observable in thekatplace other than those inputs classified aglLév
Level 3 — inputs that are unobservable inrttegketplace and significant to the valuation

If a financial instrument uses inputs that ifaldifferent levels of the hierarchy, the instrent will be categorized based upon the lowest
level of input that is significant to the fair valealculation.

The only financial instruments measured atvalue on a recurring basis are our interestsai@ps. We do not trade in swaps or hold tl
for speculative purposes, therefore, the retailetzthat exists for swaps would be the most adgmuas market for our interest rate swaps.
As such, we use the market approach to value ¢emeist rate swaps by obtaining a quote from theteoparty that is based on a discounted
cash flow analysis which incorporates informatidmained from third-party market sources and is sty for company specific credit risk.
We validate the fair value quote obtained fromabenterparty by using an independent, third-paitgalinted cash flow analysis which also
utilizes market information. These techniques ipooate Level 1 and Level 2 inputs. In additiontte term and notional amount inputs, the
valuation also factors in discount rate, forwarelgicurves, and credit
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risk. Significant inputs to the derivative valuatifor interest rate swaps are observable in theeaotarkets and are classified as Level 2 ir
hierarchy.

The following fair value hierarchy table preteinformation about our financial instruments mead at fair value on a recurring basis
using significant other observable inputs (Levefi@)thousands):

Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value
As of December 31 Measurement as ¢ As of December 3! Measurement as ¢
2010 December 31, 201 2009 December 31, 20C

Interest rate swaps (included in Total liabiliti $ 2,20¢ $ 2,20¢ $ 531£ $ 5,31¢

We have elected to continue to report theevaluour floating rate notes at amortized cost. @dreying value of the floating rate notes and
amounts outstanding under the revolving creditifgct December 31, 2010, approximate fair value.

Other Long-Term Debt

In 2006, we completed construction on a newWtirpurpose facility. Based on the evaluation af ttonstruction project in accordance with
the Leasedopic of the Codification, we were deemed the owafehe facility during the construction periodfédtively, a sale and leaseback
of the facility occurred when construction was céetgd and the lease term began. This transactibnati qualify for sale-leaseback
accounting. As a result, the building and the dffisg long-term lease obligation are included om tbnsolidated balance sheet as a
component of fixed assets and other long-term debpectively. The building is being depreciatedrats useful life, and the lease obligation
is being amortized such that there will be no gaitoss recorded if the lease is not extendedeaétid of the term.

Future maturities of long-term debt as of Daber 31, 2010 were as follows (in thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2011 $ 5,301
2012 20,05}
2013 63
2014 69
2015 76
Thereatftel 143,53t

Total lon¢-term debt (including current portio $169,10:

9. Employee StockBased Compensation

2007 Incentive Plan

Under our 2007 Incentive Plan (“2007 Plan"g were authorized to grant awards in the form oéimive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, restricted stock, other common steaed awards and cash-based awards. In Janudlyd@@lshareholders approved an
amendment to our 2007 Plan which increased the auoftshares of common stock that may be grantesbipat to awards under the 2007
Plan from 2.5 million shares to 7.0 million sharEse maximum number of common shares reservedéogitant of awards under the 2007
Plan is 7.0 million, subject to adjustment as pded by the 2007 Plan. No more than 7.0 million ehanay be made subject to options or
stock appreciation rights (“SARs”) granted under 2007 Plan, and no more than 3.5 million shargslmeanade subject to stock-based
awards other than options or SARs. Stock optiois@kRs granted under the 2007 Plan may not haearadxceeding 10 years from the
date of grant. The 2007 Plan also provides thatvadrds will become fully vested and/or exercisalglen a change in control (as defined in
the 2007 Plan). Other specific terms for awardstg@under the 2007 Plan shall be determined by ouampensation Committee (or the bc
of directors if so determined by the board of divex). Historically, awards granted under the 2BGh generally vest ratably over a three to
four-year period. As of December 31, 2010, 1.1lionilkhares were available for issuance under tB& 2@an, 1.1 million of which may be
made subject to stock-based awards other thannsptioSARS.
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2005 Equity Incentive Plan

Under our 2005 Equity Incentive Plan (“200&rP), we are authorized to grant stock-based awiartie form of incentive stock options,
non-qualified stock options, restricted stock atiteocommon stock-based awards. The maximum nuofllEmmon shares reserved for the
grant of awards under the 2005 Plan is 2.2 millgrbject to adjustment as provided by the 2005.Mammore than 2.2 million shares may
made subject to options or SARs granted under@98 Plan, and no more than 1.1 million shares neamade subject to stock-based awards
other than options or SARs. Stock options and S@faated under the 2005 Plan may not have a tereeelitag 10 years from the date of
grant. The 2005 Plan also provides that all awaitidecome fully vested and/or exercisable upahange in control (as defined in the 2005
Plan). Other specific terms for awards granted utitee 2005 Plan shall be determined by our boawirettors (or a committee of its
members). Historically, awards granted under th@gbZ@lan generally vest ratably over a three-yedog@eAs of December 31, 2010, 708,000
shares were available for issuance under the 2@0% #13,000 of which may be made subject to stmaded awards other than options or
SARs.

1998 Stock Incentive Plan

Under the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Btocentive Plan (“1998 Plan”), we were authoritedssue shares of common stock
pursuant to awards granted in various forms, inolgihcentive stock options, non-qualified stockiops and other stock-based awards. The
1998 Plan also authorized the sale of common siadlkerms determined by our board of directors.

Stock options granted under the 1998 Planrgdineliff vest after a period of seven to nineayg with certain option grants subject to
acceleration if certain financial targets were niéte expiration date is generally 10 years subsgdoedate of issuance. As of January 1,
2005, no further grants will be made under the 1PB&.

On April 23, 2008, we filed a Tender Offer tetaent on Schedule TO (the “Exchange Offer”) witl Securities and Exchange
Commission. The Exchange Offer was an offer byousettain optionholders to exchange their outstamdiock option grants, whether ves
or unvested, to purchase shares of our common,gtackalue $0.01 per share, granted under the RGOBwith an exercise price per share
greater than or equal to $17.90 for new option grémbe granted under the 2005 Plan. The Exch@rfige was made to employees who, as
of the date the Exchange Offer commenced, wereagtemployed by us and held eligible option grafitee Exchange Offer was approved
by our shareholders at our annual meeting on May@@8. We accepted for cancellation, eligible @pijrants to purchase an aggregate of
943,200 shares of our common stock, representifgoldf the total shares of common stock underlyiptjons eligible for exchange in the
Exchange Offer on May 22, 2008, the expiration ddititne Exchange Offer. Contemporaneous with tieelation, our board of directors
granted an equivalent number of stock options ¢cefigible employees on May 22, 2008 with an exergirice of $7.15, which was the
closing price of our common stock on that date.

The exchange of original options for new optipants was treated as a modification of the wailgbptions. The remaining unamortized
stock compensation expense related to the origiptEdns continues to be amortized over the origiesting period related to those options.
The compensation expense for the incremental diffsg between the fair value of the new optionstaadair value of the original options on
the date of modification, reflecting the currergtfaand circumstances on the modification dateeisg amortized over the vesting period of
the new option grants which vest ratably over mtef approximately three years.

The following table summarizes our stock op@ativity:

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Exercise Remaining Aggregate
Options Price Years Intrinsic Value
(In thousands’ (In thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,28¢ $ 5.17
Grantec 3,98t $ 3.1¢
Forfeited (309 $ 3.7¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 5,96¢ $ 3.92 7.5 $ —
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 1,92 $ 4.9¢ 4.5 $ —

The outstanding options at December 31, 20&@ide options to purchase 4,115,000 shares gramigdel the 2007 Plan, 804,000 shares
granted under the 2005 Plan and 1,046,000 shades the 1998 Plan. As of December 31, 2010, optiomsirchase 233,000 shares unde
2007 Plan, 649,000 shares under the 2005 Plan,84d,000 shares under the 1998 Plan awards wereissdge.
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The weighted average grant date fair value of agtgranted during the years ended December 31, 212008 was $2.54 and $2.75
(excluding options re-granted in the Exchange Qffer share, respectively. No option awards weaatgd during 2009. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during the years endeckBber 31, 2009 and 2008 was $0.2 million and &lll®n, respectively. We realized
tax benefits for stock options exercised duringytears ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. No optiersexercised in 2010.

Outstanding and exercisable stock optionsemieinber 31, 2010 were as follows (shares in thais3an

Outstanding Exercisable
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Average Average Average
Exercise Remaining Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Shares Price Years Shares Price
$3.15 1,04¢ $ 3.1t 2.C 1,041 $ 3.1t
$3.19- $3.24 3,77( $ 3.1¢ 9.1 — $ —
$6.70- $7.15 1,14¢ $ 7.01 7.3 882 $ 7.0%
$3.15- $7.15 5,96¢ $ 3.9z 7.2 1,92 $ 4.9:

The following table summarizes restricted ktactivity for the year ended December 31, 201@r@h in thousands):

Weighted
Average Grant
Shares Date Fair Value
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 61 $ 11.21
Granted 1,97¢ $ 3.1C
Vested (57) $ 11.57
Forfeited (117 $ 3.2¢€
Nonvested at December 31, 2(C 1,86¢ $ 3.0¢

Our results of operations included stock comspéon expense of $4.3 million ($4.3 million nétaxes), $2.9 million ($2.9 million net of
taxes) and $8.5 million ($8.5 million net of taxés) the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 ad8, 28spectively. As of December 31,
2010, there was $10.6 million of total unrecognizethpensation cost related to non-vested sharedlzasepensation arrangements granted
under the Plans. That cost is expected to be rémedjover a weighted-average period of 3.1 years.

10. Facility Closure Costs

During 2010, we idled six facilities: two diitution facilities in South Carolina, two manufaghg facilities in Florida, and two
manufacturing facilities in Maryland. We also cldgeo distribution facilities: one in South Caraiand one in North Carolina. We
recognized $0.7 million in expense, which was primaelated to employee severance and termindirmefits for these idled and closed
facilities and revisions to sub-rental income eati®s on other closed facilities. Of the $0.7 millrecognized in expense during 2010, $0.6
was included in facility closure costs and $0.1lionlwas included in interest expense, net in t@empanying consolidated statement of
operations.

During 2009, we developed and executed atplaiose a distribution facility in Maryland and administrative facility in South Carolina.
In 2009, we recognized $1.4 million in expense,chihwas primarily related to future minimum leaséigdtions on these vacated facilities,
net of estimated sub-rental lease income, as wé#lase termination costs and revisions toremal income estimates. Of the $1.4 million
recognized in expense during 2009, $1.2 million imakided in facility closure costs and $0.2 miflivas included in interest expense, net in
the accompanying consolidated statement of op@satio

During 2008, we idled three facilities: a méaaturing facility and a distribution facility inlérida, as well as a distribution facility in
Georgia. We also developed and executed a plaioge tour facilities located in North Carolina, Ggia and Texas. In conjunction with this
plan, we disposed of assets and terminated em@oyée sold owned real estate related to closetitfesifor approximately $0.9 million
resulting in an immaterial loss on the sale. Du20@8, we recognized approximately $1.4 milliorekpense related to closed facilities, of
which $1.2 million was included in facility closuecests and $0.2 million was included in interegiemse, net in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations.
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An analysis of our facility closure reservesthe periods reflected is as follows:

2008 Additions Payments 2009 Additions Payments 2010
(In thousands)

Facility and other exit costs, ni
of estimated sub-lease rent.

income $ 2,47¢ $ 1,394 $(1, 54) $ 2,33( $ 48¢ $ (1,07)) $ 1,745
Employee severance and

termination benefit 13¢ 26 (164) — 24€ (239) 12

Total facility closure reserv $ 2,61¢ $ 1,42 $ (1,706 $ 2,33 $ 734 $ (1,305 $ 1,75¢

The facility and other exit cost reserves bB3million at December 31, 2010, of which $1.1liwrl is recorded as other long-term
liabilities, are primarily related to future minimulease payments on vacated facilities.

As plans to close facilities are developed executed, assets that can be used at otheritzctite transferred and assets to be abandoned
or sold are written down to their net realizabl&ureaincluding any long-lived assets. In situatiarigere multiple facilities serve the same
market we may temporary close, or idle, facilitieth plans to reopen these facilities once demaiuains to the market. At December 31,
2010, we had ten idled facilities; four in Floridaree in South Carolina, two in Maryland and am&georgia. In these situations, finite lived
assets continue to be depreciated and assessetpfirment. Should conditions in our markets wors@rrecovery take significantly longer
than forecasted, we may temporarily idle or perméypelose additional facilities, at which time wey incur additional facility closure costs
or asset impairment charges. Future non-cash imeaircharges would have the effect of decreasingaunings or increasing our losses in
such period, but would not impact our current aurtding debt obligations or compliance with covesamantained in the related debt
agreements. We continuously monitor economic canitin all our markets, and while at the presgnétthere are no plans to close or idle
additional facilities, changes in market conditionay warrant future closings or idling of facilsie

11. Income Taxes
The components of income tax benefit inclughecbntinuing operations were as follows for thangeended December 31:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands,
Current:
Federal $ (99 $  (31,73¢) $(36,240)
State 221 502 (42¢)
128 (31,239 (36,666
Deferred:
Federal (1,389 37¢ 19,36¢
State 14¢ 33 (368
(1,23%) 411 18,99¢
Income tax benef $(1,117) $ (30,829 $(17,670)
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Temporary differences, which give rise to defe tax assets and liabilities, were as followsfd3ecember 31:

2010 2009
(In thousands)
Deferred tax assets related

Accrued expense $ 46: $ 337
Insurance reserve 3,10¢ 3,852
Facility closure reserve 1,77¢ 1,94¢
Stocl-based compensation expel 4,692 3,43:
Accounts receivabl 714 1,62(
Inventories 1,30 1,24¢
Operating loss and credit carryforwal 67,25¢ 30,39«
Interest rate swap agreeme 773 2,63¢
Goodwill 5,51¢ 6,46<
Property, plant and equipme 5,66¢ 4,29¢
Other 42k 39¢€
91,69¢ 56,621
Valuation allowanct (87,669 (52,839
Total deferred tax asse 4,034 3,78¢
Deferred tax liabilities related t
Prepaid expenst 1,261 1,34
Goodwill 6,54¢ 6,137
Total deferred tax liabilitie 7,81( 7,48¢
Net deferred tax liabilit $ (3,776 $ (3,700

A reconciliation of the statutory federal imoe tax rate to our effective rate for continuin@i@gtions is provided below for the years ended
December 31:

2010 2009 2008
Statutory federal income tax re 35.(% 35.(% 35.(%
State income taxes, net of federal income 3.2% 3.1% 2.€%
Effect of changes in tax la —% 2.4% —%
Valuation allowanct (37.)% (4.9% (22.8%
Non-deductible goodwill impairmer —% —% (2.2%
Other —% (1.0% 0.2%

1.2% 35.1% 12.8%

We have $474.7 million of state operating lcasy-forwards and $2.8 million of state tax ctedirry-forwards expiring at various dates
through 2031. We also have $121.7 million of fetleed operating loss carry-forwards that will exgpat various dates through 2031. The
federal and state operating loss carry-forwardsuebecapproximately $1.8 million of gross windfalktbenefits from stock option exercises
that have not been recorded as of December 31, 70E3e deferred tax assets will be recorded ascapase to additional paid in capital
when the related tax benefits are realized.

We evaluate our deferred tax assets on aeqliattasis to determine whether a valuation allovesis required. We assess whether a
valuation allowance should be established basesliodetermination of whether it is more likely thaot that some portion or all of the
deferred tax assets will not be realized. In lighthe continued downturn in the housing market #ieduncertainty as to its length and
magnitude and the additional asset impairmentsdecoduring 2008, we were in a three-year cumuddtgs position. Cumulative losses in
recent years represent significant negative evielémconsidering whether deferred tax assets atizable, and also generally preclude
relying on projections of future taxable incomestmpport the recovery of deferred tax assets. Therefluring 2008, we recorded a valuation
allowance totaling approximately $41.2 million awgiprimarily all of our net deferred tax assefsybich $31.6 million related to our
continuing operations, $3.0 million related to sthemprehensive (loss) income, and $6.6 millioated to our discontinued operations. We
recorded an additional valuation allowance of appnately $35.4 million and $3.9 million in 2010 a@609, respectively, related to our
continuing operations. We excluded the deferredigdoilities related to certain indefinite livedtamgibles when calculating the amount of
valuation allowance needed as these liabilitiemothe considered as a source of income when digiegrthe realizability of the net
deferred tax assets. The valuation allowance wagded as a reduction to income tax benefit.
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The deferred tax assets for which there igaloation allowance relate to amounts that carebézed through future reversals of existing
taxable temporary differences or through the geaimeraf sufficient taxable income. To the extent generate sufficient taxable income in
future to fully utilize the tax benefits of the rigferred tax assets on which a valuation allowaverecorded, our effective tax rate may
decrease as the valuation allowance is reversed.

The following table shows the changes in aloation allowance:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands’

Balance at January $52,83¢ $ 51,05¢ $ 9,97(
Additions charged to expens

Continuing operation 35,39:¢ 3,88: 31,60

Discontinued operatior 46¢ — 6,562
Additions charged to other comprehensive — — 3,03¢
Deductions (1,039 (2,100 (119
Balance at December 2 $87,66¢ $ 52,83¢ $51.05¢

On November 6, 2009, the Worker, Homeownersdmip Business Assistance Act of 2009 was enantedaw and extended the carry-
back period to up to five years for which curreaetiylosses can be offset against previously gestbtakable income. Due to this federal tax
legislation, we were able to carry back losses gead in 2009 against taxable income generate8@3,2005, and 2004. As a result, we
recorded an income tax receivable of approxim&8B.8 million in the consolidated balance sheeifa3ecember 31, 2009. We recognized
an income tax benefit of $2.1 million in continuiogerations related to losses generated by ouonliseied operations due to this change in
tax law. No state in which we file adopted the Awgid as such no state benefits were realized fnenextended carry-back provision.

We accrue interest and penalties on our uaicetdx positions as a component of our provis@ariricome taxes. We accrued interest and
penalties of $0.1 million, $0.1 million and $0.1llion in 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We amtuced interest and penalties by $0.5
million in 2008 due to settlements with taxing aartties and the lapse of applicable statutes oftditions. We had a total of $0.4 and
$0.3 million accrued for interest and penaltiesdor uncertain tax positions as of December 310201 2009, respectively.

The following table shows the changes in tm@ant of our uncertain tax positions (exclusivehaf effect of interest and penalties):

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands’

Balance at January $ 2,39¢ $ 1,291 $ 2,347
Tax positions taken in prior perioc

Gross increase 2 22 26

Gross decreast (329 — (63)
Tax positions taken in current peric

Gross increase 10t 1,084 111
Settlements with taxing authoriti — — (705)
Lapse of applicable statute of limitatic (110 (1) (429
Balance at December 2 $ 2,06¢ $ 2,39¢ $ 1,297

If our uncertain tax positions were recognjzetienefit of $0.4 million, net of any U.S. Fedeax benefit, would affect our effective
income tax rate.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax elé as income tax of multiple state jurisdictioBaised on completed examinations and the
expiration of statutes of limitations, we have daded all U.S. federal income tax matters for yelarsugh 2004. We report in 16 states with
various years open to examination.

12. Employee Benefit Plans

We maintain one active defined contributiod &) plan. Our employees are eligible after comptesix months of employment to
participate in the Builders FirstSource, Inc. 4QXlkan. Participants can contribute up to 15% efrtannual compensation, subject to
federally mandated maximums. Participants are iniatelg vested in their own contributions. We maactertain percentage of
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the contributions made by participating employsesject to IRS limitations. Our matching contrilouis are subject to a pro-rata five-year
vesting schedule. We recognized expense of $01&mif0.8 million and $2.4 million in 2010, 20082008, respectively, for contributions
to the plan.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

We lease certain land, buildings and equiprosatl in operations. These leases are generathyiad for as operating leases with initial
terms ranging from one to 20 years and generalyato renewal options. Certain operating leasesuaipgect to contingent rentals based on
various measures, primarily consumer price indereases. Total rent expense under operating l@easeapproximately $27.1 million,
$31.6 million and $34.8 million for the years end@ecember 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

In addition, we have residual value guaranteesertain equipment leases. Under these leaséaweethe option of (a) purchasing the
equipment at the end of the lease term, (b) armanfgir the sale of the equipment to a third pawty(c) returning the equipment to the lessc
sell the equipment. If the sales proceeds in asg eae less than the residual value, we are rehtgreeimburse the lessor for the deficiency
up to a specified level as stated in each leaszeatgnt. If the sales proceeds exceed the residlud, we are entitled to all of such excess
amounts. The guarantees under these leases fasideal values of equipment at the end of theaetdge operating lease periods
approximated $1.9 million as of December 31, 2@®Ad%ed upon the expectation that none of thesedessseets will have a residual value at
the end of the lease term that is materially lbas the value specified in the related operatingdeagreement or that we will purchase the
equipment at the end of the lease term, we do el@\Je it is probable that we will be required tmd any amounts under the terms of these
guarantee arrangements. Accordingly, no accruale haen recognized for these guarantees.

Future minimum commitments for noncancelalplerating leases with initial or remaining leasengin excess of one year are as follows:

Related Party Total*
Year ending December 31 (In thousands)
2011 $ 1,164 $22,09:
2012 1,084 15,71¢
2013 82< 13,92¢
2014 51€ 12,31¢
2015 162 9,26¢
Thereafte — 17,79(

$  3,74¢ $91,10¢

* Includes related party future minimum commitmeatsibncancelable operating leas:
We have outstanding letters of credit totatii®.9 million that principally support our selftieation insurance programs.

In the third quarter of 2010, we received $hilion from a litigation settlement. This settlent was recorded as a reduction of selling,
general and administrative expenses in the accoymmaoonsolidated statement of operations in 2010.

In the third quarter of 2009, we were named asminal defendant, and our directors named fendants, in a consolidated class and
derivative action lawsuit and an additional derivaiaction lawsuit related to our initial recapitaktion plans. The additional lawsuit was
consolidated in October 2009 with the earlier fil@disuits. In December 2009, the Delaware Cou@lrdincery approved the proposed
settlement of this consolidated class and derieadstion lawsuit. The terms of the settlement atéasth in the definitive Stipulation and
Agreement of Compromise, Settlement, and Releaagragd to in November 2009. We paid $2.4 millimecember 2009 in accordance
with the terms of the settlement. Based on an ageeéwith our insurance carrier this amount waseetgd to be reimbursed under our
insurance policy and therefore, was included ireptlceivables in our consolidated balance sheeft @scember 31, 2009. We also incurred
additional legal fees and other administrative £oslated to the lawsuit of approximately $0.5 imillwhich were expensed in the
consolidated statement of operations in 2009. briry 2010, we were reimbursed under our insurantiey for the full amount of the
settlement payment.

We are a party to various legal proceedinghénordinary course of business. Although thendte disposition of these proceedings
cannot be predicted with certainty, managemenebes the outcome of any claim that is pending i@atened, either individually or on a
combined basis, will not have a material adverfecebn our consolidated financial position, cdsté or
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results of operations. However, there can be narasses that future costs would not be materialtoresults of operations or liquidity for a
particular period.

14. Segment and Product Information

We have three regional operating segments lanfit, Southeast and Central — with centralizearficial and operational oversight. We
believe that these operating segments meet thegajipn criteria prescribed in tisgment Reportingpic of the Codification, and thus he
one reportable segment.

Sales by product category were as followgHeryears ended December 31:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands,
Prefabricated componer $ 13546 $ 129,78 $ 194,17
Windows & doors 161,07¢ 163,95:. 248,51!
Lumber & lumber sheet goo 201,44! 164,62 238,71¢
Millwork 75,84: 72,79¢ 102,80:
Other building products & servici 126,50 146,72¢ 207,80
Total sales $ 700,34 $ 677,88t $ 992,01

15. Related Party Transactions

An affiliate of JLL Partners, Inc. is a pripal beneficial owner of PGT, Inc. Floyd F. Shermaum, president and chief executive officer,
serves on the board of directors for PGT, Inc. Wielpased windows from PGT, Inc. totaling $2.7 roilli $3.0 million and $2.8 million in
2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively. We had accqayable to PGT, Inc. in the amounts of $0.3 milléord $0.4 million as of December 31,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

In 2010, 2009 and 2008, we paid approximéabalyd million, $1.3 million and $1.4 million, resgeely, in rental expense to employees or
our non-affiliate stockholders for leases of land auildings.

As of December 31, 2009, JLL Partners, Ind \&farburg Pincus indirectly owned $97.8 million eeggate principal amount of our 2012
notes which were purchased during 2009 in the pubérket. Interest was paid on these notes duh@géear in accordance with the terms of
the 2012 notes. In connection with the rights dfigiand debt exchange discussed in Note 8, JLLVWdaburg Pincus each exercised rights to
acquire 12.9 million shares of common stock attessription price of $3.50 per share and exchanigeid 2012 notes for $80.1 million in ce
and $17.7 million of common stock, or 5.1 millidmeses. We also agreed to reimburse JLL Partnersatrd Warburg Pincus for all
reasonable and actual out-of-pocket expenses eatimrconnection with the recapitalization transan.

16. Concentrations

We maintain cash at financial institutionektess of federally insured limits. Accounts reable potentially expose us to concentrations
of credit risk. We provide credit in the normal cgel of business to customers in the residentiatcoction industry. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of our customers and maintdowalnces for potential credit losses. Because ouste are dispersed among our various
markets, our credit risk to any one customer destaonomy is not significant.

Our customer mix is a balance of large natiboanebuilders, regional homebuilders and local ébuilders. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, our top 10 customers accountepproximately 23.8% of our sales, and no siegltomer accounted for more than
of sales.

We source products from a large number of kensp No materials purchased from any single seppépresented more than 9% of our
total materials purchases in 2010.
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17. Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Supplemental cash flow information was asofe# for the years ended December 31:

2010 2009 2008
(In thousands,
Cash payments for intere $ 24,26 $  23,64¢ $ 24,01
Cash refunds for income tax (33,53) (32,759 (15,169
Supplemental schedule of r-cash financing activities
Issuance of common stock to extinguish ¢ 24,89: — —

18. Unaudited Quarterly Financial Data

The following tables summarize the consolidajearterly results of operations for 2010 and 2@@%housands, except per share
amounts):

2010
First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 161,37¢ $ 211,48 $ 180,39: $ 147,09:
Gross margir 29,43: 38,73t 35,52¢ 28,06:
Loss from continuing operatiol (31,200(1) (18,920(2) (19,675(3) (24,499(4)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of (18€) (119 (795) (11%)
Net loss (31,38¢) (19,039 (20,470 (24,619
Basic and diluted net loss per sh

Loss from continuing operatiol $ (0.39(2) $ 0.20(2) $ 0.2)(3) $ (0.26)(4)

Loss from discontinued operatio (0.00) (0.00) (0.09) (0.00)

Net loss $ (0.39) $ (0.20 $ (0.29) $ (0.26)

2009
First Quarter Second Quartel Third Quarter Fourth Quarter

Net sales $ 159,57¢ $ 175,48 $ 188,86 $ 153,96:
Gross margir 33,55( 39,17: 39,39: 30,29:
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (28,616)(5) (18,554)(6) (15,949(7) 6,23((8)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, negag (1,962 (4,050 703 344
Net income (loss (30,579 (22,609 (15,24¢) 6,57¢
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per st

Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ 0.79(5) $ (0.47(6) $ 0.4)(7) $ 0.1€(8)

Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (0.0%) (0.17) 0.0z 0.01

Net income (loss $ (0.7¢) $ (0.5¢) $ (0.39) $ 0.17

(1) Includes write-off of deferred financing cosif $4.1 million as discussed in Note 8 and aatidm allowance of $11.6 million as
discussed in Note 1

(2) Includes a valuation allowance of $7.1 million &tdssed in Note 1.
(3) Includes a valuation allowance of $7.2 million &tdssed in Note 1.

(4) Includes write-off of deferred financing cosif $0.6 million as discussed in Note 8 and aatidm allowance of $9.4 million as
discussed in Note 1

(5) Includes write-off of deferred financing costf $1.2 million as discussed in Note 8 and aatédn allowance of $12.2 million as
discussed in Note 1

(6) Includes asset impairment charge of $0.5onilas discussed in Note 2, facility closures cost%0.7 million as discussed in Note 10,
and a valuation allowance of $6.6 million as diseusin Note 11

(7) Includes a valuation allowance of $6.2 million &cdssed in Note 1.
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(8) Includes a valuation allowance of ($21.1) milliandiscussed in Note 1

Earnings per share is computed independemntlgdch of the quarters presented; therefore,uimecs the quarterly earnings per share may
not equal the annual earnings per share.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Controls Evaluation and Related CEO @D CertificationsOur management, with the participation of our ppat
executive officer (“CEO”) and principal financiaffizer (“CFO”), conducted an evaluation of the efigeness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures as of thdeoéthe period covered by this annual report. @twtrols evaluation was conducted by our
Disclosure Committee, comprised of senior repredesas from our finance, accounting, internal aualitd legal departments under the
supervision of our CEO and CFO.

Certifications of our CEO and our CFO, which eequired in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of theuBties Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (“Exchange Act”), are attached as exhibitsis annual report. This “Controls and Procedusection includes the information
concerning the controls evaluation referred tdm¢ertifications, and it should be read in conjiamcwith the certifications for a more
complete understanding of the topics presented.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Contrdle do not expect that our disclosure controls andgdures will prevent all errors and all
fraud. A system of controls and procedures, noenatbw well conceived and operated, can providg mrdsonable, not absolute, assurance
that the objectives of the system are met. Becaligee limitations in all such systems, no evaloattan provide absolute assurance that all
control issues and instances of fraud, if any, withe Company have been detected. Furthermoraggsign of any system of controls and
procedures is based in part upon certain assungpdibout the likelihood of future events, and theene be no assurance that any design will
succeed in achieving its stated goals under adimgatl future conditions, regardless of how unlkd@ecause of these inherent limitations in a
cost-effective system of controls and procedurésstaitements or omissions due to error or fraud ocayr and not be detected.

Scope of the Controls Evaluatiofhe evaluation of our disclosure controls and pdoces included a review of their objectives and
design, the Company’s implementation of the contavld procedures and the effect of the controlgpanckdures on the information
generated for use in this annual report. In thesmof the evaluation, we sought to identify whetlie had any data errors, control problems
or acts of fraud and to confirm that appropriate@ctive action, including process improvementsieAmeing undertaken if needed. This type
of evaluation is performed on a quarterly basithad conclusions concerning the effectiveness ofi@closure controls and procedures can
be reported in our quarterly reports on FormQ@.Many of the components of our disclosure contemld procedures are also evaluated b
internal audit department, our legal departmentlangdersonnel in our finance organization. The allgoals of these various evaluation
activities are to monitor our disclosure contraisl @rocedures on an ongoing basis, and to maititain as dynamic systems that change as
conditions warrant.

Conclusions regarding Disclosure ControBased on the required evaluation of our disclosargrols and procedures, our CEO and (
have concluded that, as of December 31, 2010, viatan@ed disclosure controls and procedures tha¢ wéective in providing reasonable
assurance that information required to be discldigeds in the reports that we file or submit unither Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periodsi§ipe in the SEC’s rules and forms, and that smétrmation is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our CR(OGFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisicgarding required disclosure.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting.Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining
adequate internal control over financial reportiag such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of tlkelfange Act. Under the supervision and
with the participation of our management, including CEO and CFO, we conducted an evaluation oétteetiveness of our internal control
over financial reporting based on the frameworkfegh in Internal Control — Integrated Framewaoskued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. Baseduwrevaluation under the framework set forth irrinal Control — Integrated
Framework, our management concluded that our iat&antrol over financial reporting was effectivea December 31, 2010.
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The effectiveness of the Company’s internaitc over financial reporting as of December 311@, has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registiblic accounting firm, as stated in their rémdrich appears herein.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repodiuring the quarter ended December 31, 2010, there wo changes in our internal
control over financial reporting identified in cagotion with the evaluation described above thathaaterially affected, or are reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal controber financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART IlI

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information required by this item appedarsur definitive proxy statement for our annualatieg of stockholders to be held May 25,
2011 under the captions “Proposal 1 — Election ioé@ors,” “Continuing Directors,” “Information Regding the Board and Its
Committees,” “Corporate Governance,” “Section 1&apeficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,” an&éEutive Officers of the
Registrant,” which information is incorporated harky reference.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Builders FirstSource, Inc. and its subsidegadeavor to do business according to the highesial and legal standards, complying with
both the letter and spirit of the law. Our boardiwéctors approved a Code of Business ConducEgtimids that applies to our directors,
officers (including our principal executive officgrincipal financial officer and controller) anchployees. Our Code of Business Conduct
Ethics is administered by a compliance committedangp of representatives from our legal, humanuress, finance and internal audit
departments.

Our employees are encouraged to report amested violations of laws, regulations and the CafdBusiness Conduct and Ethics, and all
unethical business practices. We provide continlyausnitored hotlines for anonymous reporting bypbogees.

Our board of directors has also approved peuapental Code of Ethics for the Chief Executivdicaf, President, and Senior Financial
Officers of Builders FirstSource, Inc., which is@distered by our general counsel.

Both of these policies are listed as exhitatthis annual report on Form 10-K and can be faarttie “investors” section of our corporate
Web site at: www.bldr.com.

Stockholders may request a free copy of tpetieies by contacting the Corporate Secretary|dgus FirstSource, Inc., 2001 Bryan Street,
Suite 1600, Dallas, Texas 75201, United Statesmérca.

In addition, within four business days of:

« Any amendment to a provision of our Code of BassiConduct and Ethics or our Supplemental Cod#thiés for Chief Executive
Officer, President and Senior Financial OfficerBoflders FirstSource, Inc. that applies to ouetleixecutive officer, our chief
financial officer or controller; o

e The grant of any waiver, including an implicitiwer, from a provision of one of these policieotee of these officers that relates to
one or more of the items set forth in Item 406@0Regulation -K.

We will provide information regarding any sumtmendment or waiver (including the nature of amyver, the name of the person to whom
the waiver was granted and the date of the watweQur Web site at the Internet address abovesadi information will be available on our
Web site for at least a IBonth period. In addition, we will disclose any ardments and waivers to our Code of Business CorahatEthic:
or our Supplemental Code of Ethics for Chief ExeeuOfficer, President and Senior Financial Officef Builders FirstSource, Inc. as
required by the listing standards of the NASDAQcRtMarket LLC.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item appedarsur definitive proxy statement for our annualatieg of stockholders to be held May 25,
2011 under the captions “Executive Compensation@thér Information,” “Information Regarding the Bdaand its Committees —
Compensation of Directors,” and “Compensation Cottamilnterlocks and Insider Participation,” whidfiormation is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners ainagement and Related Stockholder Matters

The information required by this item appéaarsur definitive proxy statement for our annualetieg of stockholders to be held on
May 25, 2011 under the caption “Ownership of Semsg'l and “Equity Compensation Plan Information fiieh information is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abitector Independence

The information required by this item appedarsur definitive proxy statement for our annualatieg of stockholders to be held May 25,
2011 under the caption “Election of Directors andidgement Information,” “Information Regarding Bward and its Committees,” and
“Certain Relationships and Related Party Transastfowvhich information is incorporated herein bjerence.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item appears in@efinitive proxy statement for our annual meetiriggtockholders to be held May 25, 2!
under the caption “Proposal 4 — Ratification ofeggibn of Auditors — Fees Paid to Pricewaterhousg@os LLP,” which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) (1) See the index to consolidated findrat@ements provided in Item 8 for a list of thehcial statements filed as part of this report.
(2) Financial statement schedules are omiigause they are either not applicable or not mahter

(3) The following documents are filed, furnéshor incorporated by reference as exhibits torép®ert as required by Item 601 of
Regulation S-K.

Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioBuilders FirstSource, Inc. (incorporated by refare to Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement®@bmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Brchange
Commission on June 6, 2005, File Number-122788)

3.2 Amended and Restated By-Laws of Builders FirstSgurc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2hte Company’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia March 5, 2007, File Numbe-51357)

4.1 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jan2ar010, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLUtas Fund V, L.P., and
Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P. (incorpocht®y reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’sr€uir Report on Form B;
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 22, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

4.2 Indenture, dated as of February 11, 2005, amonlgi®&usi FirstSource, Inc., the Guarantors party toesnd Wilmington Trust

Company, as Trustee (incorporated by referencelibiE 4.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registratidat&ment of the Compa
on Form &1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio April 27, 2005, File Number 3-122788)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 8,,2000ng Builders FirstSource, Inc., the Guaranparsy thereto, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CuotrfReport on Form &,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodanuary 14, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

Indenture, dated as of January 21, 2010, amongl&usilFirstSource, Inc., the Guarantors party tbesatd Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee (incorporated by referencelibiE 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&+, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January®2), File Number -51357)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated December 147,20@0ng Builders FirstSource, Inc., the Borrowsy thereto, the
Guarantors party thereto, the Lenders party the¥@tarhovia Bank, National Association, as Admirittre Agent and Collater
Trustee, UBS Securities LLC, as Syndication Ag&daneral Electric Capital Corporation, as Documéartafgent, and
Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and UBS Securitiesd, las Joint Lead Bookrunners (incorporated by egfeg to Exhibit 10.1
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Qtli@r quarter ended June 30, 2009, filed with theues and Exchange
Commission on July 31, 2009, File Numb-51357)

Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreemengdidarch 3, 2008, among Builders FirstSource, the Borrowers party
thereto, the Guarantors party thereto, the Lenpleny thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Assamiatas Administrative
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2n® Company’s Annual Report on Form K@er the year ended December
2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsiaison March 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Amendment No. 2 to Loan and Security Agreemengditovember 23, 2010, among Builders FirstSource, the Borrowers
party thereto, the Guarantors party thereto, thelkes party thereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, Natiéalociation, successor by
merger to Wachovia Bank, National Association, dsistrative Agent (incorporated by reference iibit 10.1 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tBecurities and Exchange Commission on Novemhe2(®BM, File
Number (-51357)

Collateral Trust Agreement, dated as of Februar2005, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., the oRledgors party thereto,
UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as Administrative Agentienthe Credit Agreement, Wilmington Trust Compaasy;Trustee under
the Indenture, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as PricCibflateral Trustee, and UBS AG, Stamford BranshRarity Collateral
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.Amendment No. 1 to the Registration StatememhefCompany on Form S-
1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin April 27, 2005, File Number 3-122788)

Confirmation of Reformation of Collateral Trust Agment, dated as of December 14, 2007, among BsiifdestSource, Inc.,
the other Pledgors party thereto, UBS AG, StamBnahch, as Administrative Agent under the Crediteggment, Wilmington
Trust Company, as Trustee under the Indenture, A8SStamford Branch, as Priority Collateral Trusteed UBS AG,
Stamford Branch, as Parity Collateral Trustee (ipocated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the ComyfmAnnual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004d fivith the Securities and Exchange Commission arci5, 2008, File
Number (-51357)

Second Lien Pledge and Security Agreement, dated Zanuary 21, 2010, by and among Builders Finst&s Inc., the
Guarantors party thereto, and Wilmington Trust Camy as Collateral Trustee (incorporated by refegdn Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tRecurities and Exchange Commission on Januar3®, File Number
0-51357)

Investment Agreement, dated as of October 23, 28@®ng Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLL Partnersd~dnL.P., and Warburg
Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P. (incorporated byereince to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to thgiReation Statement of tl
Company on Form-3, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio December 3, 2009, File Number -162906)

Amendment No. 1 to Investment Agreement, dated &eoember 2, 2009, among Builders FirstSource, [Hd. Partners Fund
V, L.P., and Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L{lacorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to @@mpany’s Current Report
on Form &K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia December 3, 2009, File Numb-51357)

Support Agreement, dated as of October 23, 2008ngrBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and certain holdénsur Second Priority

Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes Due 2012 plaeteto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia December 3, 2009, File Numb-51357)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.10

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

Amendment No. 1 to Support Agreement, dated aseckihber 2, 2009, among Builders FirstSource, In¢.cartain holders of
our Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rateedldue 2012 party thereto (incorporated by refezda Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tRecurities and Exchange Commission on Decemi#8(0®, File Number
0-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stock IncentivenPks amended, effective March 1, 2004 (incorpdrhtereference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrat8iatement of the Company on Form S-1, filed whth $ecurities and
Exchange Commission on April 27, 2005, File Numki&i-122788)

Amendment No. 7 to Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1888ck Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencEsxhibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadlesd December 31, 2006, filed with the Securitie$ Bxchange
Commission on March 12, 2007, File Numb-51357)

2004 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stoaentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemg@n¢orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 1 toRegistration Statement of the Company on Form f8et], with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27 5260le Number 33-122788)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equity IncentivarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 tnehdment No. 4 to the
Registration Statement of the Company on Form fget], with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodane 6, 2005, File
Number 33-122788)

2005 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@ntorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Juhe2B05, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 45282 Number -51357)

2005 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Eqlitgentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreememtdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Currenpédteon Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on
June 30, 2005, File Numbe-51357)

2006 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@ntorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s CurfRaport on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 17, 2006, File Numbe-51357)

2006 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Eqlitgentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreememtdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CuriR@port on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 17, 2006, File Numbe-51357)

2007 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option AgreemiemtEmployee
Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibitll@ the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dfileith the Securities and
Exchange Commission on March 5, 2007, File NumI-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan d¢iporated by reference to Annex D of the CompadgTinitive Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the Secwitird Exchange Commission on December 15, 20@Nkitnber -51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (irpmmated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrz 10Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008, filed \lith Securities ar
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Numt-51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InoenPlan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incoaped by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amr 10Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008, filed wlith Securities ar
Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Num!-51357)

2010 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InasenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement forffayee Directors

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to @wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadled December 31,
2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsiaison March 4, 2010, File Numbe-51357)
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

10.33+

141

14.2

211

23.1*

24.1*

31.1*

31.2*

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Amended and Restatedgeddent Director Compensation Policy (incorporéedeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrz 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, fil#d the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 3, 2006, File Nun®-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Form of Director Indefigation Agreement (incorporated by reference tbikix 10.13 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement®fQbmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Brchange
Commission on May 26, 2005, File Number -122788)

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2001 dset\Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Floyd F. Sher(irarorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment No. 1 toRegistration Statement of the Company on Form f8et], with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27 5260le Number 33-122788)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Juned5,28etween Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Floy8lerman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Acr@ent No. 4 to the Registration Statement of thea@any on Form 3;, filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 8U2605, File Number 3.-122788)

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, datedi@ct29, 2008, between Builders FirstSource, Ind.Floyd F.
Sherman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1802the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fa ylear ended
December 31, 2008, filed with the Securities andiaxge Commission on March 2, 2009, File Numl-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2010, dextvBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and M. Chad Crowdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CurfRaport on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 26, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, lst\Beilders FirstSource, Inc. and Morris E. Tollycprporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s AnriR@port on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ7, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2868 Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated OctobeP@08, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Mdr Tolly
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to@wmnpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaderl December 31,
2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsimison March 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, leetBeilders FirstSource, Inc. and Donald F. McAke(incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s QuaytBeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepeerdd, 2005, filed with
the Securities Exchange Commission on Novembe®@5,2-ile Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated OctobePQ98, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and ltbRaMcAleenan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to@wmnpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaderl December 31,
2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsinison March 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Code of Business Conduact Ethics (incorporated by reference to ExhidifLio the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddmam31, 2005, filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission on
March 13, 2006, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Supplemental Code ofdstfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.2ie Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeBQ5, filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 13,
2006, File Number-51357)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated bgnaice to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Repo Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Stesrand Exchange Commission on March 4, 2010,Nri@ber (-51357)

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperiRlegistered Public Accounting Fir
Power of Attorney (included as part of signaturge):

Written statement pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14&adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbariey Act of 2002,
signed by Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive ©f

Written statement pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14&jdopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbaxlkey Act of 2002,
signed by M. Chad Crow as Chief Financial Offi
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Exhibit
Number Description
32.1% Written statement pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectiorD185 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@xley Act of 2002,
signed by Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive ®ffand M. Chad Crow as Chief Financial Offi

* Filed herewitr

**  Builders FirstSource, Inc. is furnishing, buot filing, the written statement pursuant to Tt United States Code 1350, as added by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,loyé F. Sherman, our Chief Executive Officer, and@had Crow, our Chief
Financial Officer.

+  Indicates a management contract or compensatomnygplarrangemer

(b) A list of exhibits filed, furnished or ingporated by reference with this Form 10-K is pdad above under Item 15(a)(3) of this report.
Builders FirstSource, Inc. will furnish a copy of any exhibit listed above to any stockholder withoutharge upon written request to
Donald F. McAleenan, Senior Vice President and Gena Counsel, 2001 Bryan Street, Suite 1600, Dallasexas 75201.

(c) Not applicable
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 1B5¢d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, #gistrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

March 2, 2011
BUILDERS FIRSTSOURCE, INC.

/s/ FLOYD F. SHERMAN

Floyd F. Shermar

President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer’

The undersigned hereby constitute and ap@ongld F. McAleenan and his substitutes our truelawful attorneys-in-fact with full
power to execute in our name and behalf in the dtips indicated below any and all amendments i®réport and to file the same, with all
exhibits thereto and other documents in connedtierewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comiatissand hereby ratify and confirm all
that such attorney-in-fact or his substitutes slaaifully do or cause to be done by virtue thereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Secuiitiehange Act of 1934, this report has been sidnebolv by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#ies indicated.

Signature Title Date
/sl FLOYD F. SHERMAN President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal March 2, 2011
Floyd F. Sherma Executive Officer and Director)
/si M. CHAD CROW Senior Vice President and Chief Financial March 2, 2011
M. Chad Crow Officer (Principal Financial Officer)
/s BRAD A. LEIST Vice President and Controller (Principal March 2, 2011
Brad A. Leist Accounting Officer)
/s/ PAUL S. LEVY Chairman and Director March 2, 2011
Paul S. Levy
/s DAVID A. BARR Director March 2, 2011
David A. Barr
/s/ CLEVELAND A. CHRISTOPHE Director March 2, 2011

Cleveland A. Christoph

/sl RAMSEY A. FRANK Director March 2, 2011
Ramsey A. Fran

/s| MICHAEL GRAFF Director March 2, 2011
Michael Graff

/s ROBERT C. GRIFFIN Director March 2, 2011
Robert C. Griffin

/s/ KEVIN J. KRUSE Director March 2, 2011
Kevin J. Kruse

/s/ BRETT N. MILGRIM Director March 2, 2011
Brett N. Milgrim

/s CRAIG A. STEINKE Director March 2, 2011
Craig A. Steinke
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Exhibit
Number

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioBuslders FirstSource, Inc. (incorporated by refese to Exhibit 3.1 to
Amendment No. 4 to the Registration Statement®Qbmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Brchange
Commission on June 6, 2005, File Number-122788)

Amended and Restated By-Laws of Builders FirstSsurec. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 22ie Company’s
Current Report on Formr-K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia March 5, 2007, File Numbe-51357)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Jan2ay2010, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLLas Fund V, L.P., and
Warburg Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P. (incorpodat®y reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’sr€nir Report on Form 8-
K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia January 22, 2010, File Numb-51357)

Indenture, dated as of February 11, 2005, amongl®&si FirstSource, Inc., the Guarantors party toesnd Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee (incorporated by referencexhibi 4.1 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registratidgat&ment of the
Company on Form-1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio April 27, 2005, File Number 3-122788)

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 8,,20006ng Builders FirstSource, Inc., the Guararparsy thereto, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee (incorpordigdeference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CotriRReport on Form 8-
K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissia January 14, 2010, File Numb-51357)

Indenture, dated as of January 21, 2010, amongl&uilFirstSource, Inc., the Guarantors party tbeestd Wilmington Trust
Company, as Trustee (incorporated by referencelibiE 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on F@&+, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on January®2), File Number -51357)

Loan and Security Agreement, dated December 147,208 ong Builders FirstSource, Inc., the Borrowsy thereto, the
Guarantors party thereto, the Lenders party the¥trhovia Bank, National Association, as Admiristre Agent and
Collateral Trustee, UBS Securities LLC, as SyndicaAgent, General Electric Capital CorporationPaumentation Agent,
and Wachovia Capital Markets, LLC and UBS SecwitieC, as Joint Lead Bookrunners (incorporateddfgrence to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrg 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009, Vil the Securities and
Exchange Commission on July 31, 2009, File Num-51357)

Amendment No. 1 to Loan and Security Agreemengdidarch 3, 2008, among Builders FirstSource, the Borrowers part
thereto, the Guarantors party thereto, the Lenplenry thereto, and Wachovia Bank, National Assamiatas Administrative
Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2n® Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for tearyended
December 31, 2008, filed with the Securities andiaxge Commission on March 2, 2009, File Numl-51357)

Amendment No. 2 to Loan and Security Agreemengdiatovember 23, 2010, among Builders FirstSource, the Borrowers
party thereto, the Guarantors party thereto, thelkes party thereto, and Wells Fargo Bank, Natiésslociation, successor by
merger to Wachovia Bank, National Association, dsistrative Agent (incorporated by reference iibit 10.1 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tBecurities and Exchange Commission on Novemhe2(®BM, File
Number (-51357)

Collateral Trust Agreement, dated as of Februar2005, among Builders FirstSource, Inc., the oRledgors party thereto,
UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as Administrative Agentlenthe Credit Agreement, Wilmington Trust Compaasy/;Trustee unds
the Indenture, UBS AG, Stamford Branch, as Prid@iojflateral Trustee, and UBS AG, Stamford BranshRarity Collateral
Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 16.Amendment No. 1 to the Registration StatememhefCompany on
Form &1, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin April 27, 2005, File Number 3-122788)

Confirmation of Reformation of Collateral Trust Agment, dated as of December 14, 2007, among BsiifdestSource, Inc.,

the other Pledgors party thereto, UBS AG, StamBnahch, as Administrative Agent under the Crediteggment, Wilmington
Trust Company, as Trustee under the Indenture, N8SStamford Branch, as Priori
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Exhibit
Number

Description

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11+

10.12+

10.13+

10.14+

10.15+

10.16+

10.17+

10.18+

Collateral Trustee, and UBS AG, Stamford BrancHasty Collateral Trustee (incorporated by refeseto Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadlesl December 31, 2007, filed with the Securitie$ Bxchange
Commission on March 5, 2008, File Numb-51357)

Second Lien Pledge and Security Agreement, dated Zanuary 21, 2010, by and among Builders Finst&s Inc., the
Guarantors party thereto, and Wilmington Trust Camyp as Collateral Trustee (incorporated by refegdn Exhibit 10.1 to th
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tRecurities and Exchange Commission on Januar3®, File Number
0-51357)

Investment Agreement, dated as of October 23, 28®8ng Builders FirstSource, Inc., JLL Partnersd~dnL.P., and Warbui
Pincus Private Equity IX, L.P. (incorporated byereince to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 1 to thgiReation Statement of
the Company on Form-3, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissio December 3, 2009, File Number -162906

Amendment No. 1 to Investment Agreement, dated 8eoember 2, 2009, among Builders FirstSource, Hd. Partners
Fund V, L.P., and Warburg Pincus Private Equity I€. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3te Company’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia December 3, 2009, File Numb-51357)

Support Agreement, dated as of October 23, 2008ngrBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and certain holdénsur Second Priority
Senior Secured Floating Rate Notes Due 2012 plagteto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.fhe Company’s Current
Report on Form -K, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commisgia December 3, 2009, File Numb-51357)

Amendment No. 1 to Support Agreement, dated aseakEbhber 2, 2009, among Builders FirstSource, Imd.cgrtain holders «
our Second Priority Senior Secured Floating Rateedldue 2012 party thereto (incorporated by refezdéa Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company'’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed witle tBecurities and Exchange Commission on Decemi{28(03, File
Number (-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stock IncentivenPks amended, effective March 1, 2004 (incorpdrhtereference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Amendment No. 1 to the Registrat8iatement of the Company on Form S-1, filed whth $ecurities and
Exchange Commission on April 27, 2005, File Numki&i-122788)

Amendment No. 7 to Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1888ck Incentive Plan (incorporated by referencEsxhibit 10.6 to the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaadlesl December 31, 2006, filed with the Securitie$ Bxchange
Commission on March 12, 2007, File Numb-51357)

2004 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 1998 Stoaentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreemg@n¢orporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 1 toRegistration Statement of the Company on Form f8et], with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27 5260le Number 33-122788)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equity IncentivarP(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 tnehdment No. 4 to the
Registration Statement of the Company on Form fget], with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodane 6, 2005, File
Number 33-122788)

2005 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Eqitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@nmtorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Juhe2B05, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 45282 Number -51357)

2005 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Eqlitgentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreememtdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Currenpdteon Form 8-K, filed with the Securities and Bange Commission on
June 30, 2005, File Numbe-51357)

2006 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreem@ntorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to the Company’s CurfRaport on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities andccEange Commission on
February 17, 2006, File Numbe-51357)

2006 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Restricted Stock Award Agreememtdiporated by

reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s CuriR@port on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 17, 2006, File Numbe-51357)
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10.19+

10.20+

10.21+

10.22+

10.23+

10.24+

10.25+

10.26+

10.27+

10.28+

10.29+

10.30+

10.31+

10.32+

10.33+

2007 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2005 Equitgentive Plan Nonqualified Stock Option AgreemiemtEmployee
Directors (incorporated by reference to Exhibitll@ the Company’s Current Report on Forri{,&Hed with the Securities ar
Exchange Commission on March 5, 2007, File Numl-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 Incentive Plan diporated by reference to Annex D of the CompadgTnitive Proxy
Statement on Schedule 14A, filed with the Secwitird Exchange Commission on December 15, 20@Nkitnber -51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InsenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement (irpamated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Repartrmrm 106 for the quarter ended March 31, 2008, filed wihih Securitie:
and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Nurf-51357)

2008 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InoenPlan Restricted Stock Award Agreement (incoaped by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrt 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008¢ fitéth the Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 1, 2008, File Nurg-51357)

2010 Form of Builders FirstSource, Inc. 2007 InaenPlan Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement forftayee Directors
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to@wmnpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yaaderl December 31,
2009, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsinison March 4, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Amended and Restatedgeddent Director Compensation Policy (incorporétedeference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report amrg 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006, Vil the Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 3, 2006, File Nun®-51357)

Builders FirstSource, Inc. Form of Director Indefiggtion Agreement (incorporated by reference thibix 10.13 to
Amendment No. 3 to the Registration Statement®@bmpany on Form S-1, filed with the Securitied Brchange
Commission on May 26, 2005, File Number -122788)

Employment Agreement, dated September 1, 2001 deetBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and Floyd F. Sher(maorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Amendment No. 1 toRegistration Statement of the Company on Form f8et], with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 27 5260le Number 33-122788)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 5,2fketween Builders FirstSource, Inc. and Floy8Herman
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Ach@ent No. 4 to the Registration Statement of them@any on Form S-1,
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiodune 6, 2005, File Number (-122788)

Second Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated@ct29, 2008, between Builders FirstSource, Ind.Royd F.
Sherman (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1@02the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K fa ylear ended
December 31, 2008, filed with the Securities andiaxge Commission on March 2, 2009, File Numl-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated February 23, 2010, dextvBuilders FirstSource, Inc. and M. Chad Crowdiporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s CuriR@port on Form 8-K, filed with the Securities anccEange Commission on
February 26, 2010, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, lest\Beilders FirstSource, Inc. and Morris E. Tollycprporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.22 to the Company’s AnriR@port on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeR3Q7, filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, ZBiB8Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated OctobeR@98, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and MdEr Tolly
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to@wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yeadled December 31,
2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsiaison March 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)

Employment Agreement, dated January 15, 2004, leet\Beilders FirstSource, Inc. and Donald F. McAke(incorporated k
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s QuaytBeport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Sepéerdd, 2005, filed with
the Securities Exchange Commission on Novembe®@5,2-ile Number -51357)

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated Octobe2@08, between Builders FirstSource, Inc. and bRaMcAleenan

(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to @wmmpany’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the yezdled December 31,
2008, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comsimison March 2, 2009, File Numbe-51357)
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14.1 Builders FirstSource, Inc. Code of Business Conduck Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhiitlto the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Ddman31, 2005, filed with the Securities and Exclea@gmmission on
March 13, 2006, File Numbe-51357)
14.2 Builders FirstSource, Inc. Supplemental Code ofdstfincorporated by reference to Exhibit 14.2hte €Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended DecembeRBQ5, filed with the Securities and Exchange Cossion on March 13,
2006, File Number-51357)
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (incorporated bgneice to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s Annual Repo Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2009, filed with the Sgesrand Exchange Commission on March 4, 2010,Nril@ber (-51357)
23.1* Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, IndeperiRiegistered Public Accounting Fir
24.1* Power of Attorney (included as part of signaturge):
31.1* Written statement pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14&jdopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbaxley Act of 2002,
signed by Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive ©f
31.2* Written statement pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14&adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbariey Act of 2002,
signed by M. Chad Crow as Chief Financial Offi
32.1%* Written statement pursuant to 18 U.S.C. SectiorD185 adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sasb@xley Act of 2002,

signed by Floyd F. Sherman as Chief Executive ®ffand M. Chad Crow as Chief Financial Offi

* Filed herewitr

**  Builders FirstSource, Inc. is furnishing, buot filing, the written statement pursuant to Tt United States Code 1350, as added by
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002,loyé F. Sherman, our Chief Executive Officer, and@had Crow, our Chief
Financial Officer.

+  Indicates a management contract or compensatomygplarrangemer
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Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémt¢lee Registration Statements on Forms S-8 (R83:128430, 333-147107, and 333-
169001) of Builders FirstSource, Inc. of our regtated March 2, 2011, relating to the financiatesteents and the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting, which appearshis Form 10-K. We also consent to the referencestunder the heading “Selected
Financial Data” in this Form 10-K.

/sl PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Dallas, Texas
March 2, 2011



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, Floyd Sherman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form-K of Builders FirstSource, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmislieading with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésend other financial information included irstheport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this rep

4. The registrarg’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsildleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)1%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaregused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgbsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pnegzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financialoripg, or caused such internal control over finaheeporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataece with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrarissldsure controls and procedures and presentgtsimeport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigts internal control over financial reportingattoccurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer@)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordgx@r financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpanhcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a signifiode in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2011 /sl FLOYD F. SHERMAN
Floyd F. Shermar
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acf 2002

I, M. Chad Crow, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form-K of Builders FirstSource, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report doesantain any untrue statement of a material factnoit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletding with respect to the
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statésend other financial information included imsthreport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this rep

4. The registrarg’ other certifying officer(s) and | are responsildleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresgused such disclosure controls and procedotes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregzh

(b) Designed such internal control over financialoipg, or caused such internal control over finaheeporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataoece with generally accepted accounting princij

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrarissldsure controls and procedures and presenttisineport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigts internal control over financial reportingattoccurred during the registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodigbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tlas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registrant’s other certifying officerém)d | have disclosed, based on our most recehiaian of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct(@spersons performing the
equivalent functions)

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordgx@r financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regie’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmahcial information; an

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifioée in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: March 2, 2011 /s/ M. CHAD CROW
M. Chad Crow
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offic




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to 18 U.S.CSection 1350
(Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-@&y Act of 2002)

In connection with the annual report of BuilderssEsource, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K foe feriod ended December 31, 2010 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiothe date hereof (the “Report”), we, Floyd F. Sim, as President and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company, and M. Chad Crow, as Se¥ioe President and Chief Financial Officer of tBempany, certify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fi6rof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, #olibst of our knowledge :

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Securitiestiaxge Act of 1934; ar

(2) The information contained in the Report fairlggents, in all material respects, the financiad@mn and results of operations of the
Company

Dated: March 2, 2011

/s/ FLOYD F. SHERMAN
Floyd F. Shermar
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ M. CHAD CROW
M. Chad Crow
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offic

A signed original of this written statemenqueed by Section 906 has been provided to the @Goypand will be retained by the Company
and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Cosionir its staff upon request.



